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TOP 10 MILESTONES OF GUODIAN TECH 2020
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On 29 July 2020, Lucency’s “Whole-Plant Water
Saving and Emission Reduction and Intelligent Water
Management Technology” was selected into the “Beijing
Water Pollution Prevention and Control Technology
Catalogue (2020)".

B BRIR20205F € + KFH

A T

20204F8 A6 - BEIREXITE /KD 18R SRk TR MM B A
REMBRMAAR SRR EEEER AR HME
BB FLMAERINIRIE -

On 6 August 2020, Longyuan Technology's high-
moisture lignite plasma ignition and stable-combustion
technology was successfully put into operation at the 300
JKEL unit of Xilin Thermal Power Plant of Inner Mongolia
Energy Investment Group Co., Ltd..

20205F9 A 1H « BRRREBEEE RIE TIN5 2Y)
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On 1 September 2020, the sub-project on “Assessment
of Pollutant Treatment Processes and Equipment
for Coal-fired Power Plants” (Prime Minister's Fund)
organized and implemented by Longyuan Environmental
was accepted, and was appreciated by the Ministry of
Ecology and Environment with a letter of thanks.

B)7) 2 #058R 2020 F FIRALIR
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On 26 September 2020, a new generation of 4.83KE,
wind turbine independently developed by United Power
was successfully connected to the grid at Chaganhua
Wind Power Plant in Chifeng, Inner Mongolia.
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On 4 November 2020, Longyuan Environmental's reform
experience was selected into the “Double-hundred
Actions on Reform of State-owned Enterprises” case
book. Longyuan Environmental shared its experience
and achievements at the press conference.
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On 30 November 2020, United Power completed all the
supply of wind turbine commissioning projects within
China Energy in 2020, with the overall annual supply
completion rate ahead in the industry.

MEFEB P EEH T REREMNERTEGETE
ZRBBRESRKT o

On 10 December 2020, the R&D and application
technology of Guoneng 1&C's intelligent control platform
successfully passed the appraisal of the evaluation
expert committee organized by the China Society for
Electrical Engineering, reaching the international leading

DCSEB T E=FERFSARETETHR

On 18 December 2020, the non-safety grade DCS
provided by Guoneng Zhishen for Zhangzhou Nuclear
Power Plant passed the qualification test of a third-party
national laboratory.

level.
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In 2020, Guoneng Zhishen (Former name “Beijing
Guodian Zhishen Control Technology Co., Ltd.”) was
awarded the title of “the Sixth National Civilized Unit”.
Tian Yucong, its employee, was awarded the honorary
title of “National Model Worker”.

20205 - BRI LEBRIREREE  SKTERIRE

& EREBEHELESARSMOFIRT - BETKFE
3 % HERREE  EENEBCIFERR
In 2020, the construction of Longyuan Engineering
Shanghaimiao Project was carried out with high quality
and high-level control. Under the premise of ensuring
construction quality and safety, Longyuan Engineering
exceeded the annual construction target. The project
construction progress, quality and intellectualization were
highly praised by China Energy.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)™
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www.01296.hk
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
(Beijing Cuiwei Road Sub-branch)
Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. (Hong Kong Branch)

Notes -

(1) The information is updated to 31 December 2020.

(2) The term of office of Mr. YAN Andrew Y. expired on 7 August 2020.
Due to the adjustment of personal work arrangement, Mr. YAN did
not participate in the re-election of the fourth session of the Board
of Directors. For details, please refer to the announcement of the

Company dated 22 July 2020.

Ms. GE Xiaojing was elected as a non-executive Director of the fourth
session of the Board of Directors and a member of the Strategic
Committee at the 2020 first extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 7 August 2020. For details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 22 July 2020 and 7 August

2020.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)™

Mr. YANG Xiangbin ceased to be a Supervisor on 7 February 2020 due
to the adjustment of work arrangement. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 7 February 2020.

Mr. WANG Shaoyu was elected as a Supervisor at the 2019 annual
general meeting of the Company held on 12 June 2020, and his
term of office expired at the end of the third session of the Board of
Supervisors. Subsequently, Mr. WANG was re-elected as a Supervisor
of the fourth session of the Board of Supervisors at the 2020 first
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 7 August 2020.
For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
12 June 2020 and 7 August 2020.

Due to work adjustment, Ms. HE Lili ceased to be a Supervisor on 6
March 2020. On 20 February 2020, the Company held a joint meeting
of employees and elected Ms. QIN Xiangling as the representative
Supervisor of employees, whose term of office commenced from 6
March 2020 and expired at the end of the third session of the Board
of Supervisors. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 6 March 2020. On 16 July 2020, Mr. LI Wei and Ms.
QIN Xiangling were re-elected as the representative Supervisors of
employees of the fourth session of the Board of Supervisors at the joint
meeting of employees.

Mr. CAl Zhaowen resigned as the vice president, secretary to the Board
of Directors, joint company secretary and chief legal counsel of the
Company with effect from 22 January 2021 due to work adjustment. For
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 22
January 2021.
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CORPORATE PROFILE

NRITTAA

Guodian Tech, formerly known as Guodian Technology & Environment
Group Co., Ltd., was officially converted to a joint stock company
on 16 May 2011, listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Ltd. (the “Stock Exchange”) on 30 December 2011. The
principal businesses of the Company, together with its subsidiaries (the
“Group”), are carried out under two businesses, namely, the business
of environmental protection and energy conservation solutions, and the
business of renewable energy equipment manufacturing and services. The
Group, with its advanced technologies and diversified business models,
is a leading market player in the PRC in these industries. In addition, the
Group has successively been selected for Global TOP 500 New Energy
Enterprises for nine consecutive years since 2012. In order to accelerate
the follow-up work of the merger of China energy, according to the relevant
regulation and work plan of China Energy, most of the subsidiaries of the
Group successively completed the rename work in 2020, and the name of
“Guoneng” is uniformly used.

In its environmental protection and energy conservation solutions business,
the Group is the largest supplier of technology and integrated systems
solutions to coal-fired power plants in the PRC, providing innovative and
advanced technology designed to reduce pollutant emissions and to
maximize efficiency of resource utilization, with the overall objective of
reducing the environmental impacts of coal-fired electricity generation
while maximizing cost-efficiency and profitability for its customers.
Leveraging on its comprehensive environmental protection and energy
conservation technologies and solutions for all aspects of coal-fired power
plants (with the core business as desulfurization, denitrification, water
treatment, plasma ignition and general contracting for power stations),
the Group is capable of providing one-stop solutions for its customers
that are tailored to meet their specific needs. The Group is also one of the
leading manufacturers of wind power generation equipment in the PRC
in its renewable energy equipment manufacturing and services business,
with a well-established brand and is well-known for its product quality and
high standards of performance. In line with its strategic focus on providing
integrated solutions and services, the Group also provides renewable
energy related services such as the maintenance and repair of wind
turbine generators.

Focusing on technological innovation and industrial applications, the
Group has gained a number of innovative achievements in relation to
significant technology and product innovation through original creation,
resource integration innovation and technological advancements. Among
its leading technologies in the PRC and globally, the Group’s plasma
ignition technology is ranked first in the world. In the domestic market,
the Group possesses a leading position in many technologies, including
wet flue gas desulfurization, seawater desulfurization, boiler low-nitrogen
combustion and flue gas denitrification. Beijing Guodian Longyuan
Environmental Engineering Co., Ltd. (“Longyuan Environmental”),
Yantai Longyuan Power Technology Co., Ltd. (“Longyuan Technology”)
(SZ.300105), Guodian United Power Technology Co., Ltd. (“United
Power”), Guoneng I&C Interconnection Technology Co., Ltd. (“Guoneng
1&C") and Guoneng Zhishen Control Technology Co., Ltd. (“Guoneng
Zhishen”) have become well-known brand names in the PRC.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT
Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*

EEMRIFARERNERREBERAF © K
20115 A16 A ERAEA BN B R A R R
2011512 A30REE BB E R SHMAMR AR ([H
REDERED - ARRIRMBAR(RER])
FEEBD AWM - BIRIRENEERRAR T RE
MABARERBERERREEY - XEBBRE
HE#ERNBINTMZ b EHEXE S RBERTT
BT - W2012FES - AEBBENEA
ERTRITEEIR L0054 o AINRHE#EEREERE
BEEMHEBELIE  REBRERSEEHEEGIE N
TERZR  2020F AEE RSO M B EEET
EEATIE - Hi— A BEge Tk o

RIBREEMRTREBTE - AEE BT EK
AR BRI MEKRRRT RHER
R AR A5 R AR T B IR AR K i 57
SHEVBIFTANSTAE MO - R B AR RIRE MR 3
BHEENRERZE  UAREITEXFPHKRAY S
KRB - BEERRKERREENZTHE
BIRRENBERIN AR TT IR (L IS BB - B
B KERIE - FRET R A RBIEREAE)

AEBREREEPRU—UXINBASTR &
FIHREEEPHNEERE - RABALRRR
BRERRBEBTE - AEBEITATBERLH
RAOZERBREDZ —  ERLBENGME
WAREMEERITEER - BMERHSMER
TRERBOBBEER -3 AKRETRONA
BARRBERS - MENBEERERS MEE
ES/ K

REBEFIRABRAFEZLER  BRRA
Bl - BRSEAKBIF BT S EW B AR - IS
T AREREAIFAR - AEEEITEDR R -
B NEL KT - B AEEN SR T B AR
KEBHRE—(L - AEEBNERBERR - 8
IKELER - SBIBMAEERR A, - B R RS R IG R T
BlAEEMA - tREEERRRIBERAF
((ERERR) - EEERENFITKRHGERAF
([BER AT ) (SZ.300105) ~ FIEHA B H A
RAR(BEE AN - BEleEREHRITER AR
([ERgEfSHE]) « BREE RIEHIRIT AR AR ([ElRE
ERNEKNAZEPBENIE D -



CORPORATE PROFILE (CONTINUED)

As of 31 December 2020, the Group has had 4 national scientific research
platforms including “National Key Laboratory for Wind Power Equipment
and System Technology”, 15 province-level scientific research platforms,
2 post-doctoral scientific research workstations and 1 academician and
expert workstation. The Group has undertaken 52 sustainable scientific
research and development (“R&D”) projects, amongst which 22 are
ministerial, provincial and municipal technical projects outside China
Energy. During the year, the Group has made remarkable achievements in
aspects of new wind turbine generator (“WTG”) model research, thermal
power plant ultra-clean discharge treatment, thermal power plant water
saving, zero wastewater discharge, comprehensive energy conservation
and technology R&D of thermal power plant, etc.. In 2020 (the “Reporting
Year”), the Group acquired 315 patents, including 61 invention patents.
The Company was also awarded 14 provincial and ministerial awards,
gaining an absolute advantage in benchmarking its position in the
industry.

The Company believes that its key strategy of investing in and promoting
technology research and development as a core activity to support the
Company’s diversified business has yielded significant returns, which has
enabled the Company to maintain its dominant position as a technology
leader in the environmental protection, energy conservation and renewable
energy industries; which also enabled the Company to develop innovative,
practical, cost-saving solutions and technology application as well as high
quality products in the relevant industries. The Company also believes that
these sectors will play a key role in the sustainable development of China’s
energy and power industries, and that sustainable development of energy
is an integral part of China’s sustainable economic development. Looking
forward, the Company will strive to become a world-class professional
technology and environmental protection company and leverage its
business in China to expand into international markets.
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE
ANSES:

* This chart is updated to the date of this report
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE (CONTINUED)
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
SERME

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of directors (the
“Board of Directors”) of the Company,
| am honored to present to you the 2020
annual report of the Group (the “Annual
Report”).

In 2020, there are many uncertainties
about the changes in the COVID-19
pandemic and the external environment.
The recovery of Chinese economy is not
yet on firm ground; the world economic situation remains complex and
severe with the recovery unstable and uneven; and the various derivative
risks resulting from the impact of the epidemic cannot be ignored. The
development of the energy industry is facing new trends such as the
optimization of power structures with clean energy, the intellectualization
of power systems and marketization of institutional mechanisms. The
transition to clean and low-carbon energy is accelerating. The Proposal of
the Central Committee of the CPC on the Formulation of the 14th Five-Year
Plan for National Economic and Social Development and the Long-range
Obijectives through the Year 2035 states that carbon emission intensity
should be reduced; places that are qualified should be supported to
pioneer in peaking carbon dioxide emissions, and action plans for
peaking carbon dioxide emissions by 2030 should be formulated.
Intelligent technology is developing rapidly. During the “13th Five-Year
Plan” period, new-generation technologies such as cloud computing,
big data, and artificial intelligence were developing in a fast pace.
Domestic power generation enterprises attach great importance to the
intelligent construction and reconstruction of power generation systems,
taking intelligent power generation technology as an important means to
enable cleaner, more efficient, flexible and safer energy. The reform of
state-owned enterprises has continued to be deepened. The Three-Year
Action Plan for the Reform of State-owned Enterprises (2020-2022)
has officially been issued. The Fifth Plenary Session of the 19th Central
Committee of the CPC has made major strategic plans for the reform
and development of State-owned enterprises, with a focus on the 14th
Five-Year Plan and long-term economic and social development goals.
The next three years will be a critical stage for the reform of state-owned
enterprises.

Guodian Tech will follow the energy structure adjustment and technological
enhancement of electric power, according to the target proposed at the
19th CPC National Congress to speed up the reformation of ecological
civilization system, build a beautiful China, create a good production and
living environment for the people, and contribute to global ecological
security. We adhere to the industrial direction of using energy in a cleaner
and more efficient manner and win the tough fight against pollution.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Reviewing on the development of the Company during the 13th Five-Year
Plan, especially in the three years since the merger of China Energy, the
Group has resolutely carried out the work plan of China Energy, followed
the development strategy of China Energy, and achieved significant
results in institutional reform, made remarkable achievements in market
development, produced fruitful outcomes in scientific and technological
innovation, deepened the market-oriented reform, deeply integrated the
Party building with the key tasks, and stepped up to a new level in terms
of development quality, scientific and technological strength, enterprise
vitality, market competitiveness and social influence. Looking ahead to
the 14th Five-Year Plan, the Company will respond to the great call of
“socialism by action”, adhere to the general policy of seeking progress in
a stable manner, actively implement the new energy security strategy of
“Four Revolutions and One Cooperation”, and strive to put into practice
the development strategy of China Energy, namely “one goal, three types,
five improvements, and seven first-class”. The Company will give priority
to efficiency and act within its means, vigorously implement its innovation-
driven development strategy, promote the optimization of its industrial
structure, comprehensively enhance its value-creating capability,
continuously improve its profitability and make greater contributions to
China Energy'’s efforts in building a world-class energy corporation with
global competitiveness.

Looking into the future, we will continue to use the platform and resources
provided by China Energy to build a world-class professional science and
technology environmental protection company, create a featured high-
tech industry brand integrating application R&D, transformation of results
and industrialization implementation, and return to shareholders and the
community with outstanding business performance!

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would hereby like to extend our sincere
gratitude to all the Shareholders, clients and business partners for their
trust and support, and to all the management and employees for their
efforts and contributions.

%

Mr. CHEN Dongqing
Chairman of the Board
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PRESIDENT’S STATEMENT
48 4 T8 B By

Dear Shareholders:

The Group insists on following the
guidance of Xi Jinping Thought on
Socialism with Chinese Characteristics
for a new era, adheres to the leadership
of the CPC, strengthens Party building,
thoroughly implements the overall
development strategy of China Energy,
upholds the general policy of seeking
progress while maintaining stability,
conscientiously carries out the work plan
by the Board of Directors, makes every effort to embark on institutional
reform and improve quality and efficiency, actively launches market-
oriented reform, persists in being driven by science and technology
innovation, and firmly promotes the production and operation of the
Company. The Group has shown its commitment in the prevention and
control of COVID-19 epidemic and the resumption of work and production,
achieved substantial results in work safety, determined the way forward
in systematic planning, achieved the expected goals in improving quality
and efficiency, made a number of breakthroughs in the further reform in
difficult areas, and accumulated growth drivers in innovative development.

During this year, the Company simultaneously advanced epidemic
prevention and control and business development, and made every
effort to contain the spread of the epidemic and ensure work safety,
employee health and energy supply. The Company reinforced its
foundation to strengthen work safety, scientifically and efficiently promoted
the construction of manufacturing operations, took up the challenge in
marketing, accelerated the development of key technologies, mapped out
new paths for high-quality development, vigorously promoted compliance
capacity building, and exercised full and strict governance over Party
members. In particular, Longyuan Environmental Hanchuan Company
has made all-out efforts to ensure the supply of energy on the anti-
epidemic frontline, completing the task of power supply in Wuhan during
the COVID-19 outbreak with high quality; in the explosion of installed wind
capacity, United Power carried out a 100-day campaign to ensure the
supply, fully completed the production of wind turbines put into operation
by China Energy this year, and ensured the successful completion of
China Energy’s “5 million plus” plan in new energy. United Power’s
Kangbao Phase | 50MW wind power project was successfully connected
to the grid, and Longyuan Environmental’s reform experience was selected
into the case book of “Double-hundred Actions” on Reform of State-owned
Enterprises.
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PRESIDENT'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

In addition, the Company’s achievements in science and technology
innovation stood out this year. 21 scientific and technological achievement
were commercialized in 2020. The project of Prime Minister’s Fund
undertaken by Longyuan Environmental was successfully completed and
the Ministry of Ecology and Environment sent a letter of commendation
for it; the subsidiaries have presided over or participated in national-level
research projects such as “R&D and industrial demonstration of metal
recovery and carrier reuse technology for waste environmental protection
catalysts”, “Analysis of the whole process of detecting ammonia use and
emissions from coal-fired power plants”, and “The first DCS instrumentation
and control system for Hualong | fusion technology nuclear power plant in
China and its demonstration application”; United Power’'s “Energy Matrix-
based Energy Internet Platform Solution” has won the second prize in
the finals of the China Industrial Internet Competition; Guoneng I&C’s
“IMS Intelligent Control System” was appraised to be at the “international
leading level”, and “Wind Power Variable Pitch Propeller Technology
Innovation Centre” was approved by the Hebei Provincial Department of
Science and Technology for establishment; Lucency was successfully
approved as a Beijing Enterprise Technology Centre, and“Whole-plant
Water Saving and Emission Reduction and Intelligent Water Management
Technology” was selected into the “Beijing Water Pollution Prevention and
Control Technology Catalogue (2020)”.

Year 2021 marks the start of the 14th Five-Year Plan; it's also the year in
which the Company will strive to promote market-oriented reforms and
create a world-class professional technology and environmental protection
company. The Group will adhere to the new development philosophy,
actively implement the new energy security strategy of “Four Revolutions
and One Cooperation”, uphold the general policy of seeking progress in a
stable manner, keep a close eye on the “two profits and four rates” (the “two
profits” are net profit and total profit, and the “four rates” are operating
margin ratio, asset-liability ratio, R&D investment intensity and overall labor
productivity), follow the overall leadership of the CPC, comprehensively
deepen the market-oriented reform, vigorously implement the innovation-
driven strategy, optimize resource allocation, promote the Company’s
high-quality development, enhance its service and protection capabilities
for the main business of China Energy, and make greater contributions to
China Energy'’s efforts in building a world-class energy corporation with
global competitiveness.

33

Mr. ZHANG Jun
General Manager
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFMBHE

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
RMB000  RMB00O0  RMBO00 — RMB000  RMB’000
ABEFT AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFRT
(restated)  (restated)
(Eit) (Eit)
Continuing operations BEREER
Revenue ey 15,893,049 11,703002 11,411,780 11,691,038 15,624,478
Profit/(loss) before taxation from REFBELEEB 2
continuing operations AT,/ (F8) 529,340 627,415 59,661 -149,515 204,935
Income tax g 123500 -180,936 16,965 ~ -297,537  -249,368
Profit/(loss) for the year from AERERFELEERY
continuing operations I/ (&18) 405,840 446,479 42696 -447,052 -44,433
Discontinued operation BARILREER
(Loss)/profit for the year from AERBEKREE
a discontinued operation X% (518) /FE -134,089  -355,709 155,059 = -
Profit/(loss) for the year AEWE/(FR) 271,751 90,770 112,363 -447,052 -44,433
Attributable to: BER
Equity shareholders of the Company ARrERBRR 320,672 43,703 114,087  -289,688 57,123
Non-controlling interests FEERR -48,921 47,067 1,724 157364  -101,556
Profit/(loss) for the year FEWEH(FE) 271,751 90,770 112,363  -447,052 -44,433
Basic and diluted SREARBERT(FB)
earnings/(loss) per share (RMB cent) (M AR % 5I7R)
- Continuing and discontinued operations 48484 £ BMD R IFELEH 5.29 0.72 1.88 -4.78 0.94
- Continuing operations -FECeEY 7.48 6.55 -0.68 -4.78 0.94
- Discontinued operation -BRIEHEEER 219 -5.83 2.56 = -
Total non-current assets FrBEELE 11,885,088 10,851,227 11,534,104 11,930,118 13,233,455
Total current assets B EEEE 28,333,291 24,757,023 22,623,310 22,883,194 23,549,275
Total assets BERE 40,218,379 35608250 34,157,414 34,813312 36,782,730
Total current liabilities BB EEE 25,489,235 21,964,491 21,156,406 20,277,171 22,472,065
Total non-current liabilities FnBaELEE 6,660,589 5710494 5257836 6974423 6,166,527
Net assets BEFE 8,068,555 7,933,265 7,743,172 7561718 8,144,138
Total equity attributable to equity FRERADEER
shareholders of the Company Btk Fapt 4992176 4864544 4769484  4766,114  5577,450
Non-controlling interests RS 3076379 3068721 2973688 2795604 2,566,688
Total equity A 8,068,555 7,933,265 7,743,172 7561718 8,144,138
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Certain statistical data and other information relating to the PRC and
the industries in which the Group operates contained in, for instance,
the section headed “Key Industry Developments” in this report, have
been derived from various publicly available official publications. The
Company believes that the sources of these data are appropriate and has
taken reasonable care in extracting and reproducing such information.
The Company has no reason to believe that such information is false
or misleading or that any fact has been omitted that would render
such information false or misleading. The information has not been
independently verified by the Company or any other relevant party. The
Company makes no representation as to the accuracy of the information
contained in such sources, which may not be consistent with other data
compiled within or outside the PRC. Accordingly, these data may not be
accurate and the information should not be unduly relied upon for your
investment in the Company.

This report contains certain forward-looking statements and information
relating to the Group or the Company that are based on the belief and
assumptions of the management of the Company. The words “anticipate”,
“believe”, “expect”, “going forward” and similar expressions, as they relate
to the Company, the Group or the Company’s management, are intended
to be identified as forward-looking statements. Such statements reflect
the current views of the Company’s management with respect to future
events and are subject to certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions.
Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should
underlying assumptions prove incorrect, the Group’s business, financial
condition and operating results may be adversely affected and may
vary materially from those described herein as anticipated, believed or
expected.

INDUSTRY AND BUSINESS OVERVIEW IN 2020
Key Industry Developments

In 2020, faced with the risks and challenges arising from the new
economic development paradigm, the Chinese Government has
introduced new regulations and policy measures applicable to China’s
electricity and electricity-related industries.

For purpose of this report, PRC refers to the People’s Republic of China,
excluding Taiwan, Macao Special Administration Region and Hong Kong
Special Administration Region.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BEEmEDN (&)

Set forth below are the key regulations and policy initiatives issued by the
PRC government and other relevant regulatory authorities in 2020 that are
expected to have a material effect on the Group’s businesses, operations
and financial conditions:

1. On 20 January 2020, the Ministry of Finance, the National
Development and Reform Commission (“NDRC”) and the National
Energy Administration (“NEA”) jointly issued the “Opinions on
Promoting the Healthy Development of Non-hydro Renewable
Power Generation (Draft for Comments) (“Opinion I”).

Opinion | points out that wind power, photovoltaic power and
other renewable energy sources have basically possessed the
conditions for price parity with coal power and other traditional
energy sources, and putting forward opinions on promoting the
healthy and stable development of non-hydro renewable energy
power generation. The opinions include: 1) to determine the scale
of new subsidy projects by revenue; 2) to fully guarantee the
continuity of the policy and the reasonable income of the stock
projects; 3) to fully implement green power certificate trading; 4)
to continuously promote price rebate of onshore wind power; 5)
to allocate new projects through a competitive mechanism; 6) to
simplify the management of the catalogue system; 7) to clarify the
main responsibility for subsidy payment; 8) to allocate subsidy
funds on an annual basis; 9) to encourage financial institutions
to support enterprises included in the list of subsidized power
generation projects in accordance with market-based principles.

On the same day, the Ministry of Finance, the NDRC and the NEA
issued the “Notice on the Management of Renewable Energy
Tariff Surcharge”, specifying the method of accounting for and
distributing subsidies for unfinished projects and new projects,
making adjustments to the method of measuring the demand for
subsidies by grid enterprises and relevant provincial departments,
and stipulating that expenditure should be determined by revenue
while cutting costs and increasing income.

The above two policies were issued to further promote the
development and use of renewable energy, regulate the
management of renewable energy tariff surcharge, and enhance
the efficiency of the use of renewable energy subsidies.

On 20 October 2020, the Ministry of Finance, the NDRC and the
NEA issued another supplementary notice on matters related to
the “Opinions on Promoting the Healthy Development of Non-hydro
Renewable Power Generation”, putting forward new management
requirements for wind power, photovoltaic power and other
non-hydro renewable energy resources and clarifying relevant
operational rules, all of which will have a certain impact on the
unfinished projects of onshore wind power.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (C

The tightening of subsidy policy will not affect the development
prospects of the onshore wind power market, but may affect the
profitability of the unfinished projects to a certain extent.

On 23 January 2020, the NEA issued the “Matters Relating to the
Construction of Wind Power and Photovoltaic Power Generation
Projects in 2020 (Draft for Comments)”. According to the draft,
the content of the 2020 wind power project construction program
mainly involves three aspects: actively promoting the construction
of grid parity projects, orderly promoting the construction of
projects requiring state financial subsidies, and actively supporting
the construction of decentralized wind power projects.

On 10 March 2020, the NEA issued the “Notice on Matters
Relating to the Construction of Wind Power and Photovoltaic Power
Generation Projects in 2020”, specifying that China will actively
promote the construction of grid parity projects, orderly promote
the construction of projects requiring state financial subsidies,
actively support the construction of decentralized wind power
projects, steadily promote the construction of offshore wind
power projects, comprehensively realize the conditions for power
transmission and consumption, strictly monitor information on
project development and construction, and conscientiously carry
out the reforms to delegate power, streamline administration and
optimize government services.

The release of the above two policies has further regulated the
market for the construction of renewable energy projects and
created a favourable environment for the development of wind
power in China, which is conducive to the sustainable development
of the Group’s wind turbine manufacturing business.

On 18 June 2020, the NDRC and the NEA issued the “Guiding
Opinions on Ensuring Energy Security in 2020” (“Opinion II”),
which states that the flexibility of the energy system should be
improved, energy security risk control should be strengthened, and
national energy security should be guaranteed.

Opinion |l proposes to continuously build a diversified electricity
production system. China will support the vigorous development
of clean energy power generation, accelerate the cutting of wind
power and photovoltaic power generation subsidies, promote the
completion of a number of wind power and photovoltaic power
generation projects for grid parity, scientifically and orderly
advance the development of hydropower in key river basins, and
create an integrated renewable energy base for hydro, wind, and
photovoltaic power. In 2020, the installed capacity of conventional
hydropower plants reached around 340 million kW, and the
installed capacity of wind power and photovoltaic power plants
both reached around 240 million KW.
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Opinion Il requires the promotion of the clean and efficient use
of coal. China will promote the ultra-low emission and energy-
saving reconstruction of coal-fired power plants, implement the
comprehensive reconstruction of coal-fired boilers for energy
conservation and environmental protection, innovate clean and
efficient utilization technologies and equipment, accelerate the
research and development and promotion of clean and efficient
technologies, push forward the utilization of coal in a graded
manner, and further improve the efficiency of clean coal utilization.

Opinion Il requires the enhancement of energy conservation to
improve energy efficiency. China will improve energy conservation
in key areas such as industry, construction, transport and public
institutions, organize key energy conservation projects and carry
out energy-saving reformation.

The release of Opinion Il is expected to benefit the Group’s wind
turbine manufacturing, environmental protection and energy saving
businesses.

On 22 June 2020, the NEA issued the “Guiding Opinions on
Energy- related Tasks in 2020” (“Opinion llI"), stating that the
country’s target for installed non-fossil energy generation capacity
in 2020 is expected to reach around 900 million kW.

Opinion Il states that China will insist on directing its efforts
towards clean and low-carbon energy, accelerate the clean and
efficient use of fossil energy, vigorously promote the development
of non-fossil energy, continuously increase the proportion of clean
energy at the consumption stage, and promote its transformation
towards green and low-carbon development.

Opinion Il states that non-fossil energy sources will continue to be
developed. China will implement the “Notice on Matters Relating to
the Construction of Wind Power and Photovoltaic power projects
in 2020”, and maintain a reasonable scale and development
pace for wind power and photovoltaic power generation. The
country will promote the construction of centralized wind power,
photovoltaic power and offshore wind power in an orderly manner,
and accelerate the development of distributed photovoltaic power
and decentralized wind power in the central-eastern and southern
regions. It will also actively promote grid parity for wind power and
photovoltaic power generation.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (C

Opinion Il states that the shortcomings in energy technology
and equipment should be tackled with greater vigour. China
will strengthen the construction of energy technology innovation
platforms, select a number of first units (sets) of major technical
equipment and promote the demonstration of them. China will
improve coordination, resource allocation, policy guarantee,
assessment and adjustment to ensure that the shortcomings
in technologies and equipment will be “tackled with clarified
responsibility, project feasibility and process that can be tracked”.
China will rely on the construction of demonstration projects to
promote the independent innovation demonstration and application
of thermal power DCS control systems, ultra-high voltage AC and
DC sleeves, high temperature materials for ultra-supercritical
power units, and high-power power electronic devices.

The release of Opinion Il is conducive to the development of the
clean energy industry and will bring about a favourable business
environment for the Group’s wind turbine manufacturing business
and electronic information business.

On 6 August 2020, the Comprehensive Department of the NEA
issued the “Notice on Carrying out Special Supervision of Wind
Power Development and Construction” (“Notice”).

The Notice points out that in order to fully implement the Renewable
Energy Law of the PRC and wind power management policies
and promote the high-quality development of the wind power
industry, special supervision of wind power development and
construction will be carried out in accordance with the NEA 2020
energy regulatory priorities. The focus of supervision includes the
implementation of wind power planning and annual construction
programs, the implementation of wind power industry policies,
project approval and construction, fair access to the power grid,
and the implementation of project construction standards.

The Notice further regulates the order of wind power development,
optimizes the environment for wind power construction and
operation, and continues to promote the high- quality development
of the wind power industry.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BEEmEDN (&)

6. On 12 December 2020, President Xi Jinping delivered an 6.

important speech via video at the Climate Ambition Summit 2020,
which is entitled “Building on Past Achievements and Launching
a New Journey for Global Climate Actions”. In the speech,
he announced a series of new initiatives for China’s Intended
Nationally Determined Contributions. He advocated creating a new
paradigm for win-win cooperation in climate governance, forming
a new system of climate governance in which every party does
its part, and pursuing a new approach to climate governance that
highlights green recovery.

Xi Jinping announced that by 2030, China’s carbon dioxide
emissions per unit of GDP will drop by more than 65% compared to
2005, the share of non-fossil energy in primary energy consumption
will reach about 25%, forest stock will increase by 6 billion cubic
metres compared to 2005, and the total installed capacity of wind
and solar power will reach more than 1.2 billion kW.

This outlook is expected to be beneficial to the sustainable
development of the Group’s environmental protection and wind
turbine manufacturing businesses.
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Key Business Development TEERER

Environmental Protection Business RREE

As of 31 December 2020, the Group’s desulphurisation and denitrification & 220205128318 1+ * NEEEEHH B EIE

projects under construction were set out as follows:

BIERIATNRAR

Installed
Projects EHE Number capacity
HE HERE
(MW)
(1E]) Ckr)
Desulphurisation projects under construction EERRIEE 23 17,272
Including: Desulphurisation renovation projects Hrh o BRReGETRR 16 7,727
Desulphurisation renovation EPC B R BAEEPCIA B 16 7,727

projects
Newly built desulphurisation projects BRBRETRIE R 7 9,545
Newly built desulphurisation EPC Bk #TE2EPCIA B 7 9,545

projects
Denitrification projects under construction R EIEE 30 37,955
Including: Denitrification renovation projects Hep o BAESCEIRE 28 33,955
Denitrification renovation EPC projects B EGEEPCIE B 27 30,635
Denitrification renovation concession B AGEEF I B 1 3,320

projects
Newly built denitrification projects BRAE TR B 2 4,000
Newly built denitrification EPC projects BRAEETEEPCIER 2 4,000
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The models of concession operations of the Group’s environmental
protection business are categorized into three types: general concession
model, the operation and maintenance model of general contracting
for tariff (generating income from tariff on desulphurisation, and
assuming the responsibility for the supply of materials and the disposal
of desulphurisation by-products in addition to general operation and
maintenance) and the operation and maintenance model (generating
income from general operation and maintenance). As of 31 December
2020, the operating units of desulphurisation concession operation of
the Group had an aggregate installed capacity of 15,740 MW, and the
operating units of denitrification concession operation had an aggregate
installed capacity of 11,840 MW; the desulphurisation generating units
under the operation and maintenance model of general contracting
for tariff had an installed capacity of 4,040 MW, the desulphurization
generating units under the operation and maintenance model had an
installed capacity of 18,890 MW.

As of 31 December 2020, the annual production capacity of denitrification
catalysts, the key material for denitrification service of the Group was
19,000 m®. At present, the Group promotes lean production, launches the
optimized governance of the factory area of catalyst company, introduces
robot technology to improve the intelligent level of the production line,
and comprehensively improves the production capacity and quality. The
cumulative production of catalyst is 18,000 m® throughout the year, and
the qualified rate of quality inspection is 100%.

The environmental protection business has been further expanded, and
the commissioning of sludge disposal project of Changzhou Power Plant
of China Energy Jiangsu Company has been performed and put into trial
operation with mud. This is the first domestic “key technology research
of combined with 630 MW large coal-fired units resource disposal for a
variety of sludge solid waste and engineering demonstration project”. The
Company successfully won the bid for flue gas denitrification project of
Conch Building Materials Cement and achieved a new breakthrough in
non-electric field.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BEEmEDN (&)

Based on serving the national ecological civilization construction, focusing
on the national “waste-free city” construction, Yangtze River protection,
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area construction, the
coordinated development of Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region, etc., the
Company vigorously carries out new business layouts such as solid
waste coordinated disposal, wastewater zero emission transformation,
denitrification optimization, and catalyst life cycle management. The
Company also actively promotes the third-party treatment services of
pollutant, and complement mutually with the development of thermal
power enterprises to achieve a win-win situation. Besides, the Company
also comprehensively combs the research results of the national “Prime
Minister Fund”, and as entrusted by the Atmospheric Department of
the Ministry of Ecology and Environment, actively carries out follow-up
research as well as undertake research on major national special projects
on solid waste, gradually forming a new business model of EPC project
driven by testing and investigation, project research and consulting
services. The Company has taken firm steps in transformation and
development.

In terms of water treatment, the reduction and utilization of water resources
in thermal power plants under Sino-US energy technology cooperation,
a national scientific and technological project has achieved result
transformation at Guodian Zhejiang Beilun No. 1 Power Generation Co.,
Ltd, and it has become the first demonstration project of zero emission
technology of electrolytic chlorine production with the largest wastewater
treatment capacity in China.

The science and technology project of research on low-cost treatment
technology of micro-exceeded fluoride and sulfate pollutants in mine water
has achieved result transformation in Buertai defluorination project of
Shendong Branch of China Shenhua Energy Co., Ltd., which helped the
Company extend business in mine water treatment market.

The metropolitan rails and underground environment improvement
research and demonstration project has successfully completed the
record at Stated Owned Asset Supervision and Administration Commission
of People’s Government of Beijing Municipality and Beijing Municipal
Science and Technology Commission, which shall lay the foundation for
entering into area of rail transportation for the Company.

As of 31 December 2020, the Group processed approximately
195,390,000 tons of sewage (including reclaimed water) and reduced the
cumulative COD (chemical oxygen demand) emissions by approximately
26,100 tons.

In terms of acoustic treatment, based on thermal power industry, the
Company actively expanded the markets of transportation, coal and other
industries, and successively won the bids for Minhang Project of Shanghai
Electric Power Co., Ltd., Heyuan Project of Shenneng (Heyuan) Power Co.,
Ltd., Shenshuo Railway Project of China Shenhua Energy Co., Ltd., etc.
and the proportion of orders outside the system (meaning “outside China
Energy”, the same below) was 63%.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Energy Conservation Solutions Business

The business scope of Longyuan Technology, successfully obtained the
Class B qualification for engineering design environmental engineering (air
pollution prevention and control project) and the second class qualification
for environmental protection engineering professional contracting.

Guoneng Zhishen, system contract for DCS projects of Zhangzhou Units
1 and 2 of China Nuclear Control System Engineering Co., Ltd., exploring
nuclear power business; it also signed the upgrading project of the
original control system of Yangchangwan Coal Preparation Plant of China
Energy Ningxia Coal Industry Co., Ltd., making it become a demonstration
project in the field of coal preparation of domestic DCS products.

Wind Power Products and Services Business

The Group’s Wind Turbine Generator sales volumes by product type for
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020 are set forth below:
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Completed Sales (units)

Confirmed Orders

EHHEEE) as at

2020 2019 31 December 2020

CEAEFITE

202061283181t

(units)

(®)

1.56MW 15K E 11 1 586
1.65MW 1.65JKEL 0 0 30
2 XMW 2 XIKE 567 622 329
3. XMW 3.XJKE 127 19 180
4 XMW 4 XIKEL 0 0 36
Total “eEt 705 642 1,161

The Group accelerated the research and development of new products
and carried out four new product plans including UP3600-141 derivative
models, UP4200-156 models and UP5200-156 models, filling the blank
of the Company’s 5SMW product series. In order to meet the needs of
mainstream wind resources development, 12 new models such as 3
MW-156S and 3.2 MW-141T anti-typhoon models have been introduced,
enhancing the market competitiveness of the Company. The Company
completed the design certification of 3MW-140 meters ultra-high mixing
tower and obtained the design certification certificates of offshore 8MW
and 10MW units, which laid a solid foundation for future development.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BEEmEDN (&)

The Group has comprehensively improved quality services. The Group
has carried out quality supervision at the front line, and completed 92
rectification problems in total with a completion of 100%. It strengthened
the quality control at the source, and carried out the quality supervision
of the supplier’s production process. It has realized full coverage of
manufacturing supervision on 60 core suppliers, and upgraded and
improved 602 items to ensure excellent quality of the whole machine and
components.

Breakthrough has been made in wind plant construction. The wind power
project of Hebei Kangbao Zhongyi Phase | of United Power completed all
hoisting on 25 November 2020 as scheduled, and realized grid-connected
power generation on 31 December 2020, having been completed and put
into production with high standards and high quality. The United Power
Kangbao Dengyoufang project has finished the review of the power quality
report, and obtained the approval reply opinion on the access into Hebei
North Power Grid and the reply of the investment decision of the China
Energy in November 2020.

Other Business

Guoneng I&C independently developed the power trading support
system, the integrated power trading management system and other
core products. In the first half of this year, the construction of the system
framework of China Energy’s power spot market transaction management
and control system was completed, and we continued to optimise the
integrated power marketing platform according to customers’ needs.

The results of the first stage of the multi-system coal mine safety monitoring
and control system of Guoneng Longyuan Electrical Co., Ltd., a subsidiary
of the Company, were successfully accepted by the expert group of the
coal mine safety monitoring and control system of China Energy on 7 May
2020. After eight months of harsh environment of underground mines
since 2019, the system has met the design requirements in terms of
safety, stability and reliability, and some control indexes have reached the
advanced level of the industry. The overall operation is remarkable.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Stable performance in domestic market

In 2020, the Group actively responded to the epidemic, overcoming
difficulties and forging ahead. The Group signed new contracts amounting
to RMB13,891 million for the year. Including:

o A new breakthrough was achieved in external orders. The
contracts signed outside the system amounted to RMB4,524
million, accounting for 32.6%;

. United Power has made significant breakthroughs with new and
existing customers outside the system, such as China General
Nuclear Power Corporation, China Energy Engineering Group Co.,
Ltd., Concord New Energy Group Limited (“CNE”), and Beijing
Energy Holding Co., Ltd.. United Power has also signed a strategic
cooperation agreement with the Henan Branch of China Huadian
Corporation, and a new energy cooperation agreement with CNE
and Binzhou Municipal Government of Shandong Province. A total
of RMB2,192 million was signed for external orders, representing a
year-on-year increase of 132%;

o The proportion of external orders for Guoneng I&C’s variable
pitch propeller business reached a record high of over 65%. All
purchased variable pitch propellers of Sany Heavy Energy Co.,
Ltd. were products of Guoneng I&C, and the annual sales orders
reached 580 sets;

o There were highlights in the new markets. The Group’s full- year
new market signings in coal, chemicals and nuclear power
amounted to RMB1,414 million, representing a year-on-year
increase over 100%;

. Guoneng Lucency Environment and Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Lucency”), signed a water treatment contract with China
Shenhua Shendong Coal Group Corporation Limited with a
contract value of RMB678 million, making a new breakthrough in
the coal and coal chemical market;

° Longyuan Environmental signed an EPC contract with Maoming
Branch of Sinopec Ningbo Engineering Co., Ltd. for a chemical
thermal power technology improvement project with a contract
value of RMB41.39 million, further strengthening its development in
the petrochemical industry;

o Guoneng Zhishen signed a contract with CNNP Guodian
Zhangzhou Energy Co., Ltd. for the supply and engineering of non-
safety grade DCS system for #1 and #2 units, with a contract value
of RMB149 million, marking that Guoneng Zhishen’s independently
developed DCS products would be applied to the first reactor of
Hualong fusion technology, making a significant contribution to the
localization of nuclear power in China;
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BEEmEDN (&)

o Further success was achieved in new energy. The Group followed
the adjustment of energy planning in the 14th Five-Year Plan to
capture the new energy market. For the year, contracts in the
new energy sector amounted to RMB7,801 million, accounting for
56.2% of the total market share;

° United Power signed wind turbine sales and O&M services
contracts amounted to RMB5,311 million, representing a year-on-
year increase of 24.9%; and

° The EPC business of Guoneng Longyuan Power Technology and
Engineering Co., Ltd. in new energy sector reached another record
high. It has signed a number of EPC projects for new energy such
as wind power and photovoltaic power, with a total contract value
of RMB1,639 million throughout the year.

Actively expanding overseas markets

In 2020, against the backdrop of the pandemic, the Company explored
new opportunities on the basis of its cooperation with the existing key
market, reaching a contract value of RMB165 million. The subsidiaries of
the Company have been working intensively in key regional markets, and
made preliminary achievements;

° Longyuan Environmental has launched environmental improvement
projects in Taiwan Region. It has signed a contract with Ho-ping
Power Station of Ho-ping Power Company for the reconstruction
of the Simultaneous Removal of Multi Pollutant System behind the
furnace of #2 unit (1x660MW), and a contract with Mai-Liao Power
Corporation of Formosa Plastics Group for the reconstruction of the
FP3 unit (1x660MW) with precise ammonia injection;

° Longyuan Technology’s EPC plasma transformation project with
Zimbabwe Power comes into effect and has entered the design
and procurement phase;

° United Power continues to provide operation and maintenance
services for De Aar wind power project of Longyuan Power Group
Corporation Limited’s in South Africa. When the epidemic was
raging, United Power was still at the forefront, making outstanding
contributions to securing local electricity supply in South Africa;

o The DCS project unit of Unit 7 of the China Energy’s Java Power
Plant in Indonesia, executed by Guoneng Zhishen, has completed
the 168-hour test and was delivered to the owner; and

° Lucency’s desalination equipment supply for a power plant in
Pakistan has been delivered and is undergoing remote technical
guidance for testing.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (C

On the premise of performing well in the prevention and control of the
epidemic overseas, the Group continued to expand its international
business, deepen the cultivation of existing key markets, make every effort
to complete the construction of existing projects and create high-quality
model projects to promote the Company’s business development and
enhance the Group’s brand image and market influence.

Committed to technological innovation and research and
development (“R&D”)

The Group is dedicated to technological innovation and research and
development to enhance core competitiveness. The dedication of the
Group led to a number of technological achievements in the following
respects:

° Setting up a complete scientific and technological R&D system.
Until now, the Group currently operates four national scientific
R&D platforms including “National Key Laboratory for Wind Power
Equipment and System Technology”, 15 provincial scientific R&D
platforms, two post-doctoral scientific research workstations,
and one academician and expert workstation, with incomparable
scientific advantages in this regard domestically.

° The Group actively participated in the formulation and revision of
national and industry standards. As of 31 December 2020, the
Group had participated in the formulation of one international
standard, taken charge of the formulation of three national
standards, and participated in the formulation and revision of 47
national standards (which had been promulgated). The Group
has taken charge of the formulation of five industry standards
and participated in the formulation of 52 industry standards. In
2020, the Group was granted a total of 315 patents, including 61
invention patents.

° In terms of environmental protection, the Prime Minister’s Fund
project participated by Longyuan Environmental was successfully
completed and highly recognized by the Ministry of Ecology
and Environment; in terms of energy conservation, Longyuan
Technology’s high-moisture lignite plasma ignition and stable-
combustion technology was successfully put into operation at
the 300MW unit of Xilin Thermal Power Plant of Inner Mongolia
Energy Investment Group Co., Ltd., achieving oil-free ignition of
high-moisture lignite with Mt:36-40% for the first time; in terms
of new energy, the 4.8MW-156 onshore model independently
developed by United Power completed its prototype hoisting
and grid connection at the Chaganhua Wind Power Plant in Inner
Mongolia and successfully obtained the type approval certificate;
for power electronics and information technology, Guoneng
Zhishen’s autonomous combustion engine control system was
applied to the reconstruction project of Nantian 6B combustion
engine control system, and the application demonstration was
completed in Nigeria.
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I\/IANAGEI\/IENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EREARED (E)

As a result of the remarkable achievements in technological innovation
and R&D, the Group has established a strong foothold in this field and had
received a number of awards in 2020:

o United Power’s “Wind Power Intelligent Operation and Maintenance
Quantified Decision Technology and its Large-scale Application”
has won the First Prize of Science and Technology Progress in
Hebei Province;

° Longyuan Technology’s ““W’ Flame Boiler Low NOx Pulverized
Coal Combustion Technology” has won the Third Prize of Science
and Technology Progress of Shandong Province;

° United Power’s “Key Technology Research and Engineering
Application of Bidirectional Horizontal Axis Tidal Current Energy
Generator” has won the Second Prize of China Electric Power
Science and Technology Invention;

° Guoneng Zhishen’s “Research and Development of Intelligent
Power Generation Operation Control System and its Application”
has won the First Prize of China Electric Power Science and
Technology Progress;

° United Power’s “Key Technology for Intelligent Operation and
Maintenance of Large Wind Power Plants and its Application”
has won the Third Prize of China Electric Power Science and
Technology Progress;

° Guoneng Zhishen’s “Research and Development and Application
Demonstration of Autonomous and Controllable New Energy
Monitoring System” has won the Third Prize of China Electric Power
Science and Technology Progress;

° Guoneng 1&C was awarded as a Technology Innovation Centre of
Wind Power Variable Pitch Propeller Technology in Hebei Province;
and

° Lucency was awarded as an Enterprise Technology Centre in
Beijing.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ANALYSIS OF 2020 FINANCIAL RESULTS

Please read this section in conjunction with the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Analysis on consolidated results
Revenue

Consolidated revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 was approximately RMB15,624.5 million, representing an increase
of approximately RMB3,933.5 million, or 33.6% as compared with
approximately RMB11,691.0 million in 2019. As compared with 2019,
revenue from wind power products and services increased by RMB966.8
million, or 20.0%, which was mainly due to certain increase of the sales
volume and unit price of wind turbines caused by “rush of installation tide”
benefiting from wind power subsidy policy. The revenue of energy-saving
solutions business increased by about RMB2,673.1 million, or 141.2%,
mainly due to the increase of revenue from corresponding general
contracting business line of wind power plant construction caused by wind
power “rush of installation tide”.

The following table sets out the Group’s revenues by segment and as
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2020 F BTG 3 E DT

BB ARG RS — RIS E A £2020F 12 531
BIFEHAHTERE -

BHEEDT
HA

AEEHE2020F 12831 HIEFEAHBAL
BAR®E15,624 5887 - H2019FRABHAR
#11,691.08 B THELL - #3EINARY3,933.58
BITLEk33.6% ° EH2019F R EAE - REER K
RFGEBIMAEMAREI66.8F BT @ HIRL
20.0% * T EZHREEMBBERLFEHBE
- BRMIEEREREBEE —ERERERRR
B BPRERRA S RESIRAIG I AR EE2,673.1
BEILH141.2% - IMEAREERER] - FHEMN
B8 S AR AR B FE TS AR M A KRG D

TR BIETEZE2020F N 2019F12 831 IEF

a percentage of the total revenue of the Group for the years ended 31 F?ﬁz“*liiﬂ DEIAREERA KR E G ARERS UK
December 2020 and 2019, respectively: ABBD
2020 2019
(RMB (RMB
million) % million) %
(AR¥ (AR
BHET) % B&ET) %
Environmental protection and
energy conservation solutions: BR{R R ERERFT R :
Environmental protection RIREER TR 4,779.9 30.6 4,505.8 385
Energy conservation solutions BigEERIR T 5 4,565.9 29.2 1,892.8 16.2
Total &5t 9,345.8 59.8 6,398.6 54.7
Renewable energy equipment
manufacturing and services: FATB4HRRERERRYE
Wind power products and services & & & @ & AR 5,789.5 37.1 4,822.7 413
All others P E A 489.2 3.1 469.7 4.0
Total st 15,624.5 100.0 11,691.0 100.0
2020 F #&
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BEEmEDN (&)

Cost of sales

For the year ended 31 December 2020, consolidated cost of sales for the
Group amounted to approximately RMB12,669.6 million, representing an
increase of approximately RMB3,566.8 million or 39.2%, as compared
to that in 2019 of approximately RMB9,102.8 million. This increase was
primarily due to that under the influence of the pandemic and rush of
installation tide, the raw material blades and gearboxes of wind power
products and services were in short supply with significant rise of prices,
and the Company, in order to ensure the installation carried out as
scheduled, increased the input of production personnel, resulting in the
rise of labor costs; and the cost of general contracting business of power
station construction in energy-saving solutions greatly increased.

The following table sets out the Group’s cost of sales by segment and as
a percentage of total cost of sales of the Group for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019, respectively:

HERK

NEEEE2020F12A31HILFEEAHFHERA
HABAREE12,669.6 EE T + B2019FRHALA
R¥9,102.8E & TIE ML AARKES 566.8E F T
5039.2% - MM EZREARHNZEERI1BE
R REERERBEBHRMEIER K
WAL - BRABLEA - ARAARAR
PR anHRETT - IMRKEEABRA - AR
INEF : RETREFRA T RP M B UER B AP E
TSR AR R IR A ©

T&RD BIEFE ZE2020%F K2019F 12 A31H 1E%
DEE DR EBHEEN AR EEAREES G185
EXNAHBEDLL

2020 2019
(RMB (RMB
million) % million) %
ARH (AR
E &) % B&Z7T) %
Environmental protection and
Energy conservation solutions: BRR R EIgEMFRAR !
Environmental protection IRIRARR T2 3,526.5 27.8 3,564.5 39.2
Energy conservation solutions ERRERRR T 5 4,238.2 33.5 1,602.5 17.6
Total &t 7,764.7 61.3 5,167.0 56.8
Renewable energy equipment
manufacturing and services:  AIB4ERERRERER R
Wind power products and services BB E MRS 4,630.0 36.5 3,626.2 39.8
All others P H At 274.9 2.2 309.6 3.4
Total st 12,669.6 100.0 9,102.8 100.0
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (C

Gross profit and gross profit margin

For the foregoing reasons, gross profit of the Group in 2020 amounted
to approximately RMB2,954.9 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB366.7 million, or 14.2%, as compared to that in 2019
of approximately RMB2,588.2 million. The average gross profit margin
decreased from 22.1% in 2019 to 18.9% in the correspond period in 2020.
The decrease in gross profit margin was partially due to the decrease in
the gross profit margin of two business sectors, namely energy-saving
solutions and wind power products and services, both of which were
related to the increase in the cost of related raw materials or equipment
caused by the wind power “rush of installation tide”.

The following table sets out the Group’s gross profit and gross profit

TINUED)

N
BEESmED (&)

EFAIREFE
SR EMERE - REE2020FHEF L AARE
2,954 9B BT ' H2019FHARKE2, 58820 E
TR RO ARKEI66.7GETHK14.2% @ F
HERRH2019F 7922.1%58. 0 2 20204F [F B 79
18.9% ° EF KRG X EHRENEMRR T ZFR
=m MRS MIREBHENEKEE - HEERAE
H’* L B BURB R R SRR A LA -

T&RD BIEFE Z£2020%F K 2019F 12 A31H 1H%

margin by segment for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, 7 EF&| D HIAREBEFFMEFR =X
respectively:
2020 2019
(RMB million) % (RMB million) %
(AEH (AR
E&) % B&Z7T) %
Environmental protection and
Energy conservation solutions: RR R EIgEMFRAR !
Environmental protection IRIRARR T2 1,253.4 26.2 941.3 20.9
Energy conservation solutions ERRERRR T 5 327.6 7.2 290.3 15.3
Renewable energy equipment
manufacturing and services ATEE R AERER R
Wind power products and services B 2 M AR 1,159.6 20.0 1,196.5 24.8
All others P H At 214.3 43.8 160.1 34.1
Total st 2,954.9 18.9 2,588.2 221
Other revenue Hti A

Other revenue of the Group decreased by approximately RMB7.8 million,
or 2.4%, from approximately RMB323.1 million for 2019 to approximately
RMB315.3 million for 2020, which was primarily due to the decrease in
interest income from amortization of unrecognized financing income as at
year end.

20204  XEEEMKAHNARKI15.38E
TC  B2019F MM ARKI231BETTRIHOA
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BEEmEDN (&)

Other income

Other income of the Group for 2020 was approximately RMB22.7 million,
while other income for 2019 was approximately RMB155.9 million,
representing a decrease of approximately RMB133.2 million, or 85.4%,
which was primarily due to the recognition of net gains of RMB141.4
million on disposal of concession assets due to the early termination of the
service concession agreement of Taiyuan Lucency sewage Treatment Co.,
Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company on 2019.

Other expenses

Other expenses of the Group increased by approximately RMB111.3
million or 100%, which was mainly due to the compensations accrued for
two arbitrations, Huajian Water and Laiyuan Suntine. For details, please
refer to the announcements of the Company on 26 February 2020, 25
March 2020 and 24 February 2021.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses of the Group decreased by
approximately RMB89.7 million or 7.6%, from approximately RMB1,184.6
million for 2019 to approximately RMB1,094.9 million for 2020, which was
primarily due to the decrease of sales service fee of wind power products.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group decreased by approximately
RMB104.7 million or 7.1%, from approximately RMB1,485.1 million for
2019 to approximately RMB1,380.4 million for 2020, which was mainly due
to the strong recovery of receivables this year and a significant decrease
of impairment loss.

Operating profit

As a result of the foregoing factors, the operating profit of the Group
increased by approximately RMB308.7 million, or 77.6%, from
approximately RMB397.6 million for 2019 to approximately RMB706.3
million for 2020.

Finance costs

Finance costs of the Group decreased by approximately RMB19.2 million,
or 3.2%, from approximately RMB592.9 million for 2019 to approximately
RMB573.7 million for 2020, which was mainly due to the decrease of
interest expenses of bank and other loans resulting from the drop of
capital cost.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Profit/(Loss) before taxation

As a result of foregoing factors, loss before taxation of the Group increased
by approximately RMB354.4 million or 237.1%, from approximately loss of
RMB149.5 million for 2019 to approximately profit of RMB204.9 million for
2020.

Income tax

Income tax of the Group decreased by RMB48.1 million or 16.2% as
compared to last year resulting from the increase of current income tax
of RMB121.6 million offsetting by the drop of deferred tax of RMB169.8
million. The increase of current income tax was mainly attributable to
rise of taxable profit and partial reversal of tax recoverable. Deferred
tax for current year decreased mainly attributable to the decrease of
derecognition of certain deferred tax assets as compared to last year. The
effective income tax rate of the Group for current year was 117.7% mainly
resulted from unused tax losses and temporary differences not recognised
for certain losses making subsidiaries of which taxable profits will unlikely
be available in the foreseeable future.

Loss for the year

As a result of the foregoing factors, the Group recorded loss for the year
of approximately RMB44.4 million in 2020, decreased by approximately
RMB402.7 million, or 90.1%, compared with a loss of RMB447.1 million in
2019.

Loss attributable to non-controlling interests

Loss attributable to non-controlling interests of the Group decreased by
approximately RMB55.8 million, from approximately RMB157.4 million for
2019 to approximately RMB101.6 million for 2020, which was mainly due to
the decrease of the loss of the subsidiary that has material non-controlling
interests.

Profit/(loss) attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

As a result of the foregoing factors, profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company was approximately RMB57.1 million for
2020, and the loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
approximately RMB289.7 million for 2019.

(CONTINUED)
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BEEmEDN (&)

Analysis of segment results

The following table sets out the Group’s revenue, gross profit and
operating profit of each business segment as a percentage of the total
revenue, gross profit and operating profit of the Group for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019, respectively:

DEPREDN

TR RIS E Z2020F 22019F 12 A31H IEA
EENDBRA - EFFELFBEARE B EHE
FAEEAEERA - ERMEEFBRENE D
b -

2020 2019
(RMB (RMB

million) % million) %

AR#® N

B&T) % B&Z7T) %
Environmental protection and

energy conservation solutions RREREIREMRRT R
Environmental protection: IRIRABRTER -
Revenue WA 4,779.9 30.6 4,505.8 385
Gross profit el 1,253.4 42.4 941.3 36.4
Operating profit T 736.5 104.4 614.8 154.6
Energy conservation solutions:  HEifSffRA = :
Revenue A 4,565.9 29.2 1,892.8 16.2
Gross profit el 327.6 11.1 290.3 11.2
Operating profit T 137.0 19.4 84.1 21.1
Renewable energy equipment
manufacturing and services ATEERERRE

Wind power products and services: R EE M ART
Revenue A 5,789.5 37.1 4,822.7 413
Gross profit EH 1,159.6 39.2 1,196.5 46.2
Operating loss KB TE (253.3) (35.9) (265.3) (66.7)
Environmental protection and energy conservation solutions RAREBERRAR
Environmental protection solutions BIREERTTE
Revenue WA

Revenue from the environmental protection business increased by
approximately RMB274.1 million or 6.1%, from approximately RMB4,505.8
million for 2019 to approximately RMB4,779.9 million for 2020. The
increase was mainly attributable to the increase of amount and revenue
of denitrification EPC projects with the orderly progress of 58 general
contracting projects as scheduled as the Group has overcome the impact
of the pandemic.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following table sets out the revenues from each business line of the
Group’s environmental protection business, each as a percentage of the
revenue from this business, for the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019, respectively:

(CONTINUED)
EEEMmESIT(E)

T&RD BT E E£2020%F K 2019F 12 A31H LR
EERREBHSEFEHBRA  ARZTBEZ
EBWANE S

2020 2019
(RMB (RMB
million) % million) %
ARH AE#E
B&ET) % BZ7T) %
Desulfurization il 2,340.9 49.0 1,955.6 43.4
Denitrification iR 943.3 19.7 730.7 16.2
Low NO, combustion equipment ERMRBERR 59.9 1.3 48.4 1.1
Water treatment KRR 1,151.4 241 1,013.2 225
Ash removal FrEE 169.0 3.5 626.0 13.9
Coal yard renovation and smoke
plume treatment 5 s KR 1 115.4 2.4 131.9 2.9
Total wEt 4,779.9 100.0 4,505.8 100.0
Cost of sales HEXAK

Cost of sales for the environmental protection business of the Group
decreased by approximately RMB38.0 million or 1.1%, from approximately
RMB3,564.5 million for 2019 to approximately RMB3,526.5 million
for 2020. The revenue from this business line increased, but the cost
decreased slightly. It was mainly due to that the subsidiaries of the
Group’s environmental protection business strengthened project cost
control and implemented long-term procurement, resulting in a decrease
in procurement costs.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

As a result of the foregoing reasons, gross profit attributable to the
environmental protection business increased by approximately RMB312.1
million, or 33.2%, from approximately RMB941.3 million for 2019 to
approximately RMB1,253.4 million for 2020. Average gross profit margin
for this business increased from 20.9% in 2019 to 26.2% in 2020.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BEEmEDN (&)

The following table sets out the changes of the gross profit margin for the
business lines comprising the Group’s environmental protection business
for the year ended 31 December 2020 compared with that for the year
ended 31 December 2019:

TREFNEE2020F 12 A31H I FEBRXAER
IRIREBWERFERN X EHE E£2019F12H31H
I FERLREE

2020 2019
(%) (%)
Desulphurisation RAR 229 22.3
Denitrification ke 39.9 315
Low NOx combustion equipment RIS 19.2 0.7
Water treatment IKBRER 25.4 16.4
Ash removal MREE 21.6 16.4
Coal closure renovation and plume treatment 5 MU SR TR 11.5 14.6
Energy conservation solutions BIRERRARTT R
Revenue BA

Revenue attributable to the energy conservation solutions business
increased by approximately RMB2,673.1 million or 141.2%, from
approximately RMB1,892.8 million for 2019 to approximately RMB4,565.9
million for 2020. Among them, the revenue of general contracting business
line of power station construction increased significantly, which was mainly
due to that the contract object amount of EPC general contracting for the
wind power projects construction on progress and certain new wind power
projects this year were relatively large, resulting in the increase of realized
revenue recognized according to the project progress compared with the
previous year.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following table sets out the revenues from the business lines of the
Group’s energy conservation business, each as a percentage of revenue
from this business, for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
respectively:

TINUED)

(CON
BEESmED (&)

TR BIETEZE2020F X 2019F12831H ILF
EALEEGREERPSEBEHBA - LEEE
12 EBRANE DL

2020 2019
(RMB % (RMB
million) % million) %
(ARH (AR
B&ET) % B5#T) %
Plasma-assisted coal ignition and
combustion stabilization SRR T RSN R ABMR 199.2 4.4 214.3 11.3
Energy conservation service Dﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ% 300.6 6.6 313.7 16.6
General contracting for power
stations BIERAEE 4,055.5 88.8 1,333.1 70.5
Comprehensive utilization and
renovation of boiler RS A M B ReE 10.6 0.2 31.7 1.6
Total HeEt 4,565.9 100.0 1,892.8 100.0
Cost of sales HEKAR

The cost of sales of the Group’s energy conservation solutions business
increased from approximately RMB1,602.5 million in 2019 to approximately
RMB4,238.2 million in 2020, representing a significant increase of
RMB2,635.7 million or 164.5%, which was basically consistent with the
increase in revenue from this business line.

Gross profit and gross profit margins

As a result of the foregoing factors, gross profit attributable to the energy
conservation solutions business increased by approximately RMB37.3
million or 12.8%, from approximately RMB290.3 million for 2019 to
approximately RMB327.6 million for 2020. However, the average gross
profit margin dropped significantly from 15.3% in 2019 to 7.2% in 2020.
This was mainly due to the decrease in gross profit margin of the general
contracting business line of power station construction, which accounts
for a relatively large proportion of revenue. On one hand, affected by the
epidemic, the project construction progress was prolonged, leading to
an increase in cost; on the other hand, “rush of installation tide” led to the
rising price of craned, high-voltage cabinets and other equipment in wind
power stations, and the correspondingly expense increase, which resulted
in the decrease of gross profit margin.

REFEEREE BRI ER A 2019FNNARE

1,602.55 B LGN E2020F I AR #4,238.2

BB MBEIEINT2,635.788C8164.5% °
BERBERA EEHZEFEHPAERBE

EAR—B -
EMRERE

ER FMRE - S EBHERNN2019FHHA
R#200 .38 BT INE2020FE M4 A R #3276
BAET ENHAREI7IAETH12.8% : 8
FHEMRM2019FH15.3% K@ D 20204
#97.2% > EZARMRIRA PR R B IR RAE
EBPEBENEMNETR  —FEXRETE
IRETHELRR - KABAEN : —FAEZME
HPEREESRE oFESRETHERK
TRE LR - BRARAERIEI - TFRRK
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BEEmEDN (&)

The following table sets out the changes in gross profit margins for the
business lines comprising the Group’s energy conservation business for
the year ended 31 December 2020 as compared with the year ended 31
December 2019:

TREFEZE2020F12831 A It FEBRANER
ENBE XM XIS FER R EHE £ 2019F12H31H
I FERLREE

2020 2019
(%) (%)
Plasma-assisted coal ignition and combustion
stabilisation SEEFREE A A 28.3 211
Energy conservation services B EE AR TS 38.7 229
General contracting for power stations BINERLEE 3.9 13.1
Comprehensive utilization and renovation of boiler ~ $1E 4R & | A ki -21.4 2.8

Renewable Energy Equipment Manufacturing and Services
Wind power products and services
Revenue

Revenue attributable to the wind power products and services business
increased by approximately RMB966.8 million, or 20%, from approximately
RMB4,822.7 million for 2019 to approximately RMB5,789.5 million for 2020.
The increase in the revenue was mainly attributable to certain increase of
the sales volume and unit price of wind turbines of the Group benefiting
from the “rush of installation tide” in the wind power industry.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales attributable to the wind power products and services
business increased by approximately RMB1,003.7 million or 27.7%, from
approximately RMB3,626.2 million for 2019 to approximately RMB4,630.0
million for 2020, which was consistent with the increase in revenue from
such business with relatively significant increase. The increase was
mainly due to the increase of raw material cost for wind turbines driven
by “rush of installation tide” of wind power, which led to the rising price of
components in the upstream supply chain of wind power in China.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

As a result of the foregoing factors, gross profit attributable to the wind
power products and services business decreased by approximately
RMB36.9 million or 3.1%, from approximately RMB1,196.5 million for 2019
to approximately RMB1,159.6 million for 2020. Gross profit margin for this
business decreased from 24.8% for 2019 to 20.0% for 2020.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (C

Liquidity and source of capital

In 2020, the Group’s cash is mainly used in business operations and the
repayment of bank borrowings due.

The following table sets out the net cash flows of the Group for the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, and the cash and cash equivalents as

TINUED)

N
BEESmED (&)

RBEEMNERRR

2020  AREMBR T BEHEBLEREET
HIRTTERZ A -

TR BIEHIEE20204F %2019 12 A31H L
EALERF S REFE LN 2020F &20194 12

at 31 December 2020 and 2019, respectively: AEAKBERRE KREEEY
2020 2019
(RMB million) (RMB million)
(AB# AE#
BET) &&T)
Net cash generated from operating activities WETREELE 2 RS FE 1,816.0 1,674.6
Net cash used in investing activities WEEBEAZIREFRE (107.4) (966.9)
Net cash used in financing activities REEBFEAZREFRE (478.0) (1,000.5)
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December M12A31BHR e RBSEEY 4,373.2 3,145.4

Net cash generated from operating activities RETHEEZRESTEE

Net cash generated from the Group’s operating activities for 2020 was
approximately RMB1,816.0 million, as compared to the net cash generated
from the Group’s operating activities of approximately RMB1,674.6 million
for 2019, which was mainly due to the recovery of trade receivables.

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash used in the Group’s investing activities for 2020 was
approximately RMB107.4 million, as compared to the net cash used in the
Group’s investing activities of approximately RMB966.9 million for 2019.
The decrease in the net cash flow used in investing activities was mainly
due to the withdrawal of the structural deposits purchased in the prior
year.

Net cash used in financing activities

Net cash used in the Group’s financing activities for 2020 was
approximately RMB478.0 million, as compared to the net cash used in the
Group’s financing activities of approximately RMB1,000.5 million for 2019.
It was mainly due to the decrease of restricted deposits for issuing the bills
payable by the Group during the year.

REE2020F KA EHELENRSFENAAR
#1,816,08 87T * M2019F NEBE L L FEEL
RIS BN BARKE16746EET TERA
BAFEAEEKE TRZBUIR -

REFHERAZREESFE

AEE2020FREFDEANREFRORAR
#107.4B 8T - M2019FMIREFHEANIR
DEBOR/ARKEICIAET - REFEEAD
BEFRRL - TERHANAEBEARFYE AR
FREBENEBIETRTE -

BMEZHERAZREFE

REE020F A TEFEANRSFENAAR
BA78.0AETT * M2019FEREEBFERANERS
RN BARE10005B8T  TERAREE
REBRABNZBRRES RO MBE -
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BEEmEDN (&)

Working capital

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were
approximately RMB4,373.2 million in total, representing an increase
of approximately RMB1,227.8 million, as compared to approximately
RMB3,145.4 million for 2019. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had
total unutilized bank facilities of approximately RMB14,254.9 million.

The Group’s liability-to-asset, which is calculated as total liabilities divided
by total assets, decreased from 78.3% as at 31 December 2019 to 77.9%
as at 31 December 2020.

The Group’s net liability-to-asset (including the cash and cash equivalent
deducted in the other interest-bearing payables, interest-bearing
borrowings, and lease liabilities), which is calculated as total net liabilities
divided by total equity and total net liabilities, was 45.1% as at 31
December 2020 (31 December 2019: 50.3%).

Based on the existing cash resources and unutilized bank credit facilities,
the Directors are of the view that the Group will have sufficient working
capital to support current demand and daily operations for the coming 12
months.

Inventory analysis

The inventories were approximately RMB4,908.2 million as at 31
December 2020, which increased by approximately RMB760.3 million, or
18.3%, from approximately RMB4,147.9 million as at 31 December 2019.
The increase was primarily attributed to the sufficient provision of wind
turbine generators and work in process for the wind power products and
services segment in line with the arrival of the “rush of installation tide” of
wind turbine generators.

Trade and bills receivables

Trade and bills receivables decreased by approximately RMB1,132.5
million or 11.5% from approximately RMB9,809.3 million as at 31
December 2019 to approximately RMB8,676.8 million as at 31 December
2020. The decrease was primarily attributed to the collection of long aging
trade receivables under the increased efforts put by the Group.

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

The Group’s deposits, prepayments and other receivables increased
by approximately RMB604.2 million or 37.3%, from approximately
RMB1,617.7 million as at 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB2,221.9
million as at 31 December 2020. The increase was primarily attributable
to the increase of the prepayments for the EPC projects and purchase of
inventories for the wind power products and services segment.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(CONTINUED)
EIRE R R

i (48D

Trade and bills payables ERERREE
Trade and bills payables increased by approximately RMB774.3 million B BRI M ZE{2019F 12 F31 HIH AR

e

9,941 0B & LEMHARKET7743EELKT.8%
£2020F12A31AMKHARKE10,715.385&E T
FERERINRMEHER - LEARREER
KBRS E e R EHE FER R PR BR R R IR
hne

or 7.8% from approximately RMB9,941.0 million as at 31 December 2019
to approximately RMB10,715.3 million as at 31 December 2020, which
was primarily attributable to the increase of trade and bills payables to the
raw material suppliers, especially raw material suppliers for wind turbine

products and services.

Indebtedness

&8

The following table sets forth the Group’s borrowings as at 31 December

Ti‘%%zﬁﬂﬂzoeo&zmgimﬂ 1B AREENER

2020 and 2019: EP
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
20204 #20194F
12H31H 12H31H
(RMB million) (RMB million)
(ARH AR
BEt) &)
Long-term interest-bearing borrowings RETEMER
Bank loans: RITER -
Secured A 14.7 155.6
Unsecured R4 851.6 =
Other loans HiER 304.9 929.9
Private placement notes (unsecured) FABLEEHRE TAEEKR) 2,012.9 2,011.4
Corporate bonds NAEIESH 2,945.5 2,942 4
Sub-total Nt 6,129.6 6,039.3
Less: Current portion of long-term borrowings B REAEREBNERER (5 (1,694.4) (638.2)
Total A&t 4,435.2 5,401.1
Short-term interest-bearing borrowings EHEEMER
Bank loans: IRITER -
Secured HHER - 190.0
Unsecured R 5,106.0 5,030.0
Other loans: HMER
China Energy (unsecured) I%Kﬁ%ﬁ%‘% €32 w i) 600.0 2
Related parties under China Energy (unsecured) B aeRERME (EHKIT) - 460.0
Current portion of long-term borrowings R EAME SRRV EAER 1 1,694.4 638.2
Total A&t 7,400.4 6,318.2
Lease liabilities HEaE 132.9 128.9
Total indebtedness [EREEEE 11,968.5 11,848.2
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BEEmEDN (&)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s indebtedness increased by
approximately 1.0% from approximately RMB11,848.2 million as at 31
December 2019 to approximately RMB11,968.5 million. The proportion
of short-term indebtedness to overall indebtedness increased from
approximately 53.3% as at 31 December 2019 to approximately 61.8% as
at 31 December 2020, which was mainly due to changes in the structure
of long-term borrowings and short-term borrowings as the short-term
borrowings increased.

All of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in RMB. The following
table sets out the maturity status of the Group’s long-term borrowings
(including current portion) as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December
2019 respectively:

R2020F12A310  AEEBREHNAEARE
11,968.55 87T * LER2019F 12 A31 HMEA
HAREEA11,848.2F BITIEIN%I1.0% ° i HA
BIEGBEBEML AR 2019F12A31HHEL
53.3%E I1ZE2020F 12 A31HH4I61.8% » £ 2
EHRRAFEBEZGM - 2T REBERD
LL DI ERE -

AEBERNTANEREAARETE - TRE
FIAREE D R 2020512 A31H &2019F12A
31THRRBER(BIERNEED) EIEER

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

20205 20195

12A31H 12A31H

(RMB million) (RMB million)

(AR AR

B&ET) &)

Within 1 year or on demand 1FASIZBRKEE 1,694.4 638.2
After 1 year but within 2 years 1F A H{E2F AR 81.3 1,609.9
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F LA HBSFLAA 4,205.5 3,774.4
After 5 years 5F LA 148.4 16.8
Total &at 6,129.6 6,039.3

The effective interest rate of the Group (determined by dividing total
interest expenses for the current year by the average of the sums
of outstanding opening and closing borrowings) decreased from
approximately 5.083% for 2019 to approximately 4.85% for 2020. It was
primarily due to the increase in the proportion of short-term borrowings
during the year.

Contingent liabilities

The Group’s contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2020 primarily
consisted of bid, performance guarantee provided by the Group.

Significant investment

The Group didn‘t have any significant investment during the year ended
31 December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Material Acquisition and Disposal

On 10 January 2020, the Company entered into an equity transfer
agreement with Beijing Huadian Tiande Assets Operation Co., Ltd.
(“Huadian Tiande”), pursuant to which, the Company agreed to acquire,
and Huadian Tiande agreed to sell, the latter’s 10% equity interest in
Beijing Huadian Tianren Power Controlling Technology Co., Ltd. (“Huadian
Tianren”) at a consideration of RMB27,111,294 (the “Acquisition”).
Upon completion of the Acquisition, Huadian Tianren (Later renamed as
“Guoneng I&C") became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 15
January 2020 and 20 January 2020.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have other material
acquisition and disposal during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Market risk

The Group is exposed to various risks associated with its business
operations, including credit risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and
exchange rate risk.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash at bank and in
hand, trade and bills receivables, deposits, prepayments and other
receivables and other non-current assets. Management has a credit
policy in place and the exposure to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

Substantially all of the Group’s cash at bank and in hand are deposited
in the stated owned/controlled PRC banks which the directors of the
Company assessed the credit risk to be insignificant.

The Group performed credit evaluations on all of its customers, and
monitors outstanding receivables due from such customers on an
ongoing basis. The Group’s credit evaluation focuses on a customer’s
payment history and its ability to pay and takes into account industry and
customer-specific considerations, as well as the general macroeconomic
climate. The Group generally requires its customers to settle progress
billings and other debts in accordance with agreed contract terms.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from long-term borrowings.
Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk.

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the mix of fixed and variable
rate borrowings in order to manage its interest rate risks. During the year,
however, management of the Group did not consider it is necessary to use
interest rate swaps to hedge their exposure to interest.

(CONTINUED)
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BEEmEDN (&)

Liquidity risk

The nature of the Group’s business gives rise to significant irregularity
in its cash flow. Through regular collection of receivables and while
ensuring sound operations, thereby was able to significantly increase the
Company'’s operating cash. Meanwhile, the Group proposed to improve
its financing structure by issuing mid-term and long-term bonds and
introducing financial leasing. The Group is committed to ensuring sufficient
working capital to meet its operating needs or having access to adequate
bank credit to maintain uninterrupted operations. The Group’s cash flow
position is essential for its continuous development and expansion.

Exchange rate risk

The continued development and expansion of the Group’s international
operations is expected to result in increased exposure to exchange
rate risk, arising primarily through export sales which would typically be
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group expects that its future
export sales will principally be denominated in either United States dollars
or Hong Kong dollars. The foreign currencies assets of the Company
mainly include the Hong Kong dollars deposits and other receivables
priced in Hong Kong dollars due from Guodian Technology & Environment
Group Hong Kong Corporation Limited, a subsidiary. As there had been
an depreciation in the Hong Kong dollars against RMB in 2020, the Group
recorded an exchange loss of RMB12.9 million during the year. The
Directors of the Company consider that the Group’s exchange rate risk is
insignificant. The Group does not currently hedge against its exchange
rate risk.

RMB currently is not a freely convertible currency and the PRC
government may at its discretion restrict access to foreign currency
exchange for current account transactions in the future. Changes in such
foreign exchange controls may adversely affect the Group’s international
operations and sales, and may limit the Group’s ability to satisfy its foreign
exchange denominated obligations. In addition, the Group may be
restricted from paying dividends on its listed H shares to Shareholders by
any such policy changes.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Subsequent events

(a)

On 22 January 2021, the Company entered into an equity transfer
agreement with China Energy Capital Holdings Co., Ltd. ("Capital
Holdings”), pursuant to which, the Company agreed to sell and
Capital Holdings agreed to acquire 5% of the equity interests in
Guodian Insurance Broker (Beijing) Co., Ltd. at a consideration of
RMB46.9 million. The disposal was completed in February 2021.
Since the equity interests were recorded in the equity investments
at fair value through other comprehensive income, upon the
completion of the disposal, the accumulated fair value changes of
RMB41.9 million recorded in the other comprehensive income was
transferred directly to retained earnings.

On 25 February 2021, Longyuan Technology, a subsidiary of
the Company, granted 9,364,000 restricted shares to incentive
participants including directors (excluding independent directors),
senior management and core technological backbones serving in
Longyuan Technology at the grant price of RMB3.67 per share. The
source of the stock is the additional issuance of A-share ordinary
shares of Longyuan Technology to the incentive participants.

On 18 March 2021, Longyuan Environmental, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, China Energy Group Xinjiang Energy
Co., Ltd., Xinjiang Derun Economic Construction Development
Co., Ltd., State Grid Xinjiang Electric Power Co., Ltd. and TBEA
Xinjiang Sunoasis Co., Ltd. entered into a joint venture agreement
(the “"dV Agreement”), pursuant to which a joint venture (the
“dV Company”) will be jointly established. Pursuant to the JV
Agreement, the registered capital of the JV Company will be
RMB200,010,000 and Longyuan Environmental will contribute
RMB30,001,500 in cash towards the JV Company, accounting for
15% of the total registered capital of the JV Company. Longyuan
Environmental will inject its capital contribution by 31 May 2021.

Saved as disclosed above, as of the date of this report, the Company did
not have any material subsequent events.
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MANAGEMENTS[]SCUSSKWJAND/WM&YSB(CONHNUED)

EREARED (E)

BUSINESS OUTLOOK FOR 2021
Advancing market development

Firstly, we will take marketing strategies as the guide and improve the fine
control of the whole marketing process; we will establish the awareness of
benchmarking, strengthen the promotion and exchange of technology and
products, continuously optimize the design, enhance cost control, and
improve the quality of operation and market competitiveness. Secondly,
we will build a new marketing pattern to steadily develop the traditional
thermal power market with refined technology and better services; we
will gain more market share in new energy market through technological
innovation and model innovation; we will continue to explore business
areas such as coal mining and coal chemical industry; and we will strive to
build an integrated overseas business development model of production,
investment, construction and operation.

Promote improvement of quality service

Firstly, we will increase product quality control, establish a quality control
system with a whole life cycle, strengthen the whole process of quality
control, and perform well in quality supervision, inspection and assessment;
secondly, we will improve our qualification capacity, enhance our
execution capability, arrange the construction period scientifically, and
strictly control the quality of the entire construction process; thirdly, we will
take customer demand as the guide and continuously improve the quality
and service effectiveness.

Enhancing core technology cultivation

Firstly, we will consolidate the leading position of science and technology
innovation strategy. In accordance with the hierarchy of enhancing the
influence of the industry, building core competitiveness and ensuring
sustainable development, we will adhere to the R&D layout of “using
one generation, developing one generation, reserving one generation”,
promote the transformation and application of scientific and technological
achievements, and strengthen the creation, application and protection of
intellectual property rights. Secondly, we will improve our smart business
and accelerate the application of intellectual technology in areas such
as enterprise operation and management, product manufacturing and
engineering & construction. Thirdly, we will nurture new business in the
process of “peaking carbon dioxide emissions and reaching carbon
neutrality”.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
£5 EFMRMEEAR

Except as otherwise noted, this section is updated until the year ended 31
December 2020.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors consists of eleven Directors, including three
executive Directors, four non-executive Directors and four independent
non-executive Directors. The functions and responsibilities of the Board
of Directors include convening general meetings, reporting its work in
general meetings, implementing resolutions approved in general meetings,
ascertaining the Company’s business plans and investment plans,
preparing the Company’s annual budget and final accounts, preparing the
Company'’s profit distribution plans and proposals for the increase in or
reduction of registered capital and exercising other powers, functions and
responsibilities as set out in the articles of association of the Company (the
“AOA”"). The Company has entered into a service contract or appointment
letter with each Director.

The following table sets out certain information relating to the Directors of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2020. The members of
the fourth session of the Board of Directors were re-elected and appointed
at the 2020 first extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 7
August 2020. The current term for all the Directors will expire on 6 August
2023.

BREFRIFERR - ANEEE FE £2020F 128310 1
FZ o

Exg

EETHNEBEREN  3BRATES - 48R
TEERABBEIFNITES - EFFHORERR
B BREBRRAE  RBRRASLHREESR
ST ITRRASBENRE  BEAR
AEBFERREE  BIFTARRFERER
RE  BIFTARBFES D ZERAREMER
BRHZER  ARITEARBKRRIER)N((AT
BER))FAETOEMES - BRERBE - AAF
MEEETVTRBAEHHERE °

TERHEMBBEALFIEEHE2020612H31H
IHFFENETER - RRREHR2020F8 57H£1T
HI2020F F —REGRRER A L#ITENEES
CREMNEEREZMT - NEfTEEENTHER
20238 A6H &M °

Date of Joining

Date of Appointment /

Name Age Position the Group Re-appointment
®E Fie B A B E5 ZE/ERBH
Mr. CHEN Dongaing 55 Executive Director and 4 February 2016 Re-appointed on 7 August 2020
Chairman of the Board of
Directors
REBFLRE WITEEREEER 2016527 4H 2020F8 A7 REEE
Mr. ZHANG Jun 57 Executive Director 1 September 2004  Re-appointed on 7 August 2020
RELLE HITES 2004F9H1H 202058 A7 HEEE
Mr. TANG Chaoxiong 53 Executive Director 12 October 2015 Re-appointed on 7 August 2020
JE RS MITER 2015108128 2020F8 A7 HEEE
Mr. WANG Zhongqu 59 Non-executive Director 16 May 2014 Re-appointed on 7 August 2020
TRRELE FMTES 201458 16H 202058 A7THEEE
Mr. ZHANG Wenijian 57 Non-executive Director 16 May 2014 Re-appointed on 7 August 2020
RXERLE FRMTES 2014458 16H 202058 A7THESE
Mr. GU Yuchun 57 Non-executive Director 8 August 2017 Re-appointed on 8 August 2020
BERLE FMTES 201748 A8H 202048 A8 HEEE
Mr. YAN Andrew Y. 63 Non-executive Director 8 June 2012 Re-appointed on 7 August 2017
ko ey FMITES 201246 48H 20178 A7HEEE
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B EFEMEREEAE(E)

Date of Joining

Date of Appointment /

Name Age Position the Group Re-appointment

®E Fie B A BE8 ZE/ERBH

Ms. GE Xiaojing® 62 Non-executive Director 7 August 2020 Appointed on 7 August 2020

BgEate FHITES 202048 A7H 20205F8 A7THEZ(E

Mr. SHEN Xiaoliu 70 Independent non-executive 29 March 2016 Re-appointed on 7 August 2020
Director

B4 BIUFHITER 20164F3H29H 20204F8 A7 HEE %

Mr. QU Jiuhui 63 Independent non-executive 16 May 2014 Re-appointed on 7 August 2020
Director

fh A PR BIUFNITER 20145 R 16H 20205F8 A7 REEE

Mr. XIE Qiuye 61 Independent non-executive 16 May 2014 Re-appointed on 7 August 2020
Director

HIKEF A BIUFNITESR 20145 R 16H 2020F8 A7 HEEE

Mr. YEUNG Chi Tat 51 Independent non-executive 8 August 2017 Re-appointed on 7 August 2020
Director

BEERE BIFITESR 201748 H8H 2020F8 A7 HEEE

Note : (1) The term of office of Mr. YAN Andrew Y. expired on 7 August A&« (1) R 4k SE £ BT B0 202048 A7 A fE

2020. Due to the adjustment of personal work arrangement, Mr.
YAN did not participate in the re-election of the fourth session
of the Board of Directors. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 22 July 2020.

(2) Ms. GE Xiaojing was elected as a non-executive Director of
the fourth session of the Board of Directors and a member of
the Strategic Committee at the first 2020 extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 7 August 2020. For details,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 22
July 2020 and 7 August 2020.

Mr. CHEN Dongqing is the secretary of the Party Committee, an executive
Director and the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Mr. CHEN joined the Group on 4 February 2016. Mr. CHEN served
successively as the deputy director of the Quality and Technology Office
of the Thermal Power Construction Department and the New Energy
Development Office of the Power Construction Department of State
Power Corporation; the director of the General Office of the Engineering
& Construction Department and the deputy head of the Engineering &
Construction Department of Guodian Group; the vice general manager
of the Southern Branch of Guodian Group; the vice general manager of
Guodian Guangdong Power Co., Ltd.; and the secretary of the leading
Party members’ group and the vice general manager of Guodian Fujian
Power Co. Ltd., the deputy secretary of the Party Committee, executive
director and general manager of the Company. Mr. CHEN obtained a
master’s degree in Power Plant Engineering from Northeast China Institute
of Electric Power. Mr. CHEN is a senior engineer.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED

Mr. ZHANG Jun is the deputy secretary of the Party Committee of
the Company, an executive Director and the general manager of the
Company (the “General Manager”). Mr. ZHANG joined the Group in 1
September 2004. Mr. ZHANG served successively as the engineer, deputy
superintendent, superintendent of North China Electric Power Bureau-
Beijing Power Equipment Factory First Branch; the engineer of the Foreign
Investment Introduction Office and economist of the Multi- economy Office
of Beijing Power Equipment Factory; the manager of the Manufacture
Department and the general manager of Longwei Company of Longyuan
Electric Power Group Corporation; the manager of the Hi-tech Industry
Department of GD Power Co., Ltd.; the party group member, the assistant
to general manager and vice general manager of Guodian Technology
& Environment Group Corporation Limited (the predecessor of the
Company); the general manager of Longwei Power Generation Technology
Co., Ltd (later renamed as “Guodian United Power Technology Company
Limited”); the vice director of the Technology and Comprehensive Industry
Department of Guodian Group; the vice general manager and party
group member of Guodian New Energy Technology Research Institute;
the secretary of the Party Committee of Guodian Science and Technology
Research Institute (Environmental Protection Research Institute) and the
vice general manager of Guodian Science and Technology Research
Institute. Mr. ZHANG graduated from Chongging University and obtained
the bachelor’s degree in casting, and then graduated from Tsinghua
University and obtained the degree of MBA. Mr. ZHANG is a senior
engineer.

Mr. TANG Chaoxiong is a member of the Party Committee, an executive
Director, the vice general manager and the chief accountant of the
Company. Mr. TANG joined the Group on 12 October 2015. Mr. TANG
served successively as the deputy director of the financial department of
Sichuan Electric Power Corporation; the deputy director of the financial
department of State Power Corporation; director of the financing and
accounting division of the financial property department of Guodian
Group; the vice general manager and a member of the Party Committee
of Guodian Finance Co., Ltd.; the vice general manager and a member
of the Party Committee of China Guodian Capital Holdings Ltd.; the vice
chairman of Bank of Shizuishan Co. Ltd. and the chairman of Longyuan
Technology. Mr. TANG obtained a bachelor’s degree in finance and
accounting from Changsha Normal College of Water Resources and
Electric Engineering (currently known as Changsha University of Science
& Technology) and a master’s degree in accounting from Hunan University
of Finance and Economics (currently known as Hunan University). Mr.
TANG is a senior accountant.

)
F EFELEREEBABME)
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B EFEMEREEAE(E)

Mr. WANG Zhongqu is a non-executive Director of the Company. Mr.
WANG also serves as the chief supervisor of the Work Safety of China
Energy. Mr. WANG joined the Group on 16 May 2014. Mr. WANG served
successively as the boiler engineer at Electric Power Research Institute
in Hebei Province; the engineer and the manager of production planning
of Electric Power Industry Bureau of Hebei Province; the assistant to
the manager of Electric Power plant of Xibaipo branch of Hebei Power
Grid; the deputy manager of Hengshui Power Plant of Hebei Province;
the manager and the deputy head of the Power Plant Preparatory Office
of Hanfeng Power Plant of Hebei Power Plant; the deputy head of the
Work Safety Office of Guodian Group; the chief supervisor of the Work
Safety and the head of the Work Safety Office of Guodian Group. Mr.
WANG obtained a bachelor’'s degree in thermal energy and power from
Shandong Industry Institution and a master’s degree in power engineering
from North China Electric Power University. Mr. WANG is a professor-level
senior engineer.

Mr. ZHANG Wenjian is a non-executive Director of the Company. Mr.
ZHANG also serves as the director of the Science and Technology
Department (the Office of the Science and Technology Committee and
Major Special Office) of China Energy. Mr. ZHANG joined the Group on
16 May 2014. Mr. ZHANG served successively as the deputy head of
the Electric Usage Office; the head of the Electric Dispatch Office; the
manager of the Production Planning; the assistant of the director and the
deputy director of Hengshui Electric Power Bureau; the secretary of the
Party Committee of Hanfeng Power plant; the director of Xingtai Power
plant; the deputy head and head of the marketing department of Guodian
Group; and the head of the Technology and General Industry Office of
Guodian Group. Mr. ZHANG obtained a bachelor’'s degree in power
plant and electric power system from North China Electric Power Institute
(currently known as North China Electric Power University), and a master’s
degree from North China Electric Power University in technology economy
and management. Mr. ZHANG is a senior engineer.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED

Mr. GU Yuchun is a non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. GU
is concurrently a member of the Party Committee and the vice general
manager of Guodian Power Development Co., Ltd.. Mr. GU joined the
Group on 8 August 2017. Mr. GU served successively as the vice chief
engineer of Electric Power Planning & Engineering Institute; the project
manager of ABB ALSTOM Beijing Engineering Consulting Company;
the department director of the US-funded Pugi Saide Power Generation
Co., Ltd; the project manager and the vice chief engineer of Beijing Boqi
Technology Co., Ltd; the vice director and the director of the Electric Power
Development Department of Guodian Group North China Branch; the
general manager of Guodian Inner Mongolia Dongsheng Co-Generation
Power Co., Ltd.; the vice chief engineer of Guodian Power Development
Co., Ltd. and concurrently the general manager and the vice secretary of
the Party Committee of Guodian Construction Investment Inner Mongolia
Energy Co., Ltd; the assistant to general manager of Guodian Power
Development Co., Ltd. and the general manager and the vice secretary of
the Party Committee of Guodian Construction Investment Inner Mongolia
Energy Co., Ltd.. Mr. GU graduated from Zhejiang University and obtained
the degree of bachelor of thermal power; then graduated from Huazhong
University of Science and Technology and obtained the degree of master
of power engineering; and finally graduated from Nankai University and
obtained the degree of EMBA. Mr. GU is a professor-level senior engineer.

Ms. GE Xiaojing, is a non-executive Director of the Company. Ms.
GE concurrently serves as a partner of the SAIF Partners, a director of
Dongguan Quotient Kinematics Machine Technology Co. Ltd., Shenzhen
Unifortune Supply Chain Management Co. Ltd., Super C (Dongguan)
New Material Technology Co. Ltd., Anhui Xinzhi Digital Media Information
Technology Co. Ltd., Guangzhou Waming Intelligent Technology Co.,
Ltd. and an independent non-executive director of MOBI Development
Co., Ltd. (HK.0947). Ms. GE joined the Group on 7 August 2020. Ms.
GE successively acted as the deputy general manager and the financial
director of MOBI Development Co., Ltd. In June 2009, Ms. GE joined
SAIF Partners and was mainly responsible for investment in advanced
intelligent manufacturing, big data, energy, education, new media and
other fields. She has led successful investment in Shenzhen Orbbec
Technology Co. Ltd., Dongguan Quotient Kinematics Machine Technology
Co. Ltd., Shenzhen Unifortune Supply Chain Management Co. Ltd.,
Hujiang Education Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., Super C (Dongguan)
New Material Technology Co. Ltd., Anhui Xinzhi Digital Media Information
Technology Co. Ltd., Annuo Youda Gene Technology (Beijing) Co. Ltd.
and Guangzhou Waming Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd.. She served
as the RMB fund chief financial officer of SAIF Partners in 2014 and was
responsible for its finance and taxation, management of limited partners
and management of post-investment projects. Ms. GE graduated from
Tsinghua University with a bachelor’s degree and a master’s degree in
Electrical Engineering. Ms. GE also graduated from George Washington
University with a master’s degree in Information Management Systems.
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Mr. SHEN Xiaoliu is an independent non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. SHEN joined the Group on 29 March 2016. Mr. SHEN is
a professor of the School of Control and Computer Engineering of North
China Electric Power University, and an expert of the State Key Laboratory
of Alternate Electric Power System with Renewable Energy Resources
and the Key Laboratory of the Institution of the energy internet and power
big data of North China Electric Power University. Mr. SHEN served
successively as a technician in Shanxi Linfen Electric Power Bureau;
an engineer at the dispatching center of the Electric Power Bureau of
Shanxi Province; a teacher in the thermal power engineering teaching and
research section of the Beijing Graduate School of North China Electric
Power University; the director of the information center of the Electric
Power Bureau of Shanxi Province; and the deputy division director of the
education division of Shanxi Electric Power Company. Mr. SHEN obtained
a bachelor’'s degree in industrial automation from the Department of
Electrical Engineering of Taiyuan University of Technology, and a master’s
degree in electric power system and automation engineering from the
Beijing Graduate School of North China Electric Power University.

Mr. QU Jiuhui is an independent non-executive Director of the Company.
Mr. QU joined the Group on 16 May 2014. Mr. QU currently serves as a
researcher and the director of academic degree evaluation committee
of Research Center for Eco-environmental Sciences, Chinese Academy
of Sciences; the vice chairman in All-China Environment Federation;
the vice chairman of Chinese Society for Environmental Sciences; the
vice chairman of Chinese Society for Sustainable Development; the
vice director of the National Advisory Council on Eco-environment. Mr.
QU served successively as the deputy director and the director of the
Research Center for Eco-environmental Sciences, Chinese Academy of
Sciences. Mr. QU'’s research field focused on the science and technology
on water quality as well as water pollution control. Mr. QU obtained a PhD
degree from Harbin University of Civil Engineering and Architecture. Mr.
QU was elected as an academician of Chinese Academy of Engineering
in 2009.

Mr. XIE Qiuye is an independent non-executive Director of the Company.
Mr. XIE joined the Group on 16 May 2014. Mr. XIE currently serves as
a senior consultant of the Electric Power Planning and Engineering
Institute. Mr. XIE served successively as vice president of Northwestern
Electric Power Design Institute, deputy president and chief engineer of
China Power Construction Engineering Consulting Corporation; manager
of power generation branch of China Power Engineering Consulting
(Group) Corporation; president of Central Southern China Electric Power
Design Institute; secretary of the Party Committee and president of the
Electric Power Planning and Engineering Institute; secretary of the Party
Committee and chairman (executive director) of Electric Power Planning
and Engineering Institute Co., Ltd.. Mr. XIE obtained a bachelor’s degree
in thermal energy from Chongging University. Mr. XIE is a professor-level
senior engineer, an expert entitled to Government Special Allowance of the
State Council and a national engineering investigation and design master.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED

Mr. YEUNG Chi Tat is an independent non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. YEUNG joined the Group on 8 August 2017. Mr. YEUNG
is currently the Deputy President and Executive Member of the Council
of the Hong Kong Independent Non-executive Director Association and
a certified public accountant practicing in Hong Kong. He concurrently
serves as an independent director of New Hope Dairy Co., Ltd.
(SZ.002946), and an independent non-executive director of Sitoy Group
Holdings Limited (HK.1023) and Birmingham Sports Holdings Limited
(HK.2309). He was an independent non-executive director of ANTA
Sports Products Limited (HK.2020) from February 2007 to June 2018
and an independent non-executive director of Boer Power Holdings
Limited (HK.1685) from September 2010 to June 2020. Mr. YEUNG holds
a Bachelor’s degree of Business Administration from the University of
Hong Kong and a Master’'s degree of Professional Accountancy with
distinction from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a fellow
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
(ICAEW), the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA)
and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA), and
a Senior International Financial Manager of the International Financial
Management Association (IFMA). Mr. YEUNG has worked at a major
international accounting firm for over 10 years. Thereafter, he has served
as the chief financial officer and company secretary of various Hong Kong
listed companies. He has extensive experience in auditing, corporate
restructuring, investment, financial management and corporate finance
services.

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

As of the date of this report, the Board of Supervisors (the “Supervisors”)
(the “Board of Supervisors”) of the Company consists of five members.
Save for the employee representative Supervisors that are elected by
employees, Supervisors are elected by the Shareholders. Supervisors
serve a term of three years after which they may be re-elected or re-
appointed. The responsibilities of the Board of Supervisors include,
amongst others, reviewing and verifying the financial report, business
report and profit distribution plan prepared by the Board of Directors, and
(upon doubt, if any) appointing certified public accountants and certified
public auditors to re-examine the financial information of the Company;
supervising the financial activities of the Company; supervising the
performance of Directors, General Manager and other senior management
and safeguarding against any breach of the law, administrative regulations
and provisions of the AOA in the course of discharging their duties;
requiring Directors, General Manager and senior management to correct
actions that may harm the interests of the Company and exercising other
rights granted to them by the AOA.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
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SUPERVISORS

The following table sets out certain information relating to the Supervisors
during the year ended 31 December 2020. The members of the fourth
session of the Board of Supervisors were re-elected and appointed at the
2020 first extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 7 August
2020. The current term for all the Supervisors will expire on 6 August 2023.

B

20204F

TRIRBBAARAGIESEHZE2020F12A318 1E
FEMETER - NRAIR2020F8 A7H BHH

E-RERERAG LEENZETEN

EEEEKE - AR AAEMEESNTHER
2023F8 A6HEM °

Date of Joining

Date of Appointment/

Name Age Position the Group Election/Re-appointment

i Fie B A BHA FEER/ERAN

Mr. LUAN Baoxing 54 Chairman of the Board of 9 September 2016 Re-appointed on 7 August 2020
Supervisors

REESLL EEEXE 201659 A9H 20208 A7THEE R

Mr. XU Xingzhou 59 Supervisor 16 May 2011 Re-appointed on 7 August 2020

FrEUM S A o 2011%5A 160 20208 A7THEER

Mr. YANG Xiangbin ™ 55 Supervisor 9 September 2016 Re-appointed on 8 August 2017

T IR S 4O e 201659 A9H 201748 A8 HEEE

Mr. WANG Shaoyu® 54 Supervisor 12 June 2020 Re-appointed on 7 August 2020

FAOERED = 202066 H12H 2020F8 A7HEEiE

Mr. LI Wei® 47 Employee Representative 10 March 2008 Re-appointed on 7 August 2020
Supervisor

FREE® BIRKES 200843 A10A 20208 A7THEER

Ms. HE Lili® 45 Employee Representative 18 March 2014 Re-appointed on 8 August 2017
Supervisor

BB L BIRKES 201493 A18H 201748 A8 HEEE

Ms. QIN Xiangling® 46 Employee Representative 6 August 2011 Re-appointed on 7 August 2020
Supervisor

RMEL LW BIRKES 201148 A6H 20208 ATHEER

Notes: Hat -

(1) Mr. YANG Xiangbin ceased to be a Supervisor on 7 February 2020 due (1)
to the adjustment of work arrangement. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 7 February 2020.

(2) Mr. WANG Shaoyu was elected as a Supervisor at the 2019 annual (2)
general meeting of the Company held on 12 June 2020, and his
term of office expired at the end of the third session of the Board of
Supervisors. Subsequently, Mr. WANG was re-elected as a Supervisor
of the fourth session of the Board of Supervisors at the 2020 first
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 7 August 2020.
For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
12 June 2020 and 7 August 2020.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT

Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*

ATIELZHAE - 820206 2A78E » 5H
BMEETBETES - GUFE  S2HEAQ
AIA R A2020F2 A7THE A ©

FLOEEAERART202066 A128 BHEH
C019FRABEFAG LEBRAEARDRAE
F EHEF-EE=SEHER - Hig - £
SeERR 20208 A7H BFK2020F 5 — X ER
BREAS FEERAFNEEECESR - F
B BEELHART B A2020F6 128 K&
2020E8 A7 HHIRE o




DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED

(3) Due to work adjustment, Ms. HE Lili ceased to be a Supervisor on 6
March 2020. On 20 February 2020, the Company held a joint meeting
of employees and elected Ms. QIN Xiangling as the representative
Supervisor of employees, whose term of office commenced from 6
March 2020 and expired at the end of the third session of the Board
of Supervisors. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 6 March 2020.

(4) On 16 July 2020, Mr. LI Wei and Ms. QIN Xiangling were re-elected as
the representative Supervisors of employees of the fourth session of the
Board of Supervisors at the joint meeting of employees.

Mr. LUAN Baoxing is the Chairman of the Board of Supervisors of
the Company. Mr. LUAN joined the Group on 9 September 2016. He
concurrently serves as the Director and Party Secretary of the Finance
Department of China Energy, the director of Guodian Power Development
Co., Ltd. (600795), the director of China Energy Capital Holdings Co., Ltd.
and the supervisor of China Energy Shandong Electric Power Co., Ltd.
Mr. LUAN has served successively as Deputy Director of the Property
and Funds Office and Director of the Accounting and Cost Office of the
Finance Department of Heilongjiang Electric Power Co., Ltd.; Deputy
Director and Director of the Accounting and Cost office of the Finance
Department of Northeast China Electric Power Group; Deputy Director
of the Finance Department of the Guodian Northeast Electric Power Co.,
Ltd.; Deputy Chief Accountant and Director of the Finance Department
of Chongqging Electric Power Company; Deputy Director of the Property
Rights and Finance Department, Deputy Director of the Capital and
Property Rights Management Department of Guodian Group Corporation;
General Manager and Deputy Secretary of the Leading Party Members’
Group of the Guodian Capital Holdings Co., Ltd.; Chairman, General
Manager and Deputy Secretary of the Leading Party Members’ Group
of Guodian Finance Co., Ltd.; Chairman of Guodian Finance & Leasing
Co., Ltd.; Director of Finance Management Department of Guodian Group
Corporation; and Director and Party Secretary of the Finance Department
of China Energy. Mr. LUAN graduated from Heilongjiang University with a
bachelor’'s degree in Accounting and later graduated from Harbin Institute
of Technology with a master’s degree in MBA. Mr. LUAN is a Senior
Accountant, an International Certified Public Accountant by ACCA and a
Certified Public Accountant (CPA) in China.

Mr. XU Xingzhou is a Supervisor of the Company. Mr. XU joined the
Group on 16 May 2011. Mr. XU concurrently serves as the senior business
director of China Energy. Mr. XU served successively as the deputy
director of the Labor and Salary Division, the deputy director and the
director of the Salary and Insurance Division of the Human Resources
Department of State Power Corporation; the deputy head of the Human
Resources Department of Guodian Group; the head of the Social
Insurance Center, and the head of the Human Resources Department
of Guodian Group; and the leader of the inspection team of the Leading
Party Group of China Energy. Mr. XU obtained a bachelor’'s degree in
management engineering from Jilin University of Technology. Mr. XU is a
senior economist.
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B EFEMEREEAE(E)

Mr. WANG Shaoyu is a Supervisor of the Company. Mr. WANG
concurrently serves as the Director of the Audit Department and Secretary
of the CPC Branch of China Energy Investment Group Co., Ltd. He
joined the Group on 12 June 2020. Mr. WANG has served successively
as Secretary of the Research Office, Deputy Chief, Director of the Office
in Beijing, Executive Deputy Director of the Research Office of Shanxi
Jincheng Mining Bureau; Consultant of the Policy and Regulations
Department of the Ministry of Coal Industry; Consultant of the Industry
Management Department of the State Administration of Coal Industry of
the PRC; Deputy Office Director, Manager of the Planning Department,
and Office Director of the Shenhua Coal Transportation and Marketing
Company; Secretary of the General Office and Public Relations Business
Manager and Senior Manager of the Shenhua Group Co., Ltd.; General
Office Director, Deputy Director and Director of the Shenhua Group Co.,
Ltd. and China Shenhua Energy Co., Ltd.; Director of the Office of the
Leading Party Members’ Group of Shenhua Group Co., Ltd.; Director
and Deputy Secretary of the General Office, Director and Secretary of
CPC Branch of the General Management Department of China Energy
Investment Group. Mr. WANG graduated from Tongji University with
a Bachelor’'s degree of Engineering in Surveying Engineering at the
Department of Surveying, and also graduated from Tongji University with a
Master’s degree in Management Science and Engineering. Mr. WANG is a
senior engineer.

Mr. LI Wei is an employee representative Supervisor of the Company.
Mr. LI joined the Group on 10 March 2008. Mr. LI serves concurrently
as the deputy general economic manager and the director of the audit
department of the Company. Mr. LI served successively as the deputy
director of the audit department and the deputy director of the financial
department of China National Electronic Materials Corporation; the
deputy chief accountant of United Power; and the deputy director of
the supervision and audit department and the director of supervision
department (disciplinary inspection office) of the Company. Mr. LI obtained
a bachelor’'s degree in economics from Hangzhou Dianzi University and
a degree of MBA from Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics.
Mr. LI is a senior accountant.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUE

Ms. QIN Xiangling, is an employee representative Supervisor of the
Company. Ms. QIN joined the Group on 6 August 2011. Ms. QIN serves
concurrently as the director of the Department of Securities Financing
and Legal Affairs (the Board of Directors Office) and the vice general
counsel of the Company. Ms. QIN successively served as the translator
of Tuoketuo Power Plant Preparation and Construction Office of Inner
Mongolia Electricity Management Bureau, the specialist of the Engineering
Department of Lake Dai Power Plant and Shangdu Power Plant Preparation
and Construction Office of Inner Mongolia Electric Power Company, the
translator of the General Office of Inner Mongolia Power (Group) Co.,
Ltd., the deputy director of General Manager Working Department of
Inner Mongolia Energy Investment Company Limited, the deputy director
of the Leading Group Office of Restructuring of Inner Mongolia Western
Natural Gas Co., Ltd., the director and office director of Foreign Economic
Cooperation Department of Inner Mongolia Energy Investment Company
Limited, the director of General Office of Inner Mongolia Guodian Energy
Investment Company Limited, the deputy manager of the General Office
(the Department of Legal Affairs), the deputy manager of the Department
of Enterprise Management and Legal Affairs and the manager of the
Department of Securities Financing and Legal Affairs (the Board of
Directors Office) of Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation
Limited. Ms. QIN graduated from North China Electric Power University
with a doctorate degree in management, majoring in technical economics
and management. Ms. QIN is a senior economist.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The following table sets out certain information relating to the senior
management of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2020
and up to the date of this report.
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Name Age Current position Date of Joining the Group

®E Fir WAL A B

Mr. CHEN Dongaing 55 Secretary of the Party Committee, Chairman of 29 March 2016
Board of Directors

REBRE EXER BEER 201643 429H

Mr. ZHANG Jun 57 Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee, General 1 September 2004
Manager

RELLE ERRIET  AKe 200459 H1H

Mr. TANG Chaoxiong 53 Member of the Party Committee, Deputy General 12 October 2015
Manager and Chief Accountant

JE RS EZZE  BIRKIE - BEsti 2015108128

Mr. ZHANG Xiaodong 45 Member of the Party Committee, Deputy General 1 November 2010

REERSEL

Manager and Chairman of the Labor Union
ELLE  RlegR IexRE

201011 A1H
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B EFEMEREEAE(E)

Name Age Current position Date of Joining the Group
®E Fir AR A B
Mr. CAl Zhaowen 52 Member of the Party Committee, Deputy General 18 March 2014
Manager, Secretary of the Board and the Joint
Company Secretary
B D BEZZE  RleKiE EFenE BEATWE  201443H18H
Mr. CHU Jingchun 44 Member of the Party Committee and Deputy General 13 July 2011
Manager
BERARRE BZZB - Bl 201147 R 13R
Mr. LI Caiyun 52 Member of the Party Committee and Deputy General 15 July 2014
Manager
FHERE BZZB - BlegE 2014 7R 15H
Mr. ZHAO Zhe® 42 Member of the Party Committee and Deputy General 1 July 2008
Manager
AR E® BEZZB - BlegE 200847 A1H
Note : (1) Mr. CAl Zhaowen tendered his resignation of roles as the  ff& : (1) ETERAR - EIEEBR202146F

vice president, secretary of the Board of the Directors, joint
company secretary and chief legal counsel of the Company
with effect from 22 January 2021 due to work adjustment. For
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 22 January 2021.

(2) Mr. ZHAO Zhe was appointed as the deputy general manager
of the Company at the third meeting of the third session of
board of directors held on 14 July 2020.

Mr. CHEN Dongqing — Please see details under the section headed “Board
of Directors” above.

Mr. ZHANG Jun - Please see details under the section headed “Board of
Directors” above.

Mr. TANG Chaoxiong — Please see details under the section headed
“Board of Directors” above.

Mr. ZHANG Xiaodong is a member of the Party Committee, a deputy
general manager, the chairman of the labor union of the Company. Mr.
ZHANG joined the Group on 1 November 2010. Mr. ZHANG served
successively as the project principal of Energy Conservation Information
Dissemination Center and the project principal of the project construction
division of the Information Center of the State Economic and Trade
Commission; the deputy director of research and consulting division
of the SASAC’s Information Center and the director of the application
and development division of the SASAC’s Information Center and the
chairman of the board of directors of United Power. Mr. ZHANG obtained
a bachelor’s degree in electric technology from Taiyuan Heavy Machinery
Institute and a degree of MBA from Beijing University of Aeronautics and
Astronautics. Mr. ZHANG is a senior engineer.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED

Mr. CAl Zhaowen is a member of the Party Committee, a deputy general
manager, board secretary, joint secretary and the general counsel of
the Company. Mr. CAl joined the group on 18 March 2014 and was
appointed as the joint secretary of the Company on 30 March 2017. Mr.
CAl served successively as the deputy general manager of Yichun Xing
Anling Wind Power Co., Ltd., Yilan Longyuan Wind Power Co., Ltd., and
Huanan Longyuan Wind Power Co., Ltd; the director of the planning
and development department and a general manager assistant and the
director of planning and development department of Longyuan Power.
Mr. CAl graduated from Tsinghua University, obtained a bachelor’s
degree with a double major in hydraulic architecture and environmental
engineering, and a master of business administration. Mr. CAl is a senior
engineer.

Mr. CHU Jingchun is a member of the Party Committee and the deputy
general manager of the Company. Mr. CHU concurrently serves as the
chairman of United Power, the director of the National Key Laboratory of
Wind Power Equipment and Control and the director of the National Key
Laboratory of Energy, Tide and Marine Power Generation Technology. Mr.
CHU joined the Group on 13 July 2011. Mr. CHU served successively as
the deputy head and the head of the Admissions Office of Students Affairs
Division, the director of the Liaison Office of the board, the deputy director
of the Party Committee and the General Manager Office, the director of
the Council Office, the director of Alumni Association Office, the deputy
director (in charge of relevant work) and the director of the University-
enterprise cooperation Office of North China Electric Power University;
the manager of General Management Department of the Company; the
secretary of the Party Committee and deputy general manager of Guodian
United Power Technology Co., Ltd.; the general manager assistant and a
member of the Party Committee of the Company and the chairman of the
board of directors of Longyuan Electrical. Mr. CHU obtained a master’s
degree in technology economy and management from the School of
Economics and Management of Beijing University of Aeronautics and
Astronautics and also obtained a doctor’s degree in technology economy
and management from North China Electric Power University. Mr. CHU is
a professor-level senior engineer.

Mr. LI Caiyun is a member of the Party Committee and the deputy general
manager of the Company. Mr. LI joined the Group on 15 July 2014. Mr. LI
successively served as the deputy director of construction site of Jiangsu
Electric Power Construction No. 3 Engineering Company; the manager
of Jiangsu Electric Power Construction No. 3 Engineering Company; the
director and the deputy chief engineer of the engineering department
of Guodian Changzhou Power Generating Co., Ltd.; the deputy chief
engineer and the deputy general manager of Guodian Taizhou Generation
Co., Ltd.; the deputy chief and chief of the engineering department of
bidding center of Guodian Group; the general manager assistant, a
member of the Party Group of the Company; the general manager and
the deputy secretary of Party Committee, the chairman of the board of
directors, the secretary of Party Committee of Longyuan Engineering and
the chairman of the board of directors of Longyuan Energy Conservation.
Mr. LI obtained a bachelor’'s degree in industrial and civil construction
from the School of Water Resources and Hydropower Engineering Wuhan
University. Mr. LI is a senior engineer.
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Mr. ZHAO Zhe is a member of the CPC Committee and Deputy General
Manager of the Company. Mr. ZHAO concurrently serves as the Secretary
of the CPC Committee and Chairman of Longyuan Environmental. He
joined the Group on 1 July 2008. Mr. ZHAO has served successively as
Project Manager of the Design Department of Longyuan Environmental;
Deputy Manager of the Technology Department of Guodian Technology
and Environment Group Corporation; Deputy Director of the Talent
Management Department of Guodian New Technology Research Institute;
Deputy Director of the General Management Office and Director of the
Compensation Management Office of the Human Resources Department,
and Director of the Leadership Personnel Management Office of the
former China Guodian Group Corporation; Deputy Secretary of the CPC
Committee and General Manager of the Longyuan Environmental; and
Assistant Director of the Operation and Management Center for Science,
Technology and Environmental Protection Industry of China Energy. Mr.
ZHAO graduated from the Environmental Engineering Department of
Tsinghua University and received a PhD in Engineering. Mr. ZHAO is a
senior engineer.

MEMBERS OF THE PARTY COMMITTEE

On 24 October 2016, a new term of the Party Committee of the Group
commenced. As of 31 December 2020, Mr. CHEN Dongging was the
secretary of the Party Committee of the Group, Mr. ZHANG Jun was
the deputy secretary of the Party Committee, Mr. TANG Chaoxiong, Mr.
ZHANG Xiaodong, Mr. CAl Zhaowen, Mr. CHU Jingchun, Mr. LI Caiyun,
Mr. GONG Zhenguang and Mr ZHAO Zhe were the members of the
Party Committee; and Mr. GONG Zhenguang was the secretary of the
Disciplinary Inspection Committee. Please refer to the following for the
resume of Mr. GONG Zhenguang. Please refer to the section headed
“Board of Directors” and “Senior Management” above for other members
of the Party Committee.

Mr. GONG Zhenguang is a member of the Party Committee and the
secretary of the Disciplinary Inspection Committee of the Company.
Mr. GONG joined the Group on 28 December 2019. Mr. GONG served
successively as the office secretary of Dadougou Mine of Datong Mining
Bureau; the assistant economist of the Office of Shuohuang Railway
Development Co., Ltd.; the supervisor of comprehensive business of
the Supervision and Audit Department, the business manager of the
Case Inspection Division of the Supervision Department, the director of
the Second Division of the Supervision Department of Shenhua Group
Corporation Limited; the director of the Audit Division and the director of
the Fourth Office of the Supervision Team of the Supervision Department of
China Energy Investment Group Corporation. Mr. GONG graduated from
Shanxi University with a major in administration and obtained a master’s
degree in public administration from China University of Political Science
and Law. Mr. GONG is a senior economist.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. CAl Zhaowen — Please see details under the section headed “Senior
Management” above.

Mr. LEE Kwok Fai Kenneth was one of the joint company secretaries
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020. Mr. LEE was
appointed as the joint company secretary of the Company on 23 August
2018. Mr. LEE is a director and head of corporate secretarial services of
TMF Hong Kong Limited and has over 20 years of experience in providing
transaction services and in financial due diligence, specializing in mergers
and acquisitions. Mr. LEE is an associate member of Hong Kong Certified
Public Accountants, a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants in the United States and a Chartered Financial Analyst.

Following the resignation of Mr. CAl as the joint company secretary on
22 January 2021, Mr. and prior to the approval of the new joint company
secretary by the Stock Exchange © LEE has acted as the sole company
secretary of the Company.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

HESWE

The Board of Directors hereby presents to Shareholders this report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020 (the “Financial Statements”).

SHARE CAPITAL

As of 31 December 2020, the total issued share capital of the Company
was 6,063,770,000 shares, which include 4,754,000,000 domestic
shares and 1,309,770,000 H shares, the total amount of share capital of
the Company was RMB6,063,770,000 and the par value per share was
RMB1.0 each. Details of movement in the share capital of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in Note 38(c) to the
Financial Statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2020.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

According to the AOA or the PRC law, there are no provisions for pre-
emptive rights requiring the Company to offer new shares to the existing
Shareholders of the Company in proportion to their shareholdings.

TAX RELIEF

The Board of Directors is not aware of any tax relief available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company's securities.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Company is principally engaged in (1) the business of environmental
protection and energy conservation solutions, and (2) the business of
renewable energy equipment manufacturing and service. The Company
offers diversified products and services and uses diversified business
models in its business operations. Details of the subsidiaries and
associates of the Company are set out in Notes 20 and 21 to the Financial
Statements.

RESULTS

The annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2020 and the statement of financial position of the Company
and its subsidiaries as of 31 December 2020 are set out in the Financial
Statements of this report.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS REVIEW

A discussion and analysis on results performance during the year ended
31 December 2020 and material factors underlying its results and
financial position and business prospect of the Group are set out in the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis section of this report. Details
of financial risk management of the Group are set out in Note 40 to the
Financial Statements.

RELATIONSHIP WITH THE CONNECTED PERSONS
OF PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

Employees

As of 31 December 2020, the Group has had 6,049 employees in total.
In accordance with the applicable national laws and regulations and
the applicable regulations of China Energy, the Group has established
a clear and transparent human resources (“HR”) system, including 28
HR rules and regulations at all levels, in order to protect the legitimate
rights and interests of the employees. The Group has established and
improved the management system of total salary based on market value
and performance evaluation. The salary of staff is composed of basic
salary, performance salary and reward salary. The performance salary
is determined on the basis of company performance and performance
evaluation, and reward salary is determined according to the completion
of the company’s annual key work. The Group will pay social insurance
premiums, housing funds, corporate annuities, etc., for the employees
strictly in accordance with applicable national and local government
policies and regulations. The Group also attaches great importance to the
selection, training, incentive and development of talents, concentrates
all kinds of superior resources on high-potential and high-performance
employees.

Suppliers

The Group requires its subsidiaries to learn from the advanced experience
in the industry, optimize the development process of qualified suppliers,
introduce excellent suppliers of leading enterprises in the industry, speed
up the verification and probation process of new suppliers, develop a
reasonable development plan and procurement proposal, and assess and
evaluate its suppliers from time to time.
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ORDERLY ADVANCING RULE BY LAW AND
COMPLIANCE

In 2020, the Group continued to further carry forward and implement
the Opinion on Comprehensively Promoting the Construction of Central
Enterprises under the Rule by Law and the Regulations on the Principal
Responsible Persons of Central Enterprises Carrying out the Duties of the
First Responsible Person in Promoting the Construction of the Rule of Law
of SASAC, the Central Enterprise Compliance Management Guidelines
(Trial), as well as the Implementation Plan for Comprehensively Promoting
the Construction of “Energy in the Country Ruled by Law”, the Regulations
on the Principal Responsible Persons of Central Enterprises Carrying out
the Duties of the First Responsible Person in Promoting the Construction
of the Rule by Law, and the Regulations on Compliance Management
of China Energy, and comprehensively enhanced the rule-by-law and
compliance construction of the Group from the aspects of strengthening
organization and leadership, perfecting the working mechanism,
cultivating the culture of ruling by law, deepening the management of
enterprises according to law, operating according to rules and regulations,
etc.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The Group requires its subsidiaries to strictly abide by national laws and
local regulations and industry standards. The relevant departments of
the Group are responsible for monitoring, supervising and inspecting
the management and implementation of laws and regulations of the
subsidiaries on a regular basis and assessing their implementation and
compliance in these areas from time to time. In 2020, the Company did not
have any event that had materially violated or had not been in compliance
with the laws and regulations applicable to the Group and had a significant
impact on the Group’s business and operation.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

As an enterprise providing environmental protection, energy conservation
and renewable energy equipment and services, the Group has always
attached importance to the national environmental protection policies
and fulfilled its social responsibility from the perspective of the survival
and development of enterprises. The Group strictly complies with the
Environmental Protection Law, the Law on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes and the Air Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of the PRC and the applicable industrial and local
environmental protection rules and regulations of each affiliate, strictly
complies with the environmental protection requirements of projects to
ensure that the environmental protection facilities and the main project are
designed, constructed, and put into production at the same time, so as to
achieve efficient operation and meet emission standards.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Take Longyuan Environmental as an example, in order to cope with the
supervision of the environmental protection facilities from governments
at all levels and ensure that the facilities for the desulfurization and
denitrification projects were operated stably and meet the discharge
standards, a series of effective measures were taken, which include
constructing the safety control system and HSE system of the National
Occupational Safety Association, carrying out standardized construction
of the operation management, carrying out regular random check of the
equipment to ensure no leakage, implementing full coverage of technical
supervision, strengthening the control of the field operation indicators and
continuing to strengthen safety and civilization standardization. These
have improved the level of standardization in the safety and operation
management of the project company in an all-round manner. In 2020,
there was no environmental violation that had a significant impact on the
Group.

As of 31 December 2020, there was no environmental event which had
a significant impact on the Group’s operational, financial or business
prospects. The above discussion forms part of this Report of the Board of
Directors.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020.

To the best knowledge of the Board of the Directors, no Shareholder has
declared or agreed to give up any dividend.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a policy aimed at providing a stable dividend
to its shareholders (the “Dividend Policy”). Under the Dividend Policy, the
Company intends to provide interim or annual dividends to its shareholders
and to declare special dividends from time to time. The Company intends
to pay dividends after taking into account, among other factors, the actual
and expected financial performance of the Company; the undistributed
profits and distributed reserves of the Group; the Group’s Debt-to-Equity
ratio, return on equity and related financial covenants; any restrictions that
may be imposed by the Group’s lenders on the payment of dividends;
the Group’s expected working capital requirements and future expansion
plans; the general financial conditions of the Group, the business cycles
of the Group’s operations and other internal or external factors that may
affect the Group’s business or financial performance and position; and any
other factors that the Board of Directors considers appropriate.
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The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend payout ratio.
The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company shall be at
the sole discretion of the Board of Directors and shall be determined in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, the Company
Law of the People's Republic of China, the Enterprise Income Tax Law
of the People's Republic of China and any other applicable laws and
regulations; and the declaration of any dividend in any year shall be
subject to the approval of the shareholders. The Board of the Directors
will keep the Dividend Policy under review and revise it as necessary to
ensure its effectiveness.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Company and its subsidiaries during the year are set out in Note 15 to the
Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Company during the year are
set out in Note 38(a) to the Financial Statements, among which, details of
reserves available for distribution to the Shareholders as of 31 December
2020 are set out in Note 38(e) to the Financial Statements.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company and its
subsidiaries as of 31 December 2020 are set out in Note 30 to the
Financial Statements.

DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The relevant information of the Directors, Supervisors and senior
management of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2020
and up to the date of this report, such as name, position in the Company
and date of joining/appointment/re-election/resignation, is set out in the
Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management section of this report.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and considers that
all of the independent non-executive Directors are independent of the
Company.

CHANGES OF INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

As at the date of this report, there is no change of information about the
Directors, Supervisors and chief executive of the Company which shall be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of Directors, Supervisors and senior management
are set out in the section headed “Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” of this report.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

Each of the executive Directors and the Supervisors of the Company
entered into a service contract with the Company on 7 August 2020, which
is for a term of three years commencing from 7 August 2020. Each of the
non- executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company on 7 August 2020, for a term
of three years, with a clause of one-year automatic renewal.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or the Supervisors
has entered into a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the AOA, every Director, Supervisor and senior management
of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or
incur in relation to the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise
in relation thereto. Besides, the Company has arranged appropriate
insurance for Directors, Supervisors and senior management in respect of
possible legal actions.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and Supervisors of the
Company are set out in Note 12 to the Financial Statements.

Details of the remuneration of five Individuals with highest emoluments of
the Company are set out in Note 13 to the Financial Statements.

PENSION SCHEMES

Details of pension schemes of the Company are set out in Note 10(a) to
the Financial Statements.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS IN
CONTRACTS, TRANSACTIONS OR ARRANGEMENTS

At any time during the year of 2020, there was no contract of significance,
transaction or arrangement related to the Group’s business in which the
Company and its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or
Supervisor or an entity connected with a Director or a Supervisor had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, which subsisted during the
year or at the end of the year.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN COMPETING ESNHRFEBNER

BUSINESS

R20206EA - BR I XFIRBES - IBEFR
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During the year of 2020, save as disclosed below, none of the Directors
and their associates had any competing interests in any business which
competed, or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group:

Name of Director

EEMR

Other Equity
HitfEs

Position in the Company
A BT

Mr. WANG Zhongqu
TRERE

Non-executive Director Chief Production Security Officer of China Energy
FEHMITES HERREE L2 ERE
Mr. ZHANG Wenjian

Non-executive Director Director of the Science and Technology Department (the

68

Office of the Science and Technology Committee and
Major Special Office) of China Energy

SRIEEA FNTES

Mr. GU Yuchun Non-executive Director

BREREERMEBERERAE

EREBERAE)EME

Member of the Party Committee and the vice general

manager of Guodian Power

BEHEELE FNTES

EZRZEB

- Bliageis

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As of 31 December 2020, none of the Directors, Supervisors and senior
management of the Company had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be registered in
the register referred to therein, or which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will
or may result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the
Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES

FERRRB M 2
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As at 31 December 2020, to the knowledge of the Directors, the persons
below have interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which are required to be disclosed pursuant to Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO (the table has been updated according to the
records of CCASS and the shareholder identification report):

Number of Shares/ Percentage in Percentage in

Underlying the Relevant Class the Total
Shareholder Name Share Category Status Shares Held  of Share Capital® Share Capital®
BFERG HERRAER EREEY
RREE/EH R 43 55 L) HERHHE ZBDLO ZBAHO
(shares) % %
() % %
China Energy Domestic shares  Interests of beneficial owner and 4,754,000,000? 100.00 78.40
controlled corporation (Long position)
HxREE NER ERlBARREDR ER (1#8)
Guodian Power Development  Domestic shares Interests of beneficial owner 2,376,500,000? 49.99 39.19
Co., Ltd. (Long position)
HEENERBROERLDAE  WER BRfEA ER (iF2)
Mr. YAN Andrew Y. H shares Interests of controlled corporation 288,200,000 22.00 475
(Long position)
Eijoba H& RENE (##8)
SAIF IV GP Capital Ltd. H shares Interests of controlled corporation 288,200,000© 22.00 475
(Long position)
Hi& REBAR R (1#8)
SAIF IV GP, L.P. H shares Interests of controlled corporation 288,200,000® 22.00 475
(Long position)
HA% REBERAR R (i#2)
SAIF Partners IV L.P. H shares Interests of beneficial owner 288,200,000 22.00 475
(Long position)
Hi& EnlE A ER (##R)
Datang Renewables (HK) Co., H shares Interests of beneficial owner 108,050,000 8.25 1.78
Ltd. (Long position)
REMR(ER)BRRA Hi& B ACER (1#8)
State Grid International H shares Interests of beneficial owner 76,284,000 5.82 1.26
Development Limited (Long position)
AREMERERERAR  HR BRfE A ER (#Fe)
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Notes:

(1) This percentage is calculated based on the number of relevant shares/
total shares issued by the Company as of 31 December 2020.

(2) As at 31 December 2020, China Energy directly held 2,377,500,000
domestic shares of the Company, accounting for 39.21% of the total
issued share capital of the Company, and through its affiliate, Guodian
Power Development Co., Ltd., it held 2,376,500,000 domestic shares of
the Company, accounting for 39.19% of the total issued share capital
of the Company. China Energy holds a total of 4,754,000,000 domestic
shares of the Company, accounting for about 78.40% of the total
issued share capital of the Company, and therefore China Energy is the
controlling shareholder of the Company.

(3) Mr. YAN Andrew Y. indirectly held 22.00% interest in the H shares of
the Company via SAIF Partners IV L. P. through SAIF IV GP Capital Ltd.
and SAIF IV GP, L.P.. Mr. YAN Andrew Y. is the controlling shareholder
of SAIF IV GP Capital Ltd., SAIF IV GP LP, and SAIF Partners IV L. P..
SAIF IV GP Capital Ltd. is the controlling shareholder of SAIF IV GP,
L.P., which is the controlling shareholder of SAIF Partners IV L.P.. SAIF
Partners IV L.P. held 22.00% interest in the H shares of the Company.
Therefore, Mr. YAN Andrew Y., SAIF IV GP Capital Ltd. and SAIF IV GP,
L.P. are deemed to be interested in the H shares of the Company held
by SAIF Partners IV L.P..

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

The Company did not enter into any contract in respect of the management
or administration of the entire or any significant part of the business of the
Company nor did such contract subsist at any time during 2020.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company has entered into certain contracts with its connected
persons (as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules). These
transactions were monitored and managed by the Company in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

The details of the non-exempt connected transactions of the Group during
2020 are as follows (unless otherwise defined, capitalized terms used
herein shall have the same meanings as those defined in the relevant
announcements as mentioned below):
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Non-exempt One-off Connected Transaction

The details of two non-exempt one-off connected transactions in
2020 are as follows:

On 10 January 2020, the Company entered into the Equity Transfer
Agreement with Huadian Tiande, pursuant to which, the Company
agreed to acquire, and Huadian Tiande agreed to sell, the latter’s
10% equity interest in Huadian Tianren at a consideration of
RMB27,111,294. Upon completion of the Acquisition, Huadian
Tianren (Later renamed as “Guoneng I&C") become a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company.

Huadian Tianren is a significant subsidiary of the Company, the
equity interest of which is held as to 90% and 10% by the Company
and Huadian Tiande, respectively. Huadian Tiande is therefore a
connected person at the subsidiary level of the Company under the
Listing Rules. Therefore, the Acquisition constitutes a connected
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (as defined
in the Listing Rules) exceed 1%, pursuant to Rule 14A.101 of
the Listing Rules, the Acquisition is subject to reporting and
announcement requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, but is exempt from independent shareholders’ approval
requirement.

The proposal has been formally passed by the Board meeting. For
details, see the announcements of the Company dated 15 January
2020 and 20 January 2020.

On 13 August 2020, Longyuan Environmental, a subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an investment agreement with Nantong
Tianshenggang Power Generation Co., Ltd. (“Tianshenggang
Power”) and Jin Tong Ling Technology Group Co., Ltd. for the
formation of a joint venture (the “doint Venture”). Longyuan
Environmental will contribute RMB26 million in cash to the Joint
Venture, accounting for 26% of the registered capital of the Joint
Venture.
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China Energy holds directly and indirectly approximately 78.40%
equity interests of the Company. China Energy and its subsidiaries
are connected persons of the Company as defined under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The transactions between the Group
and China Energy and its subsidiaries constitute connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules. China Energy
holds directly and indirectly approximately 58.44% of the issued
share capital of Longyuan Power, Longyuan Power holds directly
and indirectly approximately 31.94% of the issued share capital
of Tianshenggang Power, and Tianshenggang Power is therefore
a connected person of the Company. The formation of the Joint
Venture constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratio (as defined
under the Listing Rules) is more than 0.1% but less than 5%, this
transaction shall be subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements but exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The proposal has been formally passed by the meeting of the
Board of Directors. For details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 13 August 2020.

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transaction

The Group entered into certain non-exempt continuing connected
transactions in 2020.

For the continuing connected transactions of ltems 1-4, Item
8 and Items 11-12, the Company has obtained approval from
the Shareholders on the annual caps for the year 2020. For the
continuing connected transactions of Items 5-7, Items 9-10 and
ltems 13-15, the Company has obtained approval from the Board
of Directors and has published announcements on the annual caps
for the year 2020.
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The table below sets out the annual caps and the actual transaction

amounts of such continuing connected transactions.

ERR ST -

Annual Actual
Transaction

Annual Amount
Connected Party Transaction Type Cap for 2020 for 2020
20204 2020F FE
BEL RE¥|H FELR BERxSEHE
(RMB million) (RMB million)
ANE¥EET) (AE¥EZET)
China Energy/Guodian  Provision of products and services by the Group
Group for China Energy/Guodian Group and their
subsidiaries
BREERERE, HASEREREREE HEEEREHBAR 23,000.0 12,532.8
HEEE TR mm MRS
China Energy/Guodian  Provision of products and services by China
Group Energy/Guodian Group and their subsidiaries to
the Group
BIKALIREE, HEREREER EEREREMBRARAEE 800.0 518.9
HEEE RHEm MRS
United Power Provision of products and services by the Group
to United Power and its subsidiaries
Sl HAEE M S B S E B R R A KR AR 600.0 396.5
United Power Provision of products and services by United
Power and its subsidiaries to the Group
a8 FREE B ) R BB B R Al A R B R A A R AR 1,100.0 1,094.3
United Power Property lease by the Group to United Power and
its subsidiaries
SEEEN T HASERBEE N REMBARLEYE 30.0 24.9
Longyuan Technology  Provision of products and services by the Group
to Longyuan Technology and its subsidiaries
BEIRBAMT FR N2 [ AV RE R R A B L O B R AR L o S AR 7S 30.0 6.2
Longyuan Technology  Provision of products and services by Longyuan
Technology and its subsidiaries to the Group
REIR Bl FRBEIR AT N2 LB 8 1 Al ) AN SR B iR L 2 o S AR 755 130.0 58.5
Guodian Capital Provision of deposit services by Guodian Capital
Holdings Limited Holdings and its subsidiaries to the Group
(“Guodian Capital
Holdings”)
BEEAZERBRAT HBEEEREREENE DR RASEREFRR 3,000.01" 2,932.2
((EEEAER ) %
Guodian Capital Provision of credit services by Guodian Capital
Holdings Provision Holdings and its subsidiaries for the Group
of credit services
by Guodian Capital
Holdings and its
subsidiaries to the
Group
BB EAER HEEE AR REWE R RRARERAEER 130.0 -
%
2020 F #&

BENMERRAREERNERLIT
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Annual Actual
Transaction

Annual Amount
Connected Party Transaction Type Cap for 2020 for 2020
20204 2020F FE
BEL RE¥|H FELR BERxSEHE
(RMB million) (RMB million)
ANE¥EFET) (AE¥EZET)
10  Guodian Capital Provision of other financial services by Guodian
Holdings Capital Holdings and its subsidiaries to the
Group
B 5 & AN PR HEEERER KEMEA R AR EERAE S 130.0 -
Bl ARTS
11 China Energy Finance  Provision of deposit services by China Energy 4,500.0" 3,888.2
Co., Ltd. (“China Finance to the Group
Energy Finance”)
BIREREEMBEER HERERM SR B RAE B R HF AR
NA([BERBERE D
All)
12 China Energy Finance  Provision of credit services by China Energy 2,500.0 -
Finance to the Group
B B R T 7] HEREERIATE A Bl AR ERAE SRS
13 China Energy Finance  Provision of other financial services by China
Energy Finance to the Group
Bl GE IRV 52 A M EIR AR5 A Al A AN Sk B R A At & R AR TS 40.0 =
14 Changjiang Property & Provision of insurance services by Changjiang
Casualty Insurance Insurance to the Group
Co., Ltd (“Changjiang
Insurance”)
RIVEREROEBERAR BRLRE RN EERARER RS 10.0 0.2
((RTHRERD)
15 Guodian New Energy Property lease by New Energy Research Institute
Technology Research  to the Group
Institute (“New Energy
Technology Research
Institute”)
BUEE TR R IHF FRFTRE IR FC b [ AN SR [ AR 2 42.0 16.9
(I FRERRTZERE))
Note: st -
(1) These numbers represent the maximum daily balance of the (1) ZEY T ARNERFREEERNER

deposit placed with Guodian Capital Holdings or China Energy
Finance by the Group.

FERERABREANET B RS FR
BREE -
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Provision of Products and Services by the Group for
China Energy/Guodian Group and their subsidiaries
(other than the Group)

The Company entered into a framework agreement on the
mutual supply of products and services (“China Energy
Framework Agreement”) with China Energy and Guodian
Group on 13 November 2018.

The principal terms and conditions of China Energy
Framework Agreement are set out as follows:

Products and services to be provided by the Company to
China Energy/Guodian Group and their subsidiaries (other
than the Group) mainly include:

° Supply of products: environmental protection
(including ash removal, water treatment and
denitrification catalyst) equipment, energy-saving
(including plasma ignition combustion technology)
equipment, wind turbine parts and components,
power station distributed control system (“DCS”),
etc.; and

° Services: environmental protection services
(including desulfurization and denitrification
franchise, desulfurization and denitrification
engineering, procurement and construction
(“EPC”), and water treatment build-operate-transfer
(“BOT")), energy conservation services (including
steam turbine flow passage improvement and
energy management contracts), wind farm and PV
power station EPC services, power station general
contracting, etc.

The parties to the China Energy Framework Agreement
agree that the signing of China Energy Framework
Agreement shall not preclude them from choosing
counterparties at their discretion, or conducting
transactions with third parties.

China Energy/Guodian Group agrees to prioritize the use
of the Company’s products and services, in the event that
conditions and fees payable for the products and services
to be provided by third parties are comparable with those of
the products and services to be provided by the Company.

The term of China Energy Framework Agreement for
the purchase and sale of comprehensive products and
services is from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021. For
details, see the announcement of the Company dated 13
November 2018.
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The products and services covered under China Energy
Framework Agreement will be based on the following
pricing policies:

@) Government-prescribed price (including any price
prescribed by any relevant local government, if
applicable);

(2) Where there is no government-prescribed price
but there is a government-guidance price, then the
government- guidance price;

(3) Where there is no government-prescribed or
government-guidance price, the supplier shall be
selected through a tender or non-tender inquiry,
competitive negotiation procedure; or

(4) Where the procurement procedures such as
inquiry and competitive negotiation procedures
are infeasible or impracticable, the contract
negotiation may be adopted instead; or sole-source
procurement process may be adopted directly in
accordance with the relevant rules of China Energy/
Guodian Group. In case of contract negotiation or
sole-source procurement process, comparisons and
negotiations between quotations of the exclusive
supplier and historical or market prices shall be
carried out.

As approved by the State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of the State Council of the PRC
(the “SASAC”) (Guo Zi Fa Gai Ge [2017] No. 146), China
Energy and Guodian Group have implemented strategic
restructuring, such that Guodian Group is absorbed by
and merged into China Energy. Prior to the absorption and
merger, Guodian Group holds 78.40% equity interests of
the Company. After the absorption and merger, all of the
assets, liabilities, businesses, staff, contracts, qualifications
and all other rights and obligations of Guodian Group will
be transferred to/assumed by China Energy. China Energy/
Guodian Group and their subsidiaries are the connected
persons of the Company as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The transaction between the Group
and China Energy/Guodian Group and their subsidiaries
constitute the connected transaction of the Company under
the Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

China Energy is the world’s largest coal group, thermal
power group, wind power group and coal oil chemical
group, and its two subsidiaries Guodian Power and China
Longyuan Power Group Corporation Limited are listed
companies and are the leaders in the thermal power
industry and wind power industry respectively. As the
Company cooperates with China Energy/Guodian Group
for energy production activities, it provides environmental
protection and energy conservation services for the thermal
power generation facilities owned or operated by it and
provides Guodian Group with the wind power generation
products necessary for its renewable energy platform. It is
estimated that the demand for the products and services
provided by China Energy/Guodian Group will continue to
grow gradually.

The annual cap of this continuing connected transaction
for 2020 was RMB23,000 million and the actual transaction
amount was RMB12,532.8 million for the Reporting Year.

Provision of Products and Services by China Energy/
Guodian Group and their subsidiaries (other than the
Group) to the Group

The China Energy Framework Agreement also specifies
the products and services to be provided by China Energy/
Guodian Group and their subsidiaries (other than the
Group) to the Group.

Please refer to the relevant disclosure under “1. Provision
of products and services by the Group for China Energy/
Guodian Group and their subsidiaries (other than the
Group)” for material terms and conditions of the relevant
framework agreement.

Products and services provided by China Energy/Guodian
Group and their subsidiaries (other than the Group) to the
Group include desulfurization and denitrification equipment,
water supply, electricity supply, steam supply and technical
consulting services.

China Energy/Guodian Group undertakes that it will, and
will cause any of their subsidiaries to deliver products and
services to the Company under the terms equivalent to or
superior to those provided to any third party.
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China Energy/Guodian Group has the right to provide
products and services for any third party on condition that
the products and services provided for the Company will
not be affected. Before meeting the Company’s demand
for products and services, China Energy/Guodian Group
may not provide such products and services for any
independent third party.

The Group believes that the stable provision of products
and services by China Energy/Guodian Group to the Group
is essential to the Group’s environmental protection and
energy conservation solutions and that the Group can
benefit from the products and services provided by China
Energy/Guodian Group.

The annual cap of this continuing connected transaction
for 2020 was RMB800.0 million and the actual transaction
amount was RMB518.9 million for the Reporting Year.

Provision of Products and Services by the Group to
United Power and its Subsidiaries

The Group entered into the Framework Agreement for
Purchase and Sale of Comprehensive Products and
Services for 2020-2022 (the “United Power Framework
Agreement”) with United Power and its subsidiaries on
29 October 2020, for a term from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2022.

Pursuant to the United Power Framework agreement,
the products and services to be provided by the Group
to United Power and its subsidiaries include parts and
components of wind turbine generators.

Subsidiaries of both parties will enter into separate
agreements which shall set out the specific terms and
conditions for the provision of such products and services
according to the principles laid down by the United Power
Framework agreement.

The Company owns 70%, while Longyuan Power owns
30%, of the equity interest in United Power. China Energy,
the controlling shareholder of the Company, owns 58.44%
of the shares of Longyuan Power, and United Power is a
connected person of China Energy. Pursuant to Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, United Power and its subsidiaries
are the connected persons of the Company and the
transactions between United Power and its subsidiaries and
the Company will be eliminated in consolidated financial
statements of the Group.
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United Power and its subsidiaries have always been the
main subsidiaries and important customers of the Group
(except United Power and its subsidiaries). The Group
supplies parts and components of wind turbines to United
Power, which in turn sells the wind turbine generators
equipped with these components. The Group has always
benefited from cooperation between United Power and
its subsidiaries. The relationship between the Group and
United Power has always been mutually beneficial.

The annual cap of this continuing connected transaction
for 2020 was RMB600.0 million and the actual transaction
amount was RMB396.5 million for the Reporting Year.

Provision of Products and Services by United Power
and its Subsidiaries to the Group

The United Power Framework Agreement also specifies the
products and services to be provided by United Power and
its subsidiaries to the Group.

For the principal terms and conditions of the United
Power framework agreement, please refer to the relevant
disclosure under “3. Provision of products and services by
the Group for United Power and its subsidiaries” above.

The products and services provided by United Power and
its subsidiaries to the Group include parts and components
of wind turbine generators and operating services.

The Group is in need of the products and services,
including parts and components of wind turbine generators,
and operating services provided by United Power and its
subsidiaries. The Group will benefit from the cooperation
between United Power and its subsidiaries. The relationship
between the Group and United Power has always been
mutually beneficial.

The annual cap of this continuing connected transaction
for 2020 was RMB1,100.0 million and the actual transaction
amount was RMB1,094.3 million for the Reporting Year.
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Property Lease by the Group to United Power and its
subsidiaries

The Group entered into the Property Lease Framework
Agreement for 2020-2022 (the “United Power Property
Lease Framework Agreement”) with United Power and its
subsidiaries on 29 October 2019, for a term from 1 January
2020 to 31 December 2022.

The principal terms and conditions of United Power Property
Lease Framework Agreement are set out as follows:

The Company agreed to lease land and buildings to United
Power and its subsidiaries as offices, production facilities,
workshops and staff quarters;

United Power and its subsidiaries are not allowed to sub-
lease or transfer such properties to another party without
the prior written consent from the Company;

During the term of the lease of the properties, each party to
each lease will bear their own taxes in accordance with the
applicable laws and regulations;

United Power has guaranteed that it and its subsidiaries will
pay the rents specified for each of the properties in a timely
manner and that United Power and its subsidiaries shall use
the properties in accordance with the leases terms and will
not cause or allow damage to the value of the properties by
others;

The rights and obligations of the parties under United
Power Property Lease Framework Agreement are not
transferable; and

The rent for each of the leases has been determined for
the three year period with reference to similar properties
in locations as specified in each of the leases and (where
applicable) will be adjusted in accordance with the terms of
the lease by mutual agreement or by the appointment of an
independent valuer acceptable to both parties. However,
any such increment in rent shall be reasonable and shall
not be higher than the rent that would otherwise be payable
by an independent third party paying market rent for similar
properties.

As a whole, the United Power Property Lease Framework
Agreement enables the Company to use the property more
effectively and minimize any unnecessary replacement cost
for the Group. The United Power Property Lease Framework
Agreement is beneficial to the Company and United Power
and its subsidiaries and is fair and reasonable in the overall
interest of the Company and its shareholders.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The annual cap of this continuing connected transaction
for 2020 was RMB30.0 million and the actual transaction
amount was RMB24.9 million for the Reporting Year.

Provision of Products and Services by the Group to
Longyuan Technology and its Subsidiaries

The Group entered into the Framework Agreement for
Purchase and Sale of Comprehensive Products and
Services for 2020-2022 (the “Longyuan Technology
Framework Agreement”) with Longyuan Technology and
its subsidiaries on 29 October 2019, for a term from 1
January 2020 to 31 December 2022.

The principal terms and conditions of Longyuan Technology
Framework Agreement are set out as follows:

The products and services to be provided by the Group for
Longyuan Technology and its subsidiaries include DCS and
accessories, and on-site assembling and commissioning.

If the conditions of similar products and services and the
fees payable thereof offered by an independent third party
are not better than those offered by one of the parties,
the other party will give priority in sourcing the requisite
products and services from the first party.

The Group and Longyuan Technology and its subsidiaries
will enter into separate agreements which shall set out the
specific scope of products and services in accordance with
the terms and conditions for the provision of such products
according to the principles laid down by the Longyuan
Technology Framework Agreement.

The Company directly holds 23.25% of the issued share
capital of Longyuan Technology. The Company is the main
shareholder of Longyuan Technology. As at the date of this
report, Hero Asia (BVI) Company Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Longyuan Power, owned approximately
18.75% of the equity interest in Longyuan Technology.
Given that Longyuan Power is a subsidiary of China Energy,
Longyuan Technology and its subsidiaries are connected
persons of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules and the transactions between Longyuan Technology
and its subsidiaries and the Group will be eliminated in
consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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Longyuan Technology needs the DCS scattered control
systems, the site assembly and commissioning, and other
products and services provided by the Group; and the
Group has always been benefiting from the cooperation
with Longyuan Technology.

The annual cap of this continuing connected transaction
for 2020 was RMB30.0 million and the actual transaction
amount for the Reporting Year was RMB6.2 million.

Provision of Products and Services by Longyuan
Technology and its Subsidiaries to the Group

The Longyuan Technology Framework Agreement has
also set forth the provision of products and services by
Longyuan Technology and its subsidiaries to the Group.

For the principal terms and conditions of Longyuan
Technology Framework Agreement, please refer to the
relevant disclosures under “6. Provision of products and
services by the Group to Longyuan Technology and its
subsidiaries”.

The products and services provided by Longyuan
Technology and its subsidiaries to the Group include
plasma ignition equipment and other products and services
for environmental protection and energy conservation,
software development, operation and maintenance, market
services, etc.

Longyuan Technology is an important supplier of products
and services of the Group. The Group has always been
benefiting from the cooperation with Longyuan Technology
and believes that the provision of stable products and
services by Longyuan Technology to the Group is essential
to the Group’s business.

The annual cap of this continuing connected transaction
for 2020 was RMB130.0 million and the actual transaction
amount for the Reporting Year was RMB58.5 million.

Provision of Deposit Services by Guodian Capital
Holdings to the Group

The Company entered into a finance service framework
agreement (the “Guodian Capital Holdings Financial
Service Framework Agreement”) with Guodian Capital
Holdings for the provision of financial services by Guodian
Capital Holdings to the Group on 9 November 2017.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The services provided by Guodian Capital Holdings and
its subsidiaries to the Group include deposit services,
including but not limited to agreement deposit, notice
deposit and term deposit.

Part of the principal terms and conditions of Guodian
Capital Holdings Financial Service Framework Agreement
are set out as follows:

Guodian Capital Holdings has promised that the terms of
financial services provided to the Group will not be less
favorable than those offered to other members of Guodian
Group, or the terms of comparable services provided by
commercial banks for the Company.

The Company and its subsidiaries shall utilize the financial
services of Guodian Capital Holdings on a voluntary and
non-compulsory basis and are not obliged to engage
Guodian Capital Holdings for any particular service.

Guodian Capital Holdings and its subsidiaries may, from
time to time, enter into independent and separate financial
service agreements with the Company and its subsidiaries
for the provision of specific financial services by it to the
Company and its subsidiaries.

The interest rate for the deposit services provided by
Guodian Capital Holdings and its subsidiaries shall not
be lower than either: (i) the interest rates offered to other
members under Guodian by Guodian Capital Holdings
for the same category of deposits; and (ii) the interest
rates offered to the Company and its subsidiaries by
any domestic commercial bank for the same category of
deposits.
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The Guodian Capital Holdings Financial Service Framework
Agreement was originally effective from 1 January 2018 to
31 December 2020. In accordance with the requirements
of the Implementation Measures for Administrative Permits
for Non-Banking Financial Institutions of the China Banking
and Insurance Regulatory Commission (the "CBIRC"), only
one finance company could be retained after the merger
of China Energy and Guodian Corporation. Accordingly,
Guodian Finance Company, the finance company affiliated
to Guodian Corporation, would be deregistered, meanwhile,
China Energy would increase its capital and acquire control
of the former Shenhua Finance Company and rename it
as China Energy Finance to provide services to the entire
group. As a result, the Group entered into a financial
service framework agreement with China Energy Finance
on 29 September 2020, which was approved at the general
meeting of shareholders held on 10 November 2020 to take
effect and the Guodian Capital Holdings Financial Service
Framework Agreement was terminated on the same day.

As defined in the Listing Rules, Guodian (at the time of
signing of this agreement, the controlling shareholder
of the Company is still Guodian Group. In respect of the
M&A of Guodian Group by China Energy, the subsidiaries
of Guodian Group and the shares or equity of such
subsidiaries held by Guodian Group have been vested in
China Energy since the closing date of the M&A.) was the
controlling shareholder of the Company; therefore, it was
a connected person of the Company. Guodian Capital
Holdings and its subsidiaries were the subsidiaries of
Guodian Group, and therefore Guodian Capital Holdings
and its subsidiaries were the connected persons of the
Company.

Guodian Capital Holdings is a professional subsidiary
authorized by Guodian to integrate financial resources,
invest in financial equity and manage financial assets. Its
operation must comply with all the applicable laws and
regulations, requirements and guidelines designated by
CBIRC and the People’s Bank of China. It behaves well in
risk monitoring and management. The deposit placed in
Guodian Capital Holdings is mainly to respond to business
needs and some of the Group’s customers also use the
deposit services provided by Guodian Capital Holdings.
This practice can facilitate settlement and timely collection;
and at the same time, Guodian Capital Holdings can
provide the Group with the commercial terms no less
favorable than those provided by other China’s commercial
banks. The cooperation between the Group and Guodian
Capital Holdings and its subsidiaries may reduce financing
costs, increase interest incomes on deposits, reduce
settlement costs, and monitor risk.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

In 2020, the upper limit of the daily deposit balance
placed by the Group in Guodian Capital Holdings and its
subsidiaries (including any interest payable on deposits)
was RMB3,000.0 million, and the actual maximum daily
deposit balance was RMB2,932.3 million for the Reporting
Year.

Provision of Credit Services by Guodian Capital
Holdings and its Subsidiaries to the Group

The Guodian Capital Holdings Financial Service Framework
Agreement also sets forth the provision of credit services
by Guodian Capital Holdings and its subsidiaries to the
Group, including but not limited to fixed assets loan, project
working capital loan, working capital loan, temporary
working capital loan, issuance of notes, acceptance and
discounting, letter of guarantee and factoring of accounts
receivable, etc.

Please refer to the relevant disclosures under “8. Provision
of deposit services by Guodian Capital Holdings to the
Group” for the principal terms and conditions of the
Guodian Capital Holdings Financial Service Framework
Agreement.

The interest rate of the loan services provided by Guodian
Capital Holdings and its subsidiaries according to such
agreement shall not be higher than any of the following:
(1) the base rate published uniformly by the People’s Bank
of China for the same category of loans; (2) the interest
rate offered to other members under Guodian Group by
Guodian Capital Holdings for the same category of loans;
or (3) the interest rate offered to the Company and its
subsidiaries by any commercial bank for the same category
of loans. In case of service charges, they (1) must be in
accordance with the standard interest rate promulgated
from time to time by the People’s Bank of China or China
Banking Regulatory Commission (if applicable); or (2)
shall not be higher or shall be equal to the interest or
service charges required by the commercial banks or other
financial institutions for the provision of similar services; or
(8) shall not be higher than the interest or service charges
charged by Guodian Capital Holdings for providing similar
services for other companies of Guodian Group.

The annual cap of this continuing connected transaction
for 2020 was RMB130.0 million and there was no actual
transaction amount in the Reporting Year.
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10. Provision of Other Financial Services by Guodian

11.

Capital Holdings and its Subsidiaries to the Group

The Guodian Capital Holdings Financial Service Framework
Agreement also sets forth other financial services to be
provided by Guodian Capital Holdings and its subsidiaries
to the Group, including but not limited to intra-group
transfer and settlement services, assistance in the receipt
and payment of transactions, insurance and insurance
brokerage, transaction of entrusted loan and entrusted
investment, finance lease (direct lease, after-sale lease)
and business factoring, financial advisory and training
services.

Please refer to the relevant disclosures under “8. Provision
of deposit services by Guodian Capital Holdings to the
Group” for the principal terms and conditions of the
Guodian Capital Holdings Financial Service Framework
Agreement.

The service charges for the other financial services
provided by Guodian Capital Holdings and its subsidiaries
according to such agreement (1) must be in accordance
with the standard interest rate promulgated from time
to time by the People’s Bank of China or China Banking
Regulatory Commission (if applicable); (2) shall not be
higher or shall be equal to the interest or service charges
required by the commercial banks or other financial
institutions for the provision of similar services; or (3) shall
not be higher than the interest or service charges charged
by Guodian Capital Holdings for providing similar services
for other companies of Guodian Group.

The annual cap of this continuing connected transaction
for 2020 was RMB130.0 million and there was no actual
transaction amount in the Reporting Year.

Provision of deposit services by China Energy Finance
to the Group

The Company entered into a financial service framework
agreement (the “Financial Service Framework Agreement
of China Energy Finance”) with China Energy Finance on
29 September 2020, which was approved at the general
meeting of shareholders held on 10 November 2020 to take
effect. Pursuant to this, China Energy Finance provides
financial services to the Group for a duration commencing
from 10 November 2020 to 31 December 2022.

Part of the principal terms and conditions of the Financial
Service Framework Agreement of China Energy Finance
are set out as follows:
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The services provided by China Energy Finance to the
Group encompass deposit services, which include but
not limited to demand deposits, negotiated deposits, call
deposits and time deposits.

China Energy Finance undertakes that the terms on which
China Energy Finance provides financial services to the
Group are no less favorable than the terms on which
China Energy Finance provides to other members of China
Energy, or the terms on which commercial banks provide
the same type of financial services to the Group.

The Group uses the service provided by China Energy
Finance on a voluntary rather than mandatory basis and
is not obliged to engage China Energy Finance for any
particular service. China Energy Finance may enter into
individual financial service agreements with the Company
and its subsidiaries from time to time.

Subject to the laws and regulations and relevant provisions
of the People’s Bank of China, the CBIRC and other
relevant regulatory authorities, the interest rates for
deposits taken by China Energy Finance from members of
the Group shall, under the same conditions, be no less than
the interest rates determined by the four major commercial
banks in China for the same type of deposit services
provided to members of the Group and shall be determined
on normal commercial terms. Under the same conditions,
China Energy Finance shall provide the Group with interest
rates for the same type of deposits in accordance with the
principle of equal treatment for members of China Energy.

As defined in the Listing Rules, China Energy holds
approximately 78.40% of the issued share capital of
the Company directly or indirectly and is the controlling
shareholder of the Company. Given that China Energy
Finance is a subsidiary of China Energy, China Energy
Finance is a connected person of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Financial
Service Framework Agreement of China Energy Finance
and the transactions contemplated thereunder constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The maximum daily deposit balance (including any interest
payable on the deposits) of the Group placed with China
Energy Finance in the year 2020 was RMB4,500.0 million,
while the actual maximum daily deposit balance during the
Reporting Year was RMB3,888.2 million.
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12. Provision of credit services by China Energy Finance to

13.

the Group

The Financial Service Framework Agreement of China
Energy Finance also sets forth the provision of credit
services by China Energy Finance to the Group, including
but not limited to fixed asset loans, project revolving loans,
working capital loans, temporary working capital revolving
loans, bill opening, acceptance and discounting, financial
guarantee services (including performance guarantee,
quota sharing and other guarantee business within the
business scope of financial enterprises) and commercial
factoring.

Please refer to the relevant disclosures under “11. Provision
of deposit services by China Energy Finance to the Group”
above for part of the principal terms and conditions of the
Financial Service Framework Agreement of China Energy
Finance.

The interest rates for loans granted by China Energy
Finance to members of the Group shall, under the same
conditions, be no higher than the interest rates determined
by the four major commercial banks in China for the same
type of loan services provided to the members of the
Group, and shall be determined on normal commercial
terms. Under the same conditions, China Energy Finance
shall offer the Group the corresponding interest rates for
the same type of loans in accordance with the principle
of equal treatment for the members of the China Energy
Corporation.

The annual cap of this continuing connected transaction
for 2020 was RMB2,500.0 million and there was no actual
transaction amount during the Reporting Year.

Provision of other financial services to the Group by
China Energy Finance

The Financial Service Framework Agreement of China
Energy Finance also sets forth that China Energy Finance
shall provide other financial services to the Group, including
but not limited to intra-group transfer and settlement
services; assistance in the collection and payment of
transaction amounts; handling of entrusted loans and
entrusted investments between the Group and members of
China Energy; financial and financing consultancy, credit
verification and related advisory and agency services;
underwriting distribution of financial instruments such as
debt financing instruments and corporate bonds; and
other financial services (letters of credit, internet banking,
entrusted loans, etc.) and the collection of agency fees,
handling fees, advisory fees or other service charges, etc.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Please refer to the relevant disclosures under “11. Provision
of deposit services by China Energy Finance to the Group”
above for part of the principal terms and conditions of the
Financial Service Framework Agreement of China Energy
Finance.

The service fees charged by China Energy Finance to the
members of the Group for the provision of financial services
shall, under the same conditions, be no higher than the
service fees charged by financial institutions such as the
four major commercial banks in China for the provision
of the same type of financial services to members of the
Group, and shall be determined on normal commercial
terms. Under the same conditions, China Energy Finance
shall charge the Group services fees for the provision of
the same type of financial services in accordance with the
principle of equal treatment among the members of China
Energy.

The annual cap of this continuing connected transaction
for 2020 was RMB40.0 million and there was no actual
transaction amount during the Reporting Year.

Provision of Insurance Services by Changjiang
Insurance to the Group

On 28 December 2017, the Company entered into an
insurance framework agreement (the “Insurance Service
Framework Agreement”) with Changjiang Insurance.
Pursuant to the Insurance Service Framework Agreement,
Changjiang Insurance and its subsidiaries agreed to
provide insurance services to the Group, including property
all-risk insurance, machinery damage insurance and public
liability insurance for a term of three years from 1 January
2018 to 31 December 2020.

The service charges for the services under such
agreement: (1) shall be within the term of the Insurance
Service Framework Agreement and observe the valid
charge standards issued by China Insurance Regulatory
Commission for the same type of insurance services (if
applicable); or (2) under the same conditions, shall not
more than or shall be equal to the same level of operating
expenses of other domestic institutions; or (3) under the
same conditions, shall not be higher than the interest or
service charges required by Changjiang Insurance from
other members of China Energy for the same category of
insurance services.
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=

15.

The members of the Group may, from time to time and as
necessary, enter into individual implementation agreements
with Changjiang Insurance in respect of specific
transactions to be undertaken under the Insurance Service
Framework Agreement.

According to the definitions of the Listing Rules, Guodian
Group, the controlling shareholder of the Company was
at the date of signing of the Insurance Service Framework
Agreement, a controlling shareholder of the Group and it
directly and indirectly held 34% of the equity interests in
Changjiang Insurance; therefore, Changjiang Insurance
was a connected person of the Company and the Insurance
Service Framework Agreement and the transactions
thereunder shall constitute the continuous connected
transactions of the Company.

Changjiang Insurance is a professional service
organization. The directors believe that Changjiang
Insurance and its subsidiaries can provide the Group with
high-quality, high- efficiency and comprehensive insurance
services in many aspects, such as underwriting, insurance
policy preparation, claim investigation and so on.

The annual cap of this continuing connected transaction
for 2020 was RMB10.0 million and the actual transaction
amount was RMBO0.2 million for the Reporting Year.

Property Lease by New Energy Research Institute to the
Group

On 30 December 2019, the Company entered into a
property lease framework agreement (the “New Energy
Research Institute Property Lease Framework
Agreement”) for 2020 with New Energy Research Institute.
Pursuant to the Framework Agreement, New Energy
Research Institute agreed to lease certain premises to the
Company and its subsidiaries for a term of one year from 1
January 2020 to 31 December 2020.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

During the term of the leases of the properties, each party
to each lease will bear its respective taxes in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations. The Company
has guaranteed that the Group will pay the rent and
property management fee for each of the properties in a
timely manner and that the Group will use the properties
in accordance with the agreed purposes of the leases
and will not damage the value of the use of the properties.
The rent and property management fee will be determined
based on the condition of each premise with reference to
the fair and reasonable market price and rent and property
management fee of comparable properties in similar
locations.

China Energy/Guodian Group and their subsidiaries are
connected persons of the Company as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. New Energy Research Institute
is wholly-owned by China Energy/Guodian Group and
therefore a related party of the Company. In accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the proposed
transaction under the framework agreement constitutes the
continuing connected transaction of the Company.

The transaction provides a number of subsidiaries of the
Company with stable and necessary office properties and
enables them to carry out their business in the properties of
New Energy Research Institute. The New Energy Research
Institute Property Lease Framework Agreement was entered
into after fair negotiation and is in favor of the Company and
its related subsidiaries.

The annual cap of this continuing connected transaction
for 2020 was RMB42.0 million and the actual transaction
amount for the Reporting Year was RMB16.9 million.

On 30 December 2020, the Company entered into a
Property Lease Framework Agreement for 2021 with New
Energy Research Institute. Pursuant to such agreement,
New Energy Research Institute agreed to lease certain
premises to the Company and its subsidiaries for a term of
one year commencing from 1 January 2021 and ending on
31 December 2021. For details, see the announcement of
the Company dated 30 December 2020.
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REVIEW OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed each of the
above-mentioned continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
such transactions were:

(1) made in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or better, or, if there are no
comparable transactions to determine whether they are on normal
commercial terms or better, from the perspective of the Group,
on terms of such transactions no less favorable than the terms
available to or from an independent third party; and

(3) in accordance with relevant agreements governing the relevant
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

LETTER FROM AUDITORS

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s auditor was
engaged by the Board of Directors to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Based on the work performed, the auditor
of the Company confirmed to the Board of Directors that the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions:

(1) have been approved by the Board of Directors ;

(2) involving the provision of products and services by the Group
were entered into in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Group stipulated under the relevant agreements governing such
transactions;

(3) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and

(4) have not exceeded the relevant annual caps as disclosed in the
relevant announcements of the Company.

The auditor has issued a letter containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group
on pages 72 to 91 of this report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Save as disclosed above, no related party transaction set out in the
Notes to the Financial Statements falls into the category of connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions in 2020 disclosed in Note 43(a) to the
Financial Statements in accordance with International Accounting
Standard 24 “Related Party Disclosures” that also fall under the definitions
of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” (as the
case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have been disclosed in
the section headed “Connected Transactions”. Note 43(a) to the Financial
Statements also includes related party transactions that do not fall under
the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” or are otherwise fully exempt from all disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

TRUST DEPOSIT

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company and its subsidiaries
have not placed any trust deposit at domestic or overseas financial
institutions, and had no unrecovered time deposit which had passed their
maturity dates.

COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION
AGREEMENT

The Company entered into the non-competition agreement (the “Non-
Competition Agreement”) with Guodian Group and Guodian Power
respectively on 23 November 2011.

Pursuant to the Non-Competition Agreement, Guodian Group and Guodian
Power provided certain non-competition undertakings to the Company
and granted the options and pre-emptive rights to acquire the retained
business and any new business opportunities of Guodian Group or
Guodian Power (as the case may be) to the Company. Pursuant to the
Non-Competition Agreement, the independent non-executive Directors
are responsible for reviewing and considering whether to exercise such
options and pre-emptive rights and are entitled, on behalf of the Company,
to review the implementation of the undertakings under the agreement on
an annual basis.
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EEgHRE(E)

According to the Confirmation of Transfer Registration issued by China
Securities Depository and Clearing Co., Ltd. on 30 July 2019, the
Company’s 2,377,500,000 domestic shares directly held by Guodian
Group were transferred to China Energy on 30 July 2019. Therefore the
statement on the implementation of the Non-Competition Agreement with
Guodian Group of the year is presented by China Energy.

During the year, the independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the implementation of the Non-Competition Agreement and confirmed
that China Energy and Guodian Power had been in full compliance with
the agreement and there was no breach by Guodian Group and Guodian
Power.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the purchase from the Group’s
five largest suppliers in aggregate contributed 14.6% of the Group’s total
purchase for the year, among which, the total purchase from the largest
supplier contributed 4.8% of the Group’s total purchase for the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the sales to the Group’s five
largest customers in aggregate contributed 19.9% of the Group’s total
sales for the year, among which, the sales to the largest customer
contributed 7.9% of the Group’s total sales for the year.

Guodian Power and Longyuan Power, the main customers of the Group,
are the subsidiaries of China Energy and the Group’s connected persons.
Save as disclosed above, during the year, so far as the Directors are
aware, none of the Directors, associates of Directors or any Shareholders
(who to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the Company’s five
largest suppliers or customers during the year.

SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” on
page 70 of this report, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
entered into any significant contract with the controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries other than the Group, and the Group did not enter
into significant contracts with the controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries other than the Group in relation to the provision of services.

INTERESTS OF THE CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER
IN SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

Details of significant contracts entered into between the Company and
the controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries are disclosed in the section
headed “Connected Transactions” on page 70 of this report.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

ISSUED BONDS
The Company did not issue new bonds in 2020.
RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEES BENEFIT SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement and employees benefit scheme are set
out in Note 10(a) to the Financial Statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

In 2020, the Company has complied with relevant code provisions as set
out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules. Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report of this
report for details.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and so far as the
Directors are aware, not less than 21.6% of the issued share capital of the
Company was held by the public as of the date of this report, which was in
compliance with the requirements under the Listing Rules.

MATERIAL LITIGATION AND ARBITRATION

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has not involved in
any litigation or arbitration that has material adverse effect on the overall
business, operational or financial position of the Company.

On 22 February 2021, United Power received the civil judgment (Ji 01 Min
Te No.166 (2020)) from Hebei Shijiazhuang Intermediate People’s Court in
respect of the civil case between United Power and Laiyuan Suntien. The
Company’s Directors and management are of the view that the outcome
of the Civil Case would reduce the Company’s profit before tax in 2020
by approximately RMB17 million. The Board considers that the Civil
Case does not have any material adverse effect on the overall business,
operational or financial position of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

According to the Listing Rules, the Group has established an audit
committee (“Audit Committee”), the responsibilities of which include
providing the Board of Directors with suggestions to the appointment,
re-appointment and dismissal of external independent auditors, and
monitoring their work. The Audit Committee comprises Mr. YEUNG Chi
Tat (independent non-executive Director), Mr. SHEN Xiaoliu (independent
non-executive Director) and Mr. ZHANG Wenjian (non-executive Director).
The 2020 annual results of the Group and the Financial Statements as at
and for the year ended 31 December 2020, which have been prepared
in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards, have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

EEgHRE(E)

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young ("Ernst & Young") and ShineWing Certified Public
Accountants (Special General Partnership) (“ShineWing”) were appointed
as the Company'’s international and PRC auditors, respectively, for the
year ended 31 December 2020. Considered and approved by the annual
general meeting of 2018 convened on 11 June 2019, Ernst & Young has
been the Company’s international auditor since 2019.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 of the
Company have been prepared in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards, and have been audited by Ernst & Young.

By order of the Board of Directors

Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited
Chairman of the Board

Mr. CHEN Dongqing

Beijing, China, 26 March 2021
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

In 2020, to protect the interests of the Shareholders and the Company, and
in compliance with the applicable laws and regulations and the AOA, the
Board of Supervisors effectively exercised its supervision authority over
the meeting-convening and decision-making procedures of the Board of
Directors. During the Reporting Year, the main responsibilities of the Board
of Supervisors are as follows:

1.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Four meetings of the Board of Supervisors were convened in 2020:

(1)

On 17 April 2020, the first meeting of the third session of the
Board of Supervisors for 2020 was convened, whereby the
proposals were considered and approved on the 2019 annual
report (draft), the 2019 annual results announcement (draft),
the 2019 profit distribution plan, the 2020 financial budget
report and the supervisors’ report.

On 22 July 2020, the second meeting of the third session of
the Board of Supervisors for 2020 was convened to consider
and approve the proposal on the nomination of shareholder
representative supervisors for the fourth session of the Board
of Supervisors of the Company.

On 7 August 2020, the first meeting of the fourth session of the
Board of Supervisors for 2020 was convened to consider and
approve the proposal on the election of the Chairman of Board
of Supervisors of the Company.

On 28 August 2020, the second meeting of the fourth session
of the Board of Supervisors for 2020 was convened, whereby
the proposals were considered and approved on the draft
2020 interim report and the draft interim results announcement,
the 2020 interim financial statements and the 2020 interim
profit distribution plan.
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EEemE(E)

2. WORK UNDERTAKEN BY THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS

In 2020, the Board of Supervisors mainly undertook the following
work: During the Reporting Year, the Board of Supervisors duly
reviewed the Company’s operation and development plan and
proposed reasonable suggestions and advice to the Board of
Directors. To safeguard the interests of the Shareholders, the Board
of Supervisors actively and effectively performed its supervision
duties over significant decisions and detailed implementations by
the Company’s senior management to ensure to conform to relevant
laws and regulations and the AOA.

The Board of Supervisors duly reviewed and approved the Report
of the Board of Directors, audited financial report and the profit
distribution plan which were to be presented at the 2020 annual
general meeting, and thought that the members of the Board
of Directors, general manager and other senior management of
the Company strictly complied with the principles of integrity,
performed their duties diligently, exercised their powers in the best
interests of the Company and discharged their responsibilities in
accordance with the AOA. Meanwhile, the Company’s operations
have been further standardized and its internal control system has
been improved. The Company’s connected transactions were in
the interests of the Shareholders as a whole and were on fair and
reasonable terms. The Board of Supervisors has not discovered any
Director or Senior Management that had abused their power or any
of their actions were prejudicial to the interests of the Company or
the Shareholders, or violated the applicable laws and regulations or
the AOA.

The Board of Supervisors is satisfied with the financial position
and operational results of the Company in 2020. The Board of
Supervisors is confident in the prospects of the Group.

L/ﬂ \5/

L,

By Order of the Board of Supervisors

Guodian Technology & Environment Group Company Limited
Chairman of the Board of Supervisors

Mr. LUAN Baoxing

Beijing, China, 26 March 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board of Directors hereby presents to the Shareholders the corporate
governance report for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Reporting
Period”).

The corporate governance framework of the Company is set out as follows:

Guodian Technology & Environment

Group Corporation Limited
BEENERREERAERAT
(HK: 01296)
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Inspection Committee (Party
Committee Inspection Office)
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Work Safety
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Property Department
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General Management
Department
(Party Committee Office,
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Financing and Legal Affairs
(the Board of Directors Office)
BERARAEEHH
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Since its establishment, the Company has been committed to improving
its corporate governance, which is considered essential to the creation
of value for the Shareholders. The Company has established a
modern corporate governance structure, which comprises a number
of independently-operated and effectively-balanced bodies, including
general meeting, the Board of Directors, the Board of Supervisors and the
senior management, by referring to the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (“Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Company
has also adopted the Code as its own corporate governance practice. In
2020, the Company strictly complied with the principles and provisions
of the Code, and in some circumstances, adopted the best practices
recommended by the Code.

The Company is dedicated to maintaining a high level of corporate
governance. The Board of Directors has adopted various corporate
policies and standards for application of proper governance principles
in our usual business operations. In the course of our usual business
operations, we comply with the applicable laws, rules and regulations of
different countries and regions as part of our vigorous efforts to ensure
a healthy and safe working environment for our employees, devote our
utmost endeavor to safeguarding the interests of shareholders as a whole
and place key focus on the sustainable development of the Company. In
the Reporting Period, the Company adopted the principles under the Code
and complied with all the code provisions thereunder.

Technical Management
Department (Intelligence Office)
BIREEE (Baeh)

Overseas
Business Department
(New Business
Development Department)
R

FRETHBG) Finance Sharing Center

MBEFHL
The Audit LE%S

Department

w15

Department of
Purchasing and Material
Management
KRy E TR

Sales & Marketing
Department
5 E

ERERER

BRI - AR BREBIRERTTEEERK
FoREXEARERRBRRAEBETURER
B —&5 - ARF 2R TR TArED
ZERTAD(KFAD)) @Y THERAE &
2 EEEROREBRESELER AR
IR R RDAERE - NABRERACTRDIE
RARARMEEERATR - 2020F 8 + AR
BETTRD BRI R G - LHEREIRTT
TRECTADEFORERR

ARBBOERFBKF2EEER - ARAESR
CORMZBALRERREL - MREMAAE
ABTRAREZERRA - ERFANAEEE
B BMETERER MR AR RAKLR
Bl BHEREIHRERERR2 2 TIERE -
IWIB N IRIEAR 2 BB - IEEHMEARA]
A RERRE L - RREME - ARREHAT
Az FR A& 5T AT A T BB

2020 F 3R
BEENEEREBRMBERARF

99



100

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

EERME(E)

The corporate governance framework of the Company is set out as follows:

—

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors exercises its powers and functions in
accordance with the provisions as set out in the AOA. In the best
interests of the Company and the Shareholders, the Board of
Directors reports to the general meetings, implements the resolutions
passed thereon and is accountable to the general meetings.

1.1 Composition of the Board of Directors

As of the date of the Annual Report, the Board of Directors had
consisted of 11 Directors, including three executive Directors,
four non-executive Directors and four independent non-
executive Directors.

The biographical details of the Directors as of the date of the
Annual Report are set out in the section headed “Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management” of the Annual Report.
There are no relationships (including financial, business, family
or other material or relevant relationships) among members of
the Board of Directors. The structure of the Board of Directors
is well balanced with each Director owning sound knowledge,
experience and expertise on the business operations and
development of the Group. All Directors are well aware of their
joint and several responsibilities to the Shareholders.

Since the listing of the Company, the Board of Directors has
been in compliance with the requirements of the Listing Rules
regarding the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors. The Board of Directors has also
been in compliance with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules to
appoint independent non-executive Directors representing
at least one-third of the Board of Directors. Furthermore, the
qualifications of all four independent non-executive Directors
of the Company are in full compliance with the requirements
under Rule 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules. In addition,
the Company has received annual confirmations from all
independent non-executive Directors as to their respective
independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Therefore, the Company considers all independent non-
executive Directors to be in compliance with the independence
requirements as set out in the Listing Rules.
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1.2

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (C

The Board of Directors’ functions and responsibilities include:
convening general meetings; reporting its work to the general
meeting; implementing resolutions approved at general
meetings; deciding on the Company’s business plans and
investment plans; formulating the Company’s annual financial
budget and final accounts; formulating the Company’s
profit distribution plans and proposals for the increase in
or reduction of the registered capital; and exercising other
powers, functions and responsibilities as set out in the AOA.
The Company has entered into a service contract or letter of
appointment with each Director.

The Company firmly believes that the increasing diversity
at the Board of Directors level is one of the essential
elements in attaining the Company’s strategic objectives and
maintaining sustainable development; therefore, the Company
has formulated the Board Member Diversity Policy. While
determining the composition of the Board of Directors, the
Company shall consider the diversity of the Board of Directors
from various perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skill, knowledge and service tenure. The final
decisions are made based on the value of candidates and
contributions they can bring to the Board of Directors. The
appointment of the members of the Board of Directors shall be
orientated by the need of the skill and experience of the Board
of Directors for its overall normal operation, and based on the
principle of selecting talented people, while fully considering
the above-mentioned goals and requirements for diversity.
The Nomination Committee will discuss any amendment to the
Board Member Diversity Policy when necessary and propose
such amendments to the Board of Directors pending its
approval.

The current term of all the Directors of the Company will expire
on 6 August 2023.

Director’s Continuous Training and Development

In compliance with the requirement of the Code A.6.5 of the
Code and to ensure that the Directors’ contribution to the
Board of Directors remains informed and relevant, during the
Reporting Year, the Company arranged and funded suitable
training for all the Directors, for example, holding special
training sessions covering topics including to explore the
continuous obligation subject to the notifiable transactions
under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules, connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and the issuer’s
continuing obligations under Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules.
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Besides the training provided by the Company, the Directors
have also developed their professional skills through various
ways including attending different forums, seminars and public
lectures.

During the Reporting Period, all the Directors had participated
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills as required by Article A.6.5 of the
Code, in order to ensure that the Directors’ contribution to the
Board of Directors remains informed and relevant. According
to the record of the Board of Directors, the summary of the
training received by the Directors for the year ended 31
December 2020 is as follows:

RPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Name

HH

Types of Continuous
Professional Development
Programmes

FEEERREER

Executive Directors
HITES

Mr. CHEN Dongging
RESHE

Mr. ZHANG Jun

ik OBRE

Mr. TANG Chaoxiong
JE B ST A

Non-executive Directors
FHTES

Mr. WANG Zhongqu
FRESLE

Mr. ZHANG Wenjian
SRIGEEE

Mr. GU Yuchun
BEERE

Ms. GE Xiaojing
BRErt
Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFBITES

Mr. SHEN Xiaoliu
FREBER St 4

Mr. QU Jiuhui

i A B8 5 A

Mr. XIE Qiuye

HIKEF e 4

Mr. YEUNG Chi Tat
HEERE

A B

A: Read the latest materials for seminars and updates in relation
to the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements

B: Attending the briefing and/or seminars

2020 ANNUAL REPORT
Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*

A BIEBERLTARAUEEMEREE
BERIET R M EER
E#

B: HEENERHATE




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (C

1.3 Board Meetings

Pursuant to the AOA, the Board of Directors is required to
hold at least four Board meetings each year, which shall
be convened by the chairman of the Board of Directors. A
notice of at least 14 days shall be given for the regular Board
meeting. The notice must state the time, venue and means by
which the Board meeting will be convened.

Except for the Board of Directors’ consideration of matters in
relation to connected transactions as set forth in the AOA, the
Board meeting should be convened with the present parties
of a majority of Directors. A Director may attend the Board
meeting in person, or appoint another Director in writing as his/
her proxy to attend the meeting. The secretary to the Board of
Directors is responsible for preparing and keeping the minutes
of the Board meetings and ensuring that such records are
available for inspection by any Director.

In 2020, the Board of Directors held a total of 11 Board
meetings, three of which included the proposals that the
related Directors (Mr. WANG Zhongqu, Mr. ZHANG Wenjian
and Mr. GU Yuchun) who need to abstain from voting. And the
Board of Directors convened three general meetings in total. As
at 31 December 2020, the Company had 11 directors whose
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attendance at the Board meetings and the general meetings is
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as follows: RIREASERMAT
Number of Number of General
Position in Board Meetings Attendance Meetings Attended/ Attendance
Name the Company Attended/Convened Rate% Convened* Rate%
HEETESS HEBITIRR
#E ANl SRRE HE £% RESBRE HE 2%
Mr. CHEN Dongging Executive Director and 11/11 100 3/3 100
Chairman of the Board
REFxE WTEEREER
Mr. ZHANG Jun Executive Director 11/11 100 2/3 67
K BhEAE WITES
Mr. TANG Chaoxiong Executive Director 11/11 100 3/3 100
JERBIESE WITER
Mr. WANG Zhongqu Non-executive Director 11/11 100 1/3 33
FRERE FRITES
Mr. ZHANG Wenjian Non-executive Director 11/11 100 1/3 33
RXEEE FHRITES
Mr. GU Yuchun Non-executive Director 11/11 100 1/3 38
BERELE FHTEF
Mr. YAN Andrew Y. Non-executive Director 4/11 36 2/3 67
Epobitas FRITES
Ms. GE Xiaojing Non-executive Director 7M1 64 1/3 33
BRERL FEHTES
Mr. SHEN Xiaoliu Independent Non-executive 11/11 100 3/3 100
Director
AR L L BUFNTES
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EERME(E)

1.4

Number of Number of General
Position in Board Meetings Attendance Meetings Attended/ Attendance
Name the Company Attended/Convened Rate% Convened* Rate%
HEETESE HEBITIRR
®E vANSIl A SRRE HE£% RESRRE HE 2%
Mr. QU Jiuhui Independent Non-executive 11/11 100 1/3 33
Director
A4 BIUFNTES
Mr. XIE Qiuye Independent Non-executive 11/11 100 1/3 33
Director
IR & BIUFHNTESE
Mr. YEUNG Chi Tat  Independent Non-executive 11/11 100 3/3 100
Director
BEERE BIUFHTES

The non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors who were unable to attend the general meeting(s)
had been informed of the contents of the general meetings
through electronic communication or teleconference.

Powers Exercised by the Board and the Management

The Company performs the following corporate governance
duties:

(1) To formulate and review the corporate governance
policies and practices of the Company and make
recommendations to the Board of Directors;

(2) To review and monitor the training and continuing
professional development of directors, supervisors and
senior management;

(8) To review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices in compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(4) To formulate, review and monitor the details of the work of
directors, supervisors and employees, etc.; and

(5) To review the compliance of the Code and disclosure in
corporate governance reports.

The powers and duties of the Board and the management
have been clearly defined in the AOA so as to ensure that
adequate check-and-balance is in place for the purpose
of maintaining effective corporate governance and internal
control.
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The Board is responsible for making decisions on the
Company’s business and investment plans, determining
the establishment of the Company’s internal management
structure, issuing the Company’s essential administration
regulations, resolving and approving other material business
and administrative matters of the Company and supervising
the performance of the management.

Led by the General Manager (and also an executive
Director), the management of the Company is responsible
for implementing the resolutions passed by the Board and
managing the Company’s day-to-day operations.

Chairman and General Manager

The posts of the chairman of the Board and the General
Manager of the Company (i.e. chief executive officer
pursuant to the Listing Rules) are separated and convened
by different persons in order to ensure the independence of
their respective responsibilities, and the balance of power
and authority between them. Mr. CHEN Dongging acts as the
chairman of the Board and Mr. ZHANG Jun acts as the general
manager. The Rules of Procedures of the Board Meeting and
the Working Rules of the General Manager, as considered and
approved by the Board, clearly define the division of duties
between the chairman of the Board and the general manager.

Mr. CHEN Dongqging, the Chairman of the Board, is
responsible for leading the Board in determining the overall
development strategies of the Company and ensuring that
the Board effectively performs its duties and discusses
significant and appropriate matters in a timely manner,
ensuring that the Company establishes effective corporate
governance practices and procedures and the Board acts
in the best interest of the Company and the Shareholders.
Mr. ZHANG Jun, the General Manager of the Company, is
mainly responsible for the Company’s day-to-day operations,
including implementing the Board’s resolutions and making
day-to-day decisions.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Pursuant to the AOA, the Directors, including the non-
executive Directors, shall be elected at the general meetings
with a term of office for no more than three years and may be
re-elected and re-appointed.

The Company has established a set of procedures for
appointing new Directors. The nomination of new Directors
shall first be considered by the Nomination Committee, whose
recommendations will then be presented to the Board for
consideration. All newly nominated Directors are subject to
election and approval at general meetings.
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In compliance with the applicable laws and regulations, and
the AOA, each of the executive Directors of the Company
entered into a service contract with the Company on 7
August 2020, which is preliminarily for a term of three years
commencing from 7 August 2020. Each of the non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company on 7 August
2020, for a term of three years, with a clause of one-year
automatic renewal.

1.7 Directors’ Remuneration

The Remuneration and Appraisal Committee makes
recommendations in relation to the Directors’ remuneration
by taking into consideration factors such as educational
background, work experience, etc.. The Board determines
the Directors’ remuneration by considering the Directors’
experiences, work performances, positions and market
conditions after the approval of the general meeting.

2. Board Committees

There are four Board committees (“Committees”), namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Strategic Committee.

On 7 August 2020, the chairmen and members of the fourth session
of Board committees were appointed on the first Board meeting of
the fourth session of the Board for 2020.

2.1 Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three Directors: Mr. YEUNG
Chi Tat (independent non-executive Director), Mr. SHEN
Xiaoliu (independent non-executive Director) and Mr. ZHANG
Wenjian (non-executive Director). Mr. YEUNG Chi Tat
serves as the chairman of the Audit Committee. The primary
responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review and
supervise the Company’s financial reporting procedures,
including:

e Making proposals in respect of the appointment, re-
appointment or change of the external auditors to
the Board, approving the remuneration and terms of
engagement of external auditors, and handling any issues
related to the resignation or dismissal of external auditors;

e FEvaluating and examining the independence and
objectivity of the external auditors and the effectiveness of
the auditing procedures in accordance with the relevant
standards;
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Monitoring completeness, accuracy and impartiality
of the financial statements of the Company and the
Company’s accounts, annual reports and interim reports
and reviewing significant financial reporting opinions
contained in them:;

Reviewing the Company’s financial control, internal control
and risk management systems; and

Taking necessary measures to ensure that employees
have a channel to raise concerns in an anonymous
manner about any possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters.

During the Reporting Period, third session three meetings in
total, with details as follows:

The first meeting of the Audit Committee of the third
session of the Board of Directors in 2020 was convened
on 26 March 2020 to consider and approve (1) the
proposal on the draft unaudited results announcement of
the Company for the year 2019; and (2) the proposal on
the change of depreciation policy of fixed assets.

The second meeting of the Audit Committee of the third
session of the Board of Directors in 2020 was convened
on 14 April 2020 to consider and approve (1) the
proposal on the Company’s draft 2019 annual results
announcement ; (2) the proposal on the Company’s
draft 2019 annual report; and (3) the proposal on the
appointment of the Company'’s foreign auditor for 2020.

On 21 August 2020, the first meeting of the Audit
Committee of the fourth session of the Board in 2020 was
convened, whereby (1) the proposal regarding the draft
2020 interim report of the Company; and (2) the proposal
regarding the draft 2020 interim results announcement of
the Company were considered and approved.

All the members of the Audit Committee attended the above
meetings.
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Remuneration and Appraisal Committee

The Remuneration and Appraisal Committee consists of three
Directors: Mr. QU Jiuhui (independent non-executive Director),
Mr. XIE Qiuye (independent non-executive Director) and Mr.
WANG Zhongqu (non-executive Director). Mr. QU Jiuhui is the
chairman of the Remuneration and Approval Committee of the
Company. The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration
and Appraisal Committee are to formulate the standards
concerning the assessment of the directors and the senior
management, assess their performance and determine and
review the remuneration policies and plans concerning the
directors and the senior management, including:

e Discussing the assessment standards, performance
evaluation procedures and remuneration and rewards
and punishments of Directors and senior management
and submitting the same to the Board of Directors for
approval,

e Assessing the duty performance of Directors and
senior management of the Company and conducting
performance evaluation for them;

e Supervising the implementation of the Company’s
remuneration system; and

e Obtaining the authorization granted by the Board
of Directors to consider and determine the specific
remuneration package of all the executive Directors and
senior management, including non-pecuniary benefits,
pension rights and amounts of compensation (including
compensation arising from loss or termination of office or
appointment) and make recommendations to the Board of
Directors on the remuneration of non- executive Directors.
The factors to be considered by the Remuneration and
Appraisal Committee include the remuneration paid
by companies of same kinds, the time devoted by the
Directors and the duties of the Directors, the terms of
employment of other positions in the Company and
whether the remuneration should be determined by
performance.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration and Appraisal
Committee convened two meetings in total, with details as
follows:
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e On 3 April 2020, the first meeting of the Remuneration
and Appraisal Committee of the third session of the Board
in 2020 was convened, whereby the proposal regarding
the remuneration of the Company’s directors, supervisors
and senior management for 2020 was considered and
approved.

e On 7 August 2020, the first meeting of the Remuneration
and Appraisal Committee of the fourth session of the
Board in 2020 was convened, whereby the proposal
regarding the remuneration of the Company’s directors
and supervisors for 2020 was considered and approved.

All the members of the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee
attended the above meetings.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of three Directors: Mr.
XIE Qiuye (independent non-executive Director), Mr. QU
Jiuhui (independent non-executive Director) and Mr. TANG
Chaoxiong (executive Director). Mr. XIE Qiuye serves as
the chairman of the Nomination Committee. The primary
responsibilities of the Company’s Nomination Committee are
to formulate the procedures and standards for nominating
candidates as Directors and senior management, and conduct
preliminary review of the qualifications and other credentials
of the candidates for Directors and senior management. In
addition, according to the Board Member Diversity Policy
(“Policy”), the Nomination Committee is responsible of
supervising execution of the Policy. The appointment of the
members of the Board of Directors shall be orientated by
the need of skill and experience of the Board of Directors
for its overall normal operation, and based on the principle
of selecting talented people, while fully considering the
above-mentioned goals and requirements for diversity.
The Nomination Committee will also discuss any possible
amendments and propose the amendments to the Board for
its review and approval, so as to ensure the effectiveness. The
Nomination Committee is of the opinion that the composition
of the Board during the Reporting Period conformed to the
requirements of the Policy.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee
convened three meetings in total, with details as follows:

e The first meeting of the Nomination Committee of the third
session of the Board of Directors in 2020 was convened
on 7 July 2020 to consider and approve the proposal on
the appointment of the Deputy General Manager of the
Company.
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24

e The second meeting of the Nomination Committee of
the third session of the Board of Directors in 2020 was
convened on 20 July 2020 to consider and approve
the proposal on the recommendation and review of the
candidates for the fourth session of the Board of Directors
of the Company.

e The first meeting of the Nomination Committee of the
fourth session of the Board of Directors in 2020 was
convened on 20 November 2020 to consider and approve
the proposal on the appointment of the General Counsel
of the Company.

All the members of the Nomination Committee attended the
above meetings.

Strategic Committee

The Company’s Strategic Committee consists of five Directors:
Mr. CHEN Dongging (executive Director and chairman),
Mr. SHEN Xiaoliu (independent non-executive Director),
Mr. GU Yuchun (non-executive Director), Ms. GE Xiaojing
(non-executive Director) and Mr. ZHANG Jun (executive
Director and General Manager). Mr. CHEN Dongqing serves
as the chairman of the Strategic Committee. The primary
responsibilities of the Strategic Committee are to formulate
the Company’s overall development plans and investment
decision-making procedures, and promote the Company’s
rule-of-law construction, including:

e Reviewing the Company’s long-term development
strategies;

e Reviewing the Company’s strategic plans and
implementation reports;

e Reviewing significant capital expenditure, investment and
financing projects subject to the approval of the Board;

e Authorizing the management meeting of the Company to
formulate specific plans, negotiate and implement relevant
review and approval procedures, execute contracts and
relevant documents, and handle relevant procedures for
the above matters; and

e  Studying the overall plan of rule-of-law construction of
the Company, bringing forward suggestions thereof, and
monitoring the implementation thereof.
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During the Reporting Period, the Strategic Committee
convened one meeting in total, with details as follows:

e The first meeting of the Strategy Committee of the fourth
session of the Board of Directors in 2020 was convened
on 10 August 2020 to consider and approve the proposal
for Beijing Guodian Longyuan Environmental Engineering
Co., Ltd. to cooperate with Nantong Tianshenggang
Power Generation Co., Ltd. in the preparation of a joint
venture company by way of equity participation.

All the members of the Strategic Committee attended the
above meeting.

Director’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
Financial Statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020.

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear and understandable
assessment report in respect of the financial statements for 2020 and
other issues required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules
and other monitoring regulations. The management has provided
such explanations and information to the Board as necessary to
enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial
information and position of the Group.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

In addition, appropriate insurance coverage for Directors’ liabilities
has been arranged against potential legal proceedings to be taken
against the Directors.

Compliance with the Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct and
rules governing dealings by all Directors and Supervisors in the
securities of the Company. After specific inquiries, all Directors
and Supervisors of the Company have confirmed that, as of 31
December 2020, they had strictly complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code for the Reporting Period.

To ensure the compliance with relevant requirements under the
Listing Rules and protect the Shareholders’ interests, the Board will
examine the corporate governance practices and the operations of
the Company from time to time.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Company places prime importance to risk management and
internal control. An internal control system has been established to
protect the Shareholders’ and the Company’s interests.

The Board is responsible for the internal control and risk
management systems of the Company and its subsidiaries,
reviewing and approving significant policies and reviewing the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems.
Such system is designed to mitigate the inherent risks faced by the
Group in its business to an acceptable level, rather than eliminate all
risks. Therefore, this system only provides reasonable, not absolute,
assurance against major false statements or financial losses in
financial data.

Internal Control

The Company has set up a set of internal control rules, including
“Rules and Procedures of the General Meeting”, “Rules and
Procedures of the Board Meeting”, “Rules and Procedures of
the Supervisor Meeting”, “Terms of References for the Strategic
Committee of the Board”, “Terms of References for the Audit
Committee of the Board”, “Terms of References for the Nomination
Committee of the Board”, “Terms of References for the Remuneration
and Appraisal Committee of the Board”, “Provisions on Information
Disclosure”, “Administrative Measures on Connected Transactions”,
“Administrative Measures on Comprehensive Risk”, “Internal Control
Principle Policy” and “Administrative Measures on Compliance”, etc.

The Company has also established the Finance and Property
Department, the Enterprise Management Department, the Audit
Department and the Discipline Inspection Committee Office (Party
Committee Inspection Office) and has sufficient personnel in each
department in charge of financial operations, risk management,
internal auditing, anti-corruption, etc. Besides, the Company has
provided regular training to the Group’s employees whose duties
relate to finance, risk management and internal auditing so as to
ensure that they are well qualified and experienced.

Every department of the Company is able to submit data to the
Board of Directors smoothly. The General Manager is the most
senior point of contact for each department of the Company who has
the duty to effectively report to the Board in relation to the operations
of each department, and to coordinate and mobilize the demands
of each department to promote reasonable decision-making among
the Company. The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing
the financial control, internal control and risk management systems
of the Company; discussing the internal control system with the
management to ensure that the management has fulfilled its duties
to establish an effective internal control system; taking the initiatives
or appointed by the Board of Directors to conduct researches on
important findings of and the management’s responses on internal
control matters.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT
Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*

R EE K A=

ARABEERERERRABEHIIE -
BRI T —ERIEHIRE - LURRREA
AR R FRIS °

EZSHARARENB AR ARREER
RBREREZREEEME  BHRIAEERK
RUARRTAREZERAREERGNER
% - ZEZRE EEBASBEERBH EER
MANERBREAIZEXHIRE - MIEERAA
R - Ei - ZERSEE AR M E R
REBERRERASK M BERIRHAIEMIE
IBYIRTE ©

R EPEE R

ARFRYT —ERFZEHHIE - 2R
RREZEHRA) (EBEFEZERA -
(BEERFRR) (EFTUREREET
TEHRD - (BEZEFFHZESTEAAD
(BESREZESTHEMLD  (EFe¥H
MEEZZEETFHAR)  (EEREF
BERRE) (FEEXZEEME) (&
EEREIEHOR) « CRBPHEHIEAHE) &
(CRRERWR) FHEHE -

AAFERYL T BTSERER - AEREEE -
B HNLEENAE(BRRUER » I/T
ERBPIECHE T RRHIAR - BEMEEE -
RBRER - AEET  REBREABTE-
AN ARBTERSAKEANTEEM
% - BRERE - ARPE B TRHEHEI
HEREHER R EEMER -

ARESHEPIHERFEZREESOH
BIRG 23 - @EIRIEREAR R ZERFIR
RREHED - EEERSEPIREER R
EREEE - WA RFBHEHFINFL
HBARBATNSIPARAE - FEFFEEEA
BERSARMPHES - REpEs RERE
EHIE - REEE W BT RR - R
EIRE ORI TIE PARESL A R R AR I 2
7 THRBEFTENTIR - BAMABE
HEENEZHEHERNEEENEEETT
BT



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (C

The Group communicated in a timely manner on the identified
flaws of significant internal control and carefully assessed the
potential risks. The supervising department put forward corrective
actions, and obtained the approval from the leadership prior to its
implementation. The leadership and the audit department monitored
its implementation to ensure monitoring flaws resolved in time and

properly.
Risk Management

System construction: At present, the Group’s comprehensive risk
management system pilot construction has completed “three bases,
two handbooks, one report, one standard” (that is, risk information
database, risk case database, risk index database, risk operation
handbook and internal control handbook, internal control evaluation
standard and internal control evaluation report), initially realizing the
standardization and systematization of risk management and internal
control.

Architectural construction: The Group’s overall risk management
system has extended laterally to every department horizontally
and vertically to every affiliate. The Board of Directors is the
highest decision-making organization in respect of overall risk
management. The director of each department is responsible for
organizing and carrying out daily work in respect of comprehensive
risk management. The Company has set up a leadership group for
the construction of risk management system led by the General
Manager and composed members of the heads of departments, and
also established an overall risk management leadership group at
every specific unit, clearly defining the management responsibilities
at all levels.
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Work implementation

This year, from the aspects of optimizing the total risk management
system, enhancing the working mechanism, strengthening
monitoring and early warning, etc., the Company continued to
strengthen the mechanism construction, organize annual risk
assessment, quarterly risk analysis, and monthly risk monitoring,
intensify major risk management and special risk prevention,
conscientiously consolidate the results of risk management, keep
driving the organic integration of risk management and business
management, gradually improve the risk management capabilities,
and strengthen the Company’s consistent enhancement of operation
and management.

In 2020, the risk assessment adopted analytic hierarchy process,
and according to the statistical results by different levels and
weights, five major risks were identified for the Company this year,
namely: cash flow risk, market change and market competition
risk, work safety, quality and environmental protection stability risk,
economic benefit risk and reform and business transformation risk;
combined with the international business risk and legal risk that
are identified at the level of China Energy, there are seven major
risk points in total. With regard to the seven major risk points, the
Company has formulated corresponding pre-event, in-process and
post-event countermeasures, to ensure that, through periodical
summarization of the management of the seven major risk points, the
major risks are under control and controllable.

In order to enhance the risk management consciousness of all the
staff and promote the conscientiousness and initiative of all staff
to participate in risk management, the Group also fostered the risk
management culture of participation of all the staff and created good
atmosphere of risk management by enhancing risk management
knowledge training and multi-channel and multi-media publicity.

In 2020, the Group carried out the evaluation of internal control over
all its subsidiaries by the way of independent implementation. The
evaluation covered financial management, operation monitoring,
compliance monitoring, risk management and other major aspects.
And it promoted the construction of the overall risk management
system within the whole Group. The Group holds a meeting every
year to discuss risk management and internal monitoring systems
to ensure that the management has fulfilled its responsibilities to
establish effective systems. The Board believes that the current
monitoring system of the Group is effective and adequate and
considers that the resources, qualifications and experiences of the
staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting functions, its
training programs and budgets thereof are adequate. The Board
will continue to monitor the risk management and internal control
systems in the following year.
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Inside Information and Insider Trading Management

In order to promote fairness, transparency, accountability and
responsibility, which are the core principles of good corporate
governance, the Group notifies the Stock Exchange and discloses
to Shareholders and other holders of its listed securities the Group’s
inside information in a timely manner pursuant to the Listing Rules
and Part XIVA of the SFO.

In order to monitor and regulate potential insider trading activities
and ensure the confidentiality of inside information, the Company
has established a set of Management Rules on Inside Information of
Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited in
accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, SFO, Listing Rules
and other applicable laws and regulations and the requirements of
the AOA. The management of the registration of inside information
shall be the responsibility of the Board of Directors; the secretary
of the Board of Directors shall organize the implementation of the
registration of inside information; the Department of Securities
Financing and Legal Affairs (the office of the Board of Directors)
(“the office of the Board of Directors”) shall be responsible for
the judgment and disclosure of inside information and improve
the management over the registration management of insiders of
inside information; and all the departments and subsidiaries shall
report matters that may involve inside information to the office
of the Board of Directors. Once the inside information involves
disclosure requirements and has the conditions for disclosure, an
announcement will be issued in a timely manner according to the
applicable information disclosure procedures and the obligation to
disclose information will be fulfilled.
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Auditors and Remuneration

Ernst & Young and ShineWing were appointed as auditors for the
financial statements prepared in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards and Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises of PRC for the Reporting Period, respectively.
For the Reporting Period, the fees payable to Ernst & Young and
ShineWing for audit services were RMB8,000 million and RMB2,560
million, respectively. For the Reporting Period, the fee payable to
Ernst & Young for non-auditing services was RMB4,605 million.
ShineWing did not provide any non-auditing services for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Ernst & Young, as the Company’s external auditor, has the
responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements, which are
set out on Pages 178 to 186 of this Annual Report.

Communications with Shareholders

The Company highly appreciates Shareholders’ opinions and
advice, actively organizes various investor related activities to
maintain communication with the Shareholders and responds to
reasonable requests of Shareholders in time.

8.1 Convening Extraordinary General Meetings by
Shareholders

According to the AOA, two or more Shareholders holding
more than 10% of the shares carrying the right to vote at the
meeting sought to be held may sign one or more counterpart
requisitions requiring the Board to convene an extraordinary
general meeting and stating the objectives of the meeting.
The Board shall, in accordance with the applicable laws and
regulations and the AOA, furnish a written reply stating its
agreement or disagreement to convene the extraordinary
general meeting within ten days upon receipt of such
requisition. If the Board agrees to convene the extraordinary
general meeting, a notice for convening the meeting shall be
issued within five days upon adoption of the resolution by the
Board.
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If the Board does not agree to convene the extraordinary
general meeting, or if it fails to give its feedback in writing
within ten days upon receipt of such requisition, the
Shareholders individually or jointly holding an aggregate of
more than 10% of the shares carrying the right to vote at the
meeting sought to be held shall be entitled to propose to the
Board of Supervisors to convene an extraordinary general
meeting, and shall submit its proposal in writing to the Board
of Supervisors. If the Board of Supervisors agrees to convene
the extraordinary general meeting, a notice for convening such
meeting shall be issued within five days upon receipt of such
requisition.

If the Board of Supervisors fails to issue a notice for such
meeting within the prescribed period, the Board of Supervisors
shall be deemed not to convene and preside at the meeting,
and the Shareholders individually or jointly holding an
aggregate of more than 10% of the shares of the Company for
more than 90 consecutive days may convene and preside at
the meeting at their own discretion.

The procedures of the meeting convened by requisitioning
Shareholders due to the failure of holding such meeting by
the Board upon the aforesaid requisition shall be as similar
as possible to those in which general meetings are to be
convened by the board.

Putting Forward Proposals at the General Meetings

According to the AOA, when the Company convenes a
general meeting, the Shareholders individually or jointly
holding more than 3% of the shares of the Company shall have
the right to file the proposal. The Shareholders holding more
than 3% of the shares of the Company shall have the right to
file the temporary proposal in writing, and the Company shall
include matters in the proposal within the scope of duties and
responsibilities of the general meetings on the agenda, if the
criteria as specified in the AOA are met.
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8.3 Investor Relations Activities 83 REZHFZE
The Group has received questions from visiting investors, REBRZEZH  REBEFRES -
analysts and press thoughtfully and considered and answered DATED - FEEES R R - Ak - %
their related questions efficiently and accurately; the Group Tt E EFEREMRE - BB RIS
has paid close attention to the developing trends in the market, BB - IRIREE - BE - 680
and always communicated with the public in a realistic, AEENTHEITIER
objective and compliant way.
8.3.1 Results Roadshows 8.3.1 X4EHE
The Group did not carry out roadshow activities in 2020. 2020 F EAL B ARARKEE
& o
8.3.2 Investors’ Routine Visits
8.32 REZHEXKay
During the Reporting Period, the Company received 15
groups of investors and analysts by way of one-to-one/ WMEHRRN - ARFN—H—g
group/telephone meetings, totaling 22 people. D EER/EEEEAR
BFREE - DAI158R -
FEr22A o
8.4 Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
84 [MHEEESREHEH

According to the AOA, all the Directors shall attend general
meetings. The Shareholders may present enquiries to
the Board of Directors at such general meetings. If the
Shareholders need to contact the Board of Directors for
enquiries, they are also welcomed to send enquiries directly to
the Company, with contact details as follows:

Attn: The Department of Securities
Financing and Legal Affairs (the
Board of Directors Office)

REBE(RAIER)  2REEHEEH
BRERERRE - BRAIAERRAS &
RMEFREER - MRBREEH
MEBBREES - IR ATAERS
BHKEXEARRA - AEBESTN
LINE
WHA: EBFBEREREBA
EFEHAE

Address: Suite 1225, Building 1, Yard 16, otk PRI RS R AR
W.4th Ring Middle Road, Haidian 165 PT 157121225
District, Beijing, PRC TR - 100039

Postal Code: 100039 B 010-5765 7777

Tel: 010-5765 7777 BE : 010-5765 9705

Fax: 010-5765 9705 T EFE : 1296board@chnenergy.

Email: 1296board@chnenergy.com.cn com.cn

For the avoidance of doubt, the Shareholder(s) must
deposit and send the original duly signed written enquiry
or correspondence of any type to the above address, and
provide his or her full name, contact details and proof of
identification in order to give effect thereto.

heER  BEABIABENEE
BRI MR O ERER AT
RE Ll - WRERE  BES
KBRS DB - &M -
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8.5 Disseminating Information through the Internet

In order to promote good corporate governance and
increase transparency, the Company has set up a website
(www.01296.hk) as a channel to disseminate information.
The Company implements certain internal procedures to vet
information which is to be put on its website and also monitors
its website to ensure that all published information is up-to-
date and accurate.

8.6 Overseas Regulatory Announcement

As Longyuan Technology, a subsidiary of the Company, is
a public company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
the Company has complied with the requirements regarding
overseas regulatory announcements in accordance with Rule
13.10(B) of the Listing Rules.

Furthermore, as the corporate bonds of the Company are
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, the Company has
complied with the requirements regarding overseas regulatory
announcements in accordance with Rule 13.10(B) of the
Listing Rules in this regard.

Joint Company Secretaries

Mr. CAl Zhaowen is the secretary of the Board and the joint
company secretary and also the major internal contact person
of the Company. Please refer to the section headed “Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management — Company Secretary” for
further information.

Mr. LEE Kwok Fai Kenneth is the joint company secretary of the
Company. He is a director and head of corporate secretarial
services of TMF Hong Kong Limited.

In 2020, Mr. CAl Zhaowen and Mr. LEE Kwok Fai Kenneth took no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in compliance
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Mr. CAl Zhaowen resigned as the vice president, secretary to the
Board of Directors, joint company secretary and chief legal counsel
of the Company with effect from 22 January 2021 due to work
adjustment. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 22 January 2021.
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10. Amendments to the AOA

11.

The amendments to the AOA were approved by way of special
proposal at the Annual General Meeting for 2019 and the First Class
Shareholders Meeting for 2020 convened on 12 June 2020.

The Amendment to the AOA is to comply with the Official Reply
of the State Council on the Adjustment of the Regulations on the
Application of the Notice Period for Holding General Meetings of
Shareholders Listed Overseas and Other Matters (State Letter [2019]
No0.97), taking into account the relevant regulations of the regulatory
authorities and the actual situation of the Company. For details of the
amendments to the AOA, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 31 March 2020, 27 April 2020 and 12 June 2020.

Connected Transaction Management

In order to strengthen the Company’s management of connected
transactions, the Company has established the “Management Rules
on the Conduct of Connected Transactions of Guodian Technology
& Environment Group Corporation Limited” and designated the office
of the Board of Directors and Finance and Property Division for the
management of connected transactions. In order to ensure that the
Company’s connected transactions are carried out in accordance
with the relevant rules and regulations and that the aggregated
transaction amounts do not exceed the annual caps, the Company
has notified all the departments and subsidiaries regarding the
applicable continuing connected transaction caps, allocated
monitoring obligations to specific departments and subsidiaries,
and required the relevant departments and subsidiaries to report
to the senior management regarding the connected transactions
without delay. The Group has provided regular training to internal
staff in relation to connected transactions from time to time, and has
designated specialized personnel to report information to ensure full
compliance with the relevant Listing Rules.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT
Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*

10.

11.

H(RRAER) R

N A ERRIERAR IR E R A AL20205F 6
A 128 BFHM2019F Z R E K2 20204
F-RERIRREREBG -

KRERENRE - BERBER(ERAER
BEEM Em AR AAREASBASHRSE
FIEMATHRE) (B K[2019]9757) © &4
EERIBNEBREMARERER - HE
BRARNRER - MR AR ERMERFF
15+ 52 B ARRI20203A31H ~ 2020
FA4[27AK2020F6 A12BHAE -

REXZEE

BREARBINAERZER  ARAFEE
T(REMZRREBBRMNER A BMER
ZEEIE)  UEEEFTEMRERUE
ERNEEEERS - BEREAAREER
STRBBER P IERBIEARRZ B85
THBFE LR - AARESERHERSE
X5 ERBEMAMPIRMBAR - KBEE
REZEIRAPIRMBAR - WEKIAH
PP R B X RIS R BB R 5 MBS
REREHRE - AEBERABBTIRHTHE
B WHEEBABBESIHE - AR
2B TR ETRA



12.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (C

Emoluments of Directors and Senior Management

Details of the emoluments of Directors for the Reporting Period are
set out in Note 11 to the Financial Statements.

The emoluments of senior management (exclusive of Directors) for

12.
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the Reporting Period are within the following bands: BT -
2020 2019
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Emoluments Band (RVB) Individual Individuals
FNEEmE (A £ T) 2020F A B 20195 A%
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SUMMARY OF HUMAN RESOURCES
ANTEIFBER

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 6,049 staff, of which 2020128318 » "EEHLEE T6,049A -
4,304 or 71.2% were male while 1,745 or 28.8% were female. The staff EFRBHEEE4,304 A H71.2% : LWIEEE

structure is as follows: 1,745\ + 1528.8% - ABBABERIAT ¢
Table 1: Analysis of the Group’s Staff by Academic Qualification (The *—: ZXAEEREEZINEISINABRE
Number and Percentage of Staff) 7 tk)
1,097
1,009 18.1%

Postgraduate or above
WRERNE

[ Undergraduate
REAR

[ College diploma
REHFR

2591 [l Technical secondary
42.8% school or below
FERUT

18.2%

1,262
20.9%

Table 2: Analysis of the Group’s Staff by Age (The Number and %{=: ZAEBRFREINEIINANER
Percentage of Staff) Ao

220
3.6%

962

55?25;:, Employees aged 35 and below

BHEEUATET

[ Employees aged 36-45
36-45mE T

[ Employees aged 46-55
46-555 8T

I Employees aged 56 and above
56U EET
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SUMMARY OF HUMAN RESOURCES (CONTINUED)
ANERBER ()

2020 12A31H * ARAIXEET158% ° A
BERBRIT ¢

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had a total of 158 staff. The staff
structure is as follows:

Table 3: Analysis of the Company’s Staff by Academic Qualification X=: AATAREREINEIINAER
(The Number and Percentage of Staff) A7)
3 1
2%, 0.6%
‘ Postgraduate or above
HRERAE
Undergraduate
REXRF
83 [ College diploma
a0 71 REHR}

44.9% '
[ Technical secondary

school or below
FERUT

Table 4: Analysis of the Company’s Staff by Age (The Number and
Percentage of Staff)

14
8.9%

56
35.4%, 19%

58
36.7%

EMPLOYEE REMUNERATION SYSTEM AND
PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

The Company has implemented the Interim Measures Governing
Remuneration of the HQ, the Measures Governing Remuneration Payment
of the HQ, the Interim Measures Governing the Department Performance
Evaluation of the HQ and the Interim Measures Governing the Staff
Performance Evaluation of the HQ. The remuneration management
of the Company adheres to four principles, namely: the principle of
focusing on value creation and more work and more gain, the principle
of fairness, justice and reasonable gap, the principle of tripartite linkage
among enterprise performance, department performance and individual
performance and the principle of paying equal attention to process and
result and continuous improvement of performance. Every subsidiary or
branch has established its own management measures according to the
above principles and according to the regulations and rules of the HQ,
and then filed the same with the Group.

ARBRRFRETHNET DN (AEK
Bt

=M :

30 56 years old and above
565 2A L

46-55 years old
46-555%

[ 36-45 years old
36-455%

B 35 years old and below
35ERUT

STHMBIEMEREX

AR BRITCREBHIERETIE) - CREBHBN
SNEBIDE) - (AR EPIBEREREREGTH
EY R E TEMEZEREITINE) - ARF]
FNEBR2FOARA - Bl REBEAE %
LZB8mRA REAF  RIE - AEAMAE
BBRRA : RIEEZE - B - AABR=THER
8] BREEGARTE - BEREFESCERA - BF
2R RMRE BRRA - 2RAERE S ES A
RERIELMAEEER
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SUMMARY OF HUMAN RESOURCES (CONTINUED)

ANE R (E)

In 2020, the Company continued to implement the internal income
distribution mode based on the post value and performance contribution,
and formed the post performance salary mechanism of hierarchical
classification and diversification. The remuneration of the staff consists
of three parts: basic salary, performance salary and reward salary.
The performance salary is determined according to the Company’s
performance and performance evaluation. The reward salary is determined
according to the completion of the Company’s annual key work.

STAFF TRAINING

In 2020, the Company organized offline thematic training sessions such
as induction training for new employees, training for outstanding young
cadres, discipline inspection and supervision, and training on branding
topics as well as online training, totaling 161,559 training hours with 24.571
trainees throughout the year.

The Company actively carried out online training to ensure training
effectiveness. Due to the impact of COVID-19, the Group postponed
offline training this year and made full use of the online platforms to carry
out training activities. Firstly, the Group launched the “Micro Classroom”
activity, invited internal trainers from the Group to give lectures and
recorded 15 high-quality courses on engineering projects, refined
management and technological innovation to further promote internal
communication and sharing. Secondly, the Group made full use of the
“Rongzhi” online training platform of China Energy and organized the staff
to attend the “Cantian 5+5 Courses”, which covers financial management,
human resource management, refined management and technological
innovation, etc, a total of 147 trainees. Thirdly, the Group organized
cadres at or above the department level to attend the online study of the
Fourth Plenary Session of the Nineteenth Central Committee to achieve full
coverage of political caliber learning.

The Company has a flexible and innovative training model which
continuously improves the effects of our training. In December 2020,
the Group conducted a 5-day training course entitled “Orange Golden
Young Elite” for outstanding young cadres. The training courses focused
on topics such as the market-oriented reform of state-owned enterprises
under the new paradigm, innovative thinking in science and technology,
management capacity enhancement, structured expression, and stress
management. A total of 13 high-quality courses were taught by excellent
teachers invited from the Research Centre of SASAC, the State Ministry of
Science and Technology and the Party School of the Central Committee of
the CPC. Through action-based learning, sandbox simulations and other
training methods, the staffs’ strategic thinking and ability to solve practical
problems were effectively enhanced for the implementation of market-
oriented reforms.
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SUMMARY OF HUMAN RESOURCES (CONTINUED)

The working concepts of the Group for the next step is to actively
implement the new strategy of energy safety, focusing on the Group’s
“one goal, three type and five based, and seven leading” development
strategies and the key work tasks of Guodian Tech, vigorously promoting
the strategy of talents to strengthen enterprise, taking firm ideals and
beliefs as the foundation, followed by achieving high-quality development
of the enterprise, strengthening political theory literacy and training in
political capacity building, solidly carrying out professional competence
training and knowledge training, and comprehensively improving the
cadres ‘executive skills and employees’ knowledge and skills, focusing
on cultivating a team of high-quality professional talents catering to the
enterprise reform and development, and providing talent guarantee and
intellectual support for the construction of a world-class professional
technology environmental protection company.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This Report is the fifth annual Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG”) Report issued by the Group. This Report focuses on the
Group’s environmental, social and governance policies, as well as
specific management measures taken during the Reporting Period,
aiming at strengthening communication and connection between
and with the Group’s internal and external stakeholders.

The Group’s Board of Directors bears full responsibility for the
Group’s ESG strategy and reporting, and is responsible for assessing
and identifying the Group’s risks related to ESG and ensuring
that the Group has established proper and effective ESG risk
management as well as the internal control system. The Board of
Directors and all directors hereby guarantee that there are no false
records, misleading statements or major omissions in the contents
of this Report and that they are severally and jointly liable for the
authenticity, accuracy and completeness of the contents hereof.

1.1 Basic Information of the Report
Subject Scope of the Report

Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation
Limited and its subsidiaries.

Time Range of the Report

The Group’s Environmental, Social and Governance Report
is an annual report, with the reporting period from 1 January
2020 to 31 December 2020, where some of the statements
and data are appropriately traced back to the previous years.

Preparation Basis

The contents of this Report have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide” (the “ESG Reporting Guide”)
in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.

Access to the Report

This Report is published in the annual report of the Group.
You may download the Chinese and English versions of this
Report on the website disclosed by the Stock Exchange or the
website of the Group: http://www.khjt.com.cn/. This Report is
published in both Chinese and English. In case of ambiguity
between these two versions, the Chinese version shall prevail.

Terms used but not defined in this Report have the same
meaning as those defined in the Annual Report.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT
Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R g8 RERWRE

R E

ﬂiiﬁiﬁﬂi‘il%ﬁ}’ﬂ%‘fﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁfgiﬁiﬁ -t
RERTESGNRE - TENAAEEE
iaté: g RERT EEEIRE R A KRR
S HIRPREREY B E TR 5 - B AR ANSR AR
SE RSN AR T 2 [ R0 E R R 2

REEEEGHAEBHESGREE M E A
ErEE BEFNGREEAEEEH
ESGH AR » WHERAEERILAERENR
MESGRBERNAREEZERR - EFGR
EREFREAREABRT T FEEMERF
& REURARERNER Ia@TEW”E’]
BRI - EREMTE AR ER METE
e

1.1 BEERER

HEFTREE
HEMERAREERMHBRAALE
Mg AR

e rF A EE

REBGRE HERERRE) AT

EmE i&%ﬁﬁfﬁ%zozo@% SES

2020&12)%3157 73Rl K& EIE
BIBMLARIFMD o

RIS

A|ENABT RS R TR B &
“HEGRER - HERERmEESD
((ESG#HREHE S| ) MERKMARRLAY -

R

RREEFEAEENBFERF - &
Al ATEEE R PT R BB A I s AN R E B A
uhhttp://www.khjt.com.cn/ T~ & & &
RERE R R o RIRE AR 2
XX F AR - R iR AN AR
BHEEERR - AR XURRE -

AREPERERERMNAREAREF
EREMREELREREE °



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
R g kERWRE(B)

1.1

ESG Management Vision

At present, overall speaking, the world economy is in the
state of recovery, and China’s economic development has
entered a period of new normal and is at the crucial stage of
transformation and structural adjustments. With the further
deepening of the industrial structural transformation and
upgrading, the electric power industry is transforming from
the scale-oriented expansion to quality benefit-oriented
development. The commitment of 2060 carbon neutrality
proposed by China provides opportunities for the development
of new energy-saving and green low-carbon industries, and
brings new challenges and opportunities for the transformation
of the Group as well. The Group will closely focus on energy
structure adjustment and electric power technology reform,
under the guidance of the five new development concepts
of "innovation, coordination, greening, opening and sharing"
emphasized in CPC’s 14th Five-Year Plan and 2035 long-term
goal outline, adhere to the industrial development direction of
safer, cleaner, more efficient and sustainable energy utilization,
and make contribution to the construction of a beautiful China,
an ecological China, and a green China.

Over the years, the Group has committed to developing and
promoting environmental protection and energy conservation
solutions and renewable energy technologies while focusing
on the breakthrough of a range of key core technologies,
forming a strategic emerging industry cluster with comparative
advantages, enhancing its capability to fulfill its corporate
social responsibility and promoting clean electricity
production, ending up a pioneering company in environmental
protection, energy conservation and renewable energy in
China’s electric power sector.

Looking into the future, with the platform and resources
our controlling shareholder China Energy provides, we will
continue to reinforce the leadership of the CPC over the
state-owned enterprise and firmly observe the market rules
and mechanisms to improve and strengthen the major core
business sections including energy conservation, environment
protection, wind power products and services, and transform
the enterprise from healthy development to sustainable
development. We will strive to become a world-leading
product and service provider in terms of the environmental
protection and energy conservation solutions and renewable
energy equipment and solutions. And repay our shareholders
and the society with excellent business performance.
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1.2 Materiality Analysis of the Topics

With regard to the process of Materiality Analysis, the
Company will, according to the ESG Reporting Guide of the
Stock Exchange and with reference to the Global Reporting
Initiative (the “GRI”), collect and record the main stakeholders’
concerned topics and the importance of each topic through
questionnaires, interviews, etc., conduct importance
analysis and sort the items, identify the Company’s material
environmental, social, and governance topics and disclose
them in the report, as shown below.
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Promote the development of new energy and
environmental service industries
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A Employee care and team building
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Impact of the topic on the company
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O Environment Topic
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2 PRACTICING THE CONCEPT OF GREEN
DEVELOPMENT

2.1 Make use of industry advantages and promote clean
development

Since its establishment, the Group has always attached
great importance to business operation and the sustainable
development of society and environment, and made use of
the company’s advantages of technology and environmental
protection, and actively put the corporate vision of Green
Technology for A Better World into practice.
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The Group, focusing on the main businesses of power
generation and coal of China Energy and adhering to the
industrial development direction of efficient and clean use
of energy, has formed two major core business segments,
i.e., environmental protection and energy conservation
solutions, renewable energy production and services, making
outstanding contributions to the development of green energy.

The Group is currently China’s largest energy-saving
environmental protection service provider of conventional coal-
fired power plants and a leading manufacturer of renewable
energy system services and equipment, and continues to
boost the industry with leading technologies. The Group has
successively been selected for Global TOP 500 New Energy
Enterprises for nine years, and cultivated a series of well-
known brands such as Longyuan Environmental, Longyuan
Technology, United Power and Guoneng Zhishen etc., through
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Segment Main Business Industrial Position Representing Enterprises
it} TEEK %t R&kdH
Environmental Environmental Protection  Flue gas treatment,water Leading enter prise in the Longyuan Environmental

Protection and Energy
Conservation Solutions

RREMEFEANR 03
Energy conservation
solutions
ETRERAN R

Power station EPC

BILEPC

treatment, noise control,
sludge treatment etc. for
coal-fired power plants

MEEHERAE - KA
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Boiler energy conservation,
steam turbine energy
conservation, excess heat
and residual pressure
utilization, cold-end
energy conservation, etc.
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stations, technical service
of energy conservation for
powerplants,etc.
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thermal power plant
environmental protection
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Energy Saving Technology
Co., Ltd.("Longyuan
Energy Conservation®)

Longyuan Technology
(Plasma ignition business)
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Segment Main Business Industrial Position Representing Enterprises
it TEEK %t R&kdH
Renewable energy WTG products and Complete machine World-leading wind United Power
equipment services technology of WTG, power overall solution Longyuan Electrical
manufacturing and variable pitch technology ~ supplier, industry-leading  Guoneng 1&C
service and converter technology,  customized operation Chifeng Wind Power
covering the entire and maintenance service
industrial chain of wind provider
power equipment design
and manufacturing
A RRESE R IR R S AR RERERN  SRERMN  PRELNEERRERT  Bae¥N
Snatiy BERER  FRMAF TRELNE  ERER
R R RE R RCEEREE R
Electronic-informatization-  Power plant DCS, First-rate in China Guoneng Zhishen
based power generation ~ informatization Guoneng 18C
management system
BHETEEL EHOCS * ERLERZSR BR—R BIEZES
¥ it

2.1.1 Segment of Environmental Protection and Energy

Conservation Solutions
Environmental Protection Business

Longyuan Environmental is one of the earliest domestic
enterprises specializing in the thermal power plant
flue gas treatment and electric power environmental
protection, as well as the largest desulfurization and
denitrification project service provider and franchised
company in PRC.

In 2020, Longyuan Environmental installed 17 units
of wet flue gas desulfurization devices with a total
installed capacity of 4,532 MW; 16 units of technically
transformed wet flue gas desulfurization devices,
involving installed capacity of 3,610 MW; installed 5
units of new flue gas denitrification devices, with a total
installed capacity of 1,000 MW; 25 units of technically
transformed flue gas denitrification devices, involving an
installed capacity of 11,170 MW.

As of 31 December 2020, Longyuan Environmental
had put into operation a total of 275 million kW installed
capacity of desulfurization units, as well as a total of 191
million kW installed capacity of denitrification units.
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As of 31 December 2020, the total installed capacity
of Longyuan Environmental desulfurization concession
projects is 15,740 MW, the total installed capacity of
desulfurization operation and maintenance projects
is 22,930 MW, and the total is 38,670 MW. A total
of 391,800 tons of SO, were removed by units of
desulfurization concession projects, a total of 890,200
tons of SO, were removed by units of desulfurization
operation and maintenance projects.

The total installed capacity of the denitrification
concession projects is 11,840 MW, the total installed
capacity of the denitrification operation and maintenance
projects is 6,320 MW, and the total installed capacity
is 18,160 MW. A total of 59,800 tons of NO, were
removed by units of denitrification concession projects,
a total of 16,100 tons of NO, were removed by units of
denitrification operation and maintenance projects.

There were 21 sewage treatment plants (stations)
operated by Lucency, involving the operation of sewage
treatment, reclaimed water and water supply, and
with the designed treatment capacity of 1,290,000 t/
d. The water product of the sewage treatment plant
was discharged after meeting the discharge and reuse
standards stipulated in the applicable laws, regulations
and standards such as the “Discharge Standard of
Pollutants for Municipal Wastewater Treatment Plant
(GB18918-2002)", the “Reuse of Urban Recycling Water
— Water Quality Standard for Urban Miscellaneous Water
Consumption (GB/T19820-2002)", etc., or was reused
by the industrial enterprises such as power plant after
further retexture. Through the water operation mode,
as of 31 December 2020, the sewage treatment plant
had treated 226.5002 million tons of sewage (including
reclaimed water and supplied water).

In order to strengthen the dust control and elimination
of power plants, build a dust-free operation benchmark
power plant, and improve the control standards of
coal dust, the company has implemented the closed
transformation of the coal yard warehouse. Longyuan
Engineering newly set up 15 coal yard close projects in
2020, covering an area of 467,000 m?. The number of
new coal yard close projects has added up to 41, with a
total coverage of 1,279,500 m?.
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Business of Energy Conservation Solutions

The Group has highlighted the key role of science and
technology advancement in energy conservation and
emission reduction and made full use of its advantages
in industrial technology and management.

The business of Longyuan Energy Conservation covers
the design, manufacturing and field implementation of
steam turbine proper, cold end, auxiliary machinery
and heating technology, and has achieved a total of
125 patents. The main energy-saving technologies
include the whole- plant comprehensive efficiency
promotion and energy conservation optimization
technical reconstruction taking into account flexibility,
low-energy heat supply technology (winning the first
prize of China Power Science and Technology Award,
and got successfully implemented in 8 projects); the
steam graded heating, power, heat and electricity co-
generation energy-conservation technology (winning the
first prize of National Electric Power Workers’ Technical
Achievement Award by of China Electricity Council
and got successfully implemented in 6 projects); the
technology of revamping the through-flow for steam
turbines of 300MW and below (nearly 70 turbine
generator sets revamped); the technology of revamping
nozzle groups and blade top steam seals of 660MW and
below (nearly 200 turbine generator sets revamped);
the design of long- distance and large-temperature-
difference heating pipe network, etc. 232 contract
energy management projects were implemented, and
the contracted energy project saved an average of
about 280,000 tons of standard coal in the past three
years. Longyuan Energy Conservation signed 17 new
contracts in 2020, and was awarded "Energy-saving
Diagnosis Recommendation Unit of Beijing Municipal
Bureau of Economy and Information Technology in
2020" and "Energy-saving Diagnosis Recommendation
Unit of Energy-saving and Comprehensive Utilization
Department of Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology of China in 2020".
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The oil-saving ignition products of Longyuan Technology
fuel has been maintaining its leading position in the
industry, and the company is the only one in the industry
with overseas plasma ignition performance. Longyuan
Technology continues to carry out small-scale plasma
ignition system design optimization, and constantly
reduces systematic costs and enhances product
competitiveness. At the same time, the company is
accelerating the strategy of going global and continues
to expand the market space of fuel- saving ignition
business in East Asia and Southeast Asia. At present,
Longyuan Technology’s plasma ignition technology has
been successfully applied to 902 sets of devices, with
an installed capacity of 390 million kW, taking up 90% of
global market, with cumulative fuel savings of more than
10 million tons.

Power station EPC

Longyuan Engineering is the power station EPC
construction platform of the Group, which has 73
patents in the fields of biomass power generation, solar
thermal power generation, cold-end optimization of
thermal power units, waste heat utilization of thermal
power plants, and high-sodium coal combustion, etc.
It has the Power Engineering Construction General
Contracting Grade | Qualification, Engineering
Supervision Grade B Qualification, Bidding Agency
Grade A Qualification, Engineering Consulting Grade C
Qualification, and Technology and Product Import and
Export Qualifications. As a national high-tech enterprise,
it has passed the Three Standards (quality, environment,
occupational health and safety) In One Management
System Certification and the Nuclear Industry Quality
Management System Certification, and has also passed
the certification of Work Safety Standardization Grade
| of China Electric Power Construction Association
(CEPCA).
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2.1.2 Segment of Renewable Energy Equipment

Manufacturing and Services
WTG Products and Services

United Power has produced 887 wind turbines in the
year (including 11 units of 1.5 MW wind turbines, 598
units of 2 MW wind turbines, 181 units of 3 MW wind
turbines, 24 units of 3.2 MW wind turbines, 72 units of
3.4 MW wind turbines, 1 unit of 4.5 MW wind turbines,
totaling 2,081.6 MW), marking significant contribution
to the development of green renewable energy. United
Power has accumulatively produced and sold 13,200
units of wind turbines, which was equal to 22,718 MW.
Taking 2,000 hours as used annually, the carbon dioxide
emissions of the company in the year were about
40,801,700 tons. The wind turbine quality control system
of United Power has passed the integrated certification
of China Classification Society, and the operational
maintenance subsidiary of United Power has passed the
Global Consistency Standard — TUV Wind Power Service
System Certification. In the Notice on Benchmarking
Results of Wind Power Operation Indicators of Electric
Power Industry in 2019 issued by China Electricity
Council on 4 August 2020, statistics were made on
the availability of wind turbines in the benchmarking
areas of 59 wind farms, of which the availability index of
combined power units was the best in 9 areas, ranking
the first.

The Group’s branch Chifeng Wind Power is the Group’s
wind- light power generation and operation enterprise.
In 2020, the company’s wind and photovoltaic power
generation totaled 438,344,100 kwh, equivalent to
367,300 tons of CO, emission reduction, 85.48 tons of
S0O,, 85.48 tons of NO,, and 16.66 tons of particulate
matter’.

1. Publicly available and up-to-date authoritative data:
According to the Annual Development Report of the
Chinese Electric Power Industry (2020) by CEC, in
2019, the power supply standard coal consumption
of the thermal power plants of 6,000 kW and above
around China was 306.4 g/kwh; and the emissions
of CO,, particulate matter, SO, and NO, were 838
g/kwh, 0.038 g/kwh, 0.187 g/kwh and 0.195 g/kwh
respectively.
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2.2

2.1.3 International Development

Based on the well-known brand effect, scientific project
management and good quality reputation, the Group
has sped up its entry into the international market. The
plasma ignition devices of the company have entered
the markets of South Korea, Russia, Indonesia, Turkey
and Zimbabwe, etc. The wind turbine equipment of
the company has entered the markets of the United
States and South Africa. The company’s seawater
desulfurization business has entered the markets of Sri
Lanka, Philippines, Cambodia, Turkey and Indonesian,
etc., and environmentally friendly equipment entered the
markets of Vietnam, Indonesia, Bangladesh, Pakistan
and Japan etc. Its automatic control systems and
engineering services have entered the markets of India,
Indonesia, Pakistan and Africa.

Reduce Resource Consumption Adhere to the Concept
of Resource Saving

The Group adheres to the concepts of green development,
strictly implements China’s environmental protection laws and
regulations, and adheres to the coordinated development
between the company’s interest and energy conservation
& environmental protection. With “Energy Conservation,
Consumption Reduction, Emission Reduction, Efficiency
Increase” as the goal, the Group strengthens the scientific
management and scientific utilization of energy and constantly
improves the energy utilization rate, so as to make the Group a
conservation-oriented and technology-based enterprise.
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As an advanced environmental protection service company,
the Group, except for attaching great importance to
energy conservation services in the Group’s own business
operation, also takes very seriously of resource saving in its
production and operation processes, and strictly abides by
the Environmental Protection Law of PRC, the Water Law of
PRC, Energy Conservation Law of PRC and other laws and
regulations, requires all subsidiaries to use energy reasonably
and effectively, to reduce costs, improve comprehensive
benefits, and to formulate energy conservation management
systems based on their own business characteristics.
Under the call of the Group, United Power has formulated
the “Energy Conservation and Consumption Reduction
Management System”, Chifeng Wind Power has formulated
the “Resources and Energy Economical Use Management
System”, Longwei Power Generation Technology Service
Co., Ltd., an subsidiary of Longyuan Energy Conservation,
has formulated the “Energy Conservation and Consumption
Reduction Management Regulations”, Longyuan Technology
has formulated the “Energy and Resource Control Procedure”,
which cover management measures including energy saving,
fuel saving and water saving. The Group also implemented
energy conservation and consumption reduction management
in accordance with the requirements of Health, Safety, and
Environment Three-in-one Management System (the “HSE
Management System”). By establishing and reinforcing the
applicable rules and regulations, the Group has effectively
stimulated saving actions, restrained waste, and continuously
optimized the external and internal environment for the
construction of a conservation-oriented enterprise, thus
forming a long-term mechanism for resource conservation
and ensuring continuous deepening of the construction of a
conservation- oriented enterprise.
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2.2.1 Energy Management

The Group’s energy consumption in the production
and operation processes mainly includes: electricity,
gasoline, diesel and natural gas, etc. Power consumption
mainly comes from the production processes of wind
turbines, blades, desulfurization catalysts and other
products; the debugging of large automation systems
and other equipment; the running of project construction
lighting system, motors and welding machines; the
operation of the wind farm equipment and office power
supply, etc. The gasoline consumption mainly comes
from the use and maintenance of commercial vehicles
and equipment inspection and repair vehicles. Diesel
consumption mainly comes from the product transport
vehicles for wind turbines, blades, desulfurization
catalysts and so on, and from the running of power
station diesel generators. Natural gas consumption
mainly comes from the daily catering of the company
dining hall.
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Performance Indicators 2020

BRER

2019 2018

Total power consumption (kwh)
BREEE(FAKN)

635,185,323.50

Total office area power consumption (kwh)
MAEEEBE(TRA)

8,711,225.00

Total productive process power consumption (kwh) 626,474,098.50
HEBIERE(TAE)

8,071,269.62

1,632,184,569.12  1,740,389,855.43

7,669,114.43

1,624,113,299.50 1,732,720,741.00

Power consumption per MW product (kwh/MW) 1,182.90 2,438.62 310.83
BARERREERE(FAHIKR)
Assembly workshop power consumption (kwh) 698,922.00 1,039,184.00 312,690.00
BRBHEEE(FAKN)
Installed capacity (M) 2,053.50 1,244.50 1,006.00
KEEHECKR)
Power consumption per blade (kwh)? 5,476.01 11,341.71 8,837.312
B EAREE(FLIF)
Blade workshop power consumption (kwh) 8,663,052.00 9,050,688.00 8,059,623.00
EREMREE(TAM)
Number of blades (pcs) 1,582.00 798.00 912.00
ERX8(X)
2020 F #&
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Performance Indicators 2020 2019 2018
ERER
Gasoline consumption (ton) 869.48 1,434.69 887.05
FUREREE ()
Diesel consumption (fon) 35.36 48.42 189.69
S HFEE (1)
Natural gas consumption (normal m3) 16,254.90 162,307.00 431,379.00
RATBREE (BEV )
Heating power outsourced for the office building

of HQ® (GJ) 28,563.75 20,885.61 4,532,396.28
REBPREINEE ) B (FIEH)?
Comprehensive energy consumption (thousand

kwh) 646,190.22 1,651,691.69 1,757,928.46
REBEIRBREE (T T L0F)
Comprehensive energy consumption intensity

(kwh/10,000 yuan of revenue) 413.58 1,304.76 1540.45
FAatRERERE (TRR/EITEW
Total greenhouse gas emissions (1CO,e) 390,338.17 1,000,699.75 1,066,082.55
BEREGHNE W —EikE =S
Direct greenhouse gas emissions (t1CO,e)* 2,811.60 4,903.95 4,270.15
HEREREHINEW_StikEE)
Indirect greenhouse gas emissions (1CO,e)° 387,526.57 995,795.81 1,061,812.40

FERERBHINE W _a/tikEE)
Greenhouse gas emission intensity (1CO e)/10,000

yuan of revenue) 0.25 0.79 0.93

BERBYEHGRE W —a/LitE 218 T &)
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2 In 2018, United Power replaced the heating equipment
that burns natural gas in the blade workshop with
electric heating equipment, therefore, the power
consumption of the single blade increased.

. The heat purchased for the production and
administration of the Group’s headquarters building,
Guoneng 1&C, United Power and Longyuan
Technology is included.

4 Basis of calculation: The gasoline, diesel and natural
gas consumed by the Company.

J Basis of calculation: The total power consumption of
the Company and the outsourced heat.

Each subsidiary of the Group, in order to strictly
implement the energy management system, has
established a relevant responsible department to
manage energy and developed its energy management
plan according to the concrete conditions.

In order to ensure the rational use of its resources and
energy, Longyuan Energy Conservation has kept its
indicators of consumption of resources and energy to
a minimum and has formulated the Regulations for the
Management of Energy Conservation and Consumption
Reduction. It requires the whole company to carry out
staff publicity and education, and to enhance staff
awareness of economy through the posting of publicity
boards, meetings, documents, board newspapers and
other forms. At the same time, the company is required
to select energy-saving lamps, and the office lamps
shall be turned off and electric appliances shall be shut
off when people leave the office, etc. Moreover, the
company carries out the supervision and inspection on
the energy conservation and consumption reduction
every quarter, and implements rectification measures for
the problems discovered.
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United Power has formulated the Energy and Resource
Management Control Procedures to manage the use of
energy and resources. To save power, the company uses
air-source heat pumps for plant heating and sub-regional
heating. Each area adjusts the working condition of
the heating unit flexibly according to the production
condition. The company has formulated specific
operating procedures for air-source heat pump units.
The bathing hot water system for the workshop staff
adopts the solar energy and electric energy combined
heating system. The paint spraying room connects
the heating to raise the paint spraying environment
temperature and saves the fuel consumption of the
diesel heating system in the paint spraying room.

2.2.2 Water Resource Management

The water consumed by the Group is mainly the
production water for technological process, equipment
cleaning, etc., domestic water for catering, toilets
bathroom, etc., and water for lawns and fire control, etc.
The Group has not identified significant risks of water
shortages in terms of seeking suitable sources of water.
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Performance Indicators

ARIER

2020

2019 2018

Total water consumption (m7°)
BRKE (LK)

Industrial water consumption (n7)

TERKEZTK)

Office area water consumption (n?°)
WARFEKE(ZTK)

Headquarter building water consumption (n7)

REPPNIEFEKE (LK)

Office area water consumption per capita
(m%person)

R AEFEKE (L K/N)

Number of employees (person)

BT AEN)

Domestic sewage discharge (m?)°
HRVTIKBENE (275 7K)°

12,266,014.31

12,101,065.35

163,948.96

36,173.00

16.33

2,215.00

49,720.70

24,246,352.56 28,879,789.01

23,850,533.00 28,781,078.01

212,275.52 98,711.00
42,773.00 40,691.00
19.44 20.35
2,200.00 2,000.00
178,660.40 67,345.70

6 The data of domestic sewage discharge in 2019 has
been restated.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT
Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*

6 2019F EH)E S KEEMEH
BB EM -




The General Management Department of the Group
is responsible for the water resource management of
the Group and its duties are as follows: to implement
the national laws and regulations on water resource
management; to formulate the water resource
management system; to implement responsibilities
and supervise the implementation; to work out the
water resource management plan and annual plan in
conjunction with the relevant departments; to establish
and improve water resource metering facilities,
management account books; to promote water-saving
measures; to promote the application of new water-
saving technologies and new technological processes.

In terms of water conservation, the Group mainly takes
the following measures: to raise employees’ awareness
of water conservation through training and publicity; to
improve wastewater recycling rate; to strengthen routine
maintenance and management of water equipment,
repair damaged water supply facilities in time, and
regularly check and replace water supply devices such
as faucets and pipeline valves and flashing valves. The
water flushing and cleaning water of the office building
of the Group’s headquarters are reclaimed water
purchased from the park, which has saved municipal
water resources.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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2.2.3 Use of Packaging Materials 223 GEYEF
The packaging waste produced during the operation of rEBEEBEEBAEPELENPE
the Group includes fabric, carton, plastic film, fixed steel BEYSE &Y - B8 - B
supporting structure, wooden box, batten, ceramic fiber EEEER - B HEMEE - K
product and winding film, etc. KT BEASRGRE

R o

Performance Indicators 2020 2019 2018
Total weight of packaging materials (ton) 569.38 6,515.52 503.80
BEYEE S (1)
Plastic (ton)* 3.95 3,067.62 11.40
2%} (E) *
Fabric (ton) 1.18 7.10 2.70
5 ()
Fixed steel supporting structure (ton) 6.30 7.48 3.00

[B] 5 2 15 4 18 ()

Wooden box (ton)” 545.43 3,390.10 463.38
NG (E)7
Carton (ton) 12.40 40.22 22.70
4RAE ()
Others (ton) 0.12 3.00 0.62
F A (1)

Consumption intensity of packaging (kg/710,000 yuan
of revenue) 0.3 H8]5] 0.44
HRBRNEE (Tr/ETEW)

7 In 2019, Jiangsu Longyuan Catalyst Co., Ltd. was 7 201906 ARYERE
included in the packaging materials scope, thus the ST SR BB E(CBIAR AT
data was increased substantially. WA EEEe

BBAREIEM -

Every subsidiary of the Group, in respect of the AEEZHB AR HBEN
management of packaging materials, has established KB - §IE T E R G
relevant management rules and regulations, covering B ARBREREEE - YN
procurement management, goods warehousing AERW - BERE - WEE
acceptance, storage and keeping, material requisition A REEREMBAERNEH
and replacement of old production consumables E o AEEZRHMBARER
with the new ones. A number of subsidiaries of the KAREGIE WHBEQAAE
Group cooperated with packaging companies that are HEEREMBHERE -

responsible for the management of packaging materials.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

In order to save the use of packaging materials and
reduce the amount of packaging waste generated,
the Group’s subsidiaries have adopted a series of
management measures, which can be divided into
procurement and use:

° In terms of procurement, the subsidiaries strictly
follow the national and industrial regulations such
as “Frame Wooden Box” (GB/T7284-1998), “Single
and Double Corrugated Boxes for Transport
Packages” (GB/T6543- 2008), and purchase
packaging materials that meet the requirements
and are less harmful to the environment.

° In terms of the use of packaging materials, the
company uses the original packaging for the
packaging of some products whose volume
has not changed, changes some models from
independent packaging to integrated packaging,
which reduces the amount of packaging materials.
Under the premise of meeting the requirements
of packaging strength, the packaging size
and materials of all products of the company
are used in the minimum amount. Through the
optimization of packaging process, the company
reduces the amount of packaging materials. At
the same time, the company also picked out the
recyclable packaging boxes for the delivery of
spare parts, and returned some of the relatively
intact packaging materials to the manufacturers
for reuse. For example, for the packaging
materials management, when delivering goods,
United Power requires the using section of each
branch other than the warehousing and logistics
department to unpack the goods. The used
packaging materials will be uniformly transported
to the fixed storage area of the site, and then
recycler will recycle all kinds of packaging
materials as required by the company. In addition,
the company requires recycling the whole
machine gear boxes and motor packing boxes for
the packaging of distribution cabinets.
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2.3 Reduce Pollution Emissions, Implement Scientific

Management

The Group strictly abides by the Environmental Protection
Law of PRC, the Law on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes of PRC, the Air
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of PRC, guided by the
13th Five-Year Plan for Ecological Environment Protection and
the 13th Five-Year Plan for Energy Conservation and Emission
Reduction, the Group strove to reduce the impact of various
kinds of waste on the environment, strictly regulated waste
emission management, and reasonably carried out recycling
and utilization and safe disposal of waste with the ultimate
goal of reducing waste emission. In 2020, there were no
environmental violations that had a significant impact on the
Group.
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2.3.1 Hazardous Waste Management

The main hazardous waste produced in the production
and operation of the Group includes waste lubricant,
grease, hydraulic oil, organic solvent etc., and office
generated waste toner, ink cartridge and scrapped
office electronics, etc.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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2.3.1 BEEEYEE

REEEFEEEPEENE
EEEJ%;E%@*E BEH B
o OBEBRE - REBH - ARA
mv&w Eim%@ﬁ S
B WENRAETERS -

Performance Indicators 2020 2019 2018
BERER
Total weight of hazardous waste (ton) 1,386.60 89.66 75.10
EEEEMELRES(F)
Waste lubricant (ton) 15.22 1.48 8.14
55 8 & ek ()
Grease (ton) 0.58 0.66 0.92
8 RE ()
Hydraulic oil, etc. (ton) 1.71 0.26 5.41
RBR 5 (1)
HWO6 organic solvent waste (ton) 0.01 0.00 4.81
HWOGH t# A HI =4 (1)
HW13 organic resin waste (fon) 5.53 12.58 4.85
HW13% t el B 58 R 1 (F)
Catalyst (ton)® 1,093.13 0.00 0.00
&b (mg)®
Collected hazardous dust 0.00 16.41 -
WE B R EE (1)
Other hazardous waste (ton)® 270.42 58.27 50.97
HithH EREZY) (HE)°
Hazardous waste generation intensity (kg/10,000
yuan of revenue) 0.89 0.07 0.07

BERBENELRE (TR/ETEK)

8 Jiangsu Longyuan catalyst Co., Ltd. implemented
catalyst replacement in this year, so the data
increased compared with previous years.

9 Waste cutting fluid, HW12 waste paint thinner, paint
slag, HW13 uncured one-component mold clamping
glue, HW49 waste paint bucket, waste activated
carbon filter cotton, waste chemical packaging, etc.

For hazardous wastes, the Group’s subsidiaries have
established relevant management systems and methods,
and the relevant departments of each subsidiary are
responsible for the specific management of waste. In
future, the Group will also strengthen the management
of hazardous waste minimization.
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Longyuan Engineering has strictly implemented relevant
regulations, the waste management is stipulated in
the Supervision and Management Regulations of
Occupational Health and Environmental Protection.
For waste selenium drum, ink cartridge, scrap office
electronic products and other wastes, Longyuan
Engineering designates a specific department for the
unified and centralized collection and disposal of such
wastes. Dedicated personnel are appointed to take
charge of the collection of waste selenium drum, ink
cartridges, and scrap office electronic products. A
separate storage is provided in a fixed place; records
are properly made; wastes are clearly marked and
classified in order to strictly prevent hazardous waste
from direct discharge into water or soil at will. In
respect of the centralized disposal of hazardous waste,
Longyuan Engineering will appoint a qualified disposal
unit for the centralized disposal; and the office waste
toner cartridge would be reclaimed, reused or disposed
by the seller. Waste computers, displays, etc., are
collectively disposed by a qualified professional unit as
per the applicable regulations.

United Power has formulated the Procedures for
Environmental Protection and Management and
the Measures for the Disposal and Management
of Hazardous Wastes, clarifying the environmental
protection responsibilities of the production, safety
and environmental protection departments and other
departments. In 2020, in order to fully strengthen
environmental management and meet environmental
protection policy requirements, United Power launched
a number of measures as follows:

° Communicated fully with the local environmental
protection authorities to understand and master
the local environmental protection policy trends
and context in a timely manner.

o Improved the solid waste supervision platform,
formulated the hazardous waste management plan
for 2020, and declared the amount of hazardous
waste monthly.

° Reconstructed the hazardous waste storage sites
and took the measures such as enclosure, leakage
prevention tank, leakage pit and so on.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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° Entrusted a third party company in time to dispose
of and transfer hazardous waste to ensure that it
will not cause environmental pollution accidents. In
2020, the total of hazardous waste transferred was
approximately 236.62 tons.

° In the future, blades will be rolled with water-based
paint to reduce the production of hazardous waste
sharply.

2.3.2 Non-hazardous Waste Management
The non-hazardous waste produced in the operation of

the Group includes domestic waste, sludge produced
in the production process of sewage treatment plants,

o  HEANBEEEYLE
RREZHRFETEE
REE BRI EERK
RIBFREW - 20204
B RETEBEEEEYD
236.62MF4 4 o

o BREERERAKMEZREZ
1% BARBRIEE
FEVIREE -

232 BEEERYEE
AEBEEETRRETELNE

TEEYERE  AENR 5
7k&%@l%ﬁ$§?@%%$§iﬁ’ﬂi’?

steel scrap and iron chip produced by mechanical fﬂﬂT%‘ﬂﬂfﬂ%ﬁbﬂIE
processing, packaging waste and industrial sewage EE’JﬁE REZYRENL
pollutant from the production of catalysts. ﬁ“ﬂi@ﬁﬁl%ﬂﬁkﬁw%
Performance Indicators 2020 2019 2018
BRUER
Total weight of non-hazardous waste (ton) 230,646.00 238,760.63 217,213.58
BEFRVEFREE(H)
Sludge from domestic sewage treatment plants
(ton) 227,000.10 237,000.10 217,000.00
4RI IKER IR A A5 e (E)
Industrial sewage pollutant COD (ton) 0.69 0.77 4.39
TEEEKSARMCOD W)
Industrial sewage pollutant ammonia nitrogen (ton) 0.03 0.05 0.30
TEREKSREDRA ()
Dust collected (ton) 28.09 139.80 3.12
W B 1 EE ()
Scraps cut (ton) 2,093.50 1,282.70 47.15
&2 Ak ()
Domestic garbage (fon) 271.50 260.80 155.30
VR ()
Paper (ton) 3.60 4.90 2.62
oK ()
Non-hazardous waste generation intensity
(ton/10,000 yuan of revenue) 0.15 0.19 0.19
R YE £ 588 (/& T E4)
2020 F
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Longyuan Engineering has strictly implemented the
relevant provisions on the disposal of non-hazardous
waste, classified office waste and construction waste,
divided them into recyclable and non-recyclable waste,
and classified and collected them, and finally transferred
them to a cleaning company for further disposal. In order
to reduce the amount of office waste such as paper,
the Company advocates that the employees should use
paper on both sides and also advocates paperless office
operation. With regard to construction waste generated
by construction projects, each project has set up a
designated area for the storage of construction waste,
appointed special persons to manage it, and regularly
handed it over to the local unit with the qualification of
recycling and disposal for recycling and reuse.

Longyuan Technology effectively controls the disposal
of non-hazardous waste through the Solid Waste Control
Procedures, and each waste generating department is
responsible for sorting, collecting and transferring the
waste generated during work to the storage place. The
general manager’s work department is responsible for
managing non-hazardous waste and handing it over to
the qualified processor for disposal.

In future, the Group will further strengthen the
management of solid waste, take measures to reduce
the generation of waste from the root causes, and
improve the recycling of wastes that can be recycled
and reused, so as to reduce the number of waste and
their impact on the environment as much as possible.
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2.3.3 Exhaust Gas Management

The Group will generate a small amount of waste gas
during its operation, including: sulfur dioxide, nitrogen
oxides and particulate matter, which is mainly from the
gasoline and diesel burned by the company’s official
vehicles, as well as emissions from part of the production
processes, has minor impact on the environment.
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Performance Indicators 2020 2019 2018
BERER

Sulfur dioxide emissions (fon) 0.03 0.12 0.39
—SaehEBEE ()

Nitrogen oxides emissions (fon) 1.94 23.00 5.56410
REAWHEE (87)

Particulate matters emissions (ton)" 12.45 3.97 2.61

FERL YD HE PR E ()"

10 Not including emission arising from motor vehicles of
United Power.

11 Jiangsu Longyuan catalyst Co., Ltd. implemented
catalyst replacement in this year, so the data
increased compared with previous years.

In order to reduce its exhaust gas emissions, some
plants of United Power has been using air-source heat
pump for heating, which produces no exhaust gas and
nitrogen oxides. In view of the organized exhaust gas
produced in the production process of engine room
hood, it was discharged up to standard after dry dust
removal and activated carbon adsorption by plasma
purifier and photocatalytic purifier. Non-methane total
hydrocarbons, nitrogen oxides and particulate matter
were detected by qualified third-party environmental
inspection agencies in the production plant area, and
the emissions decreased year on year, and the emission
of exhaust gas was all up to standard.

10 REBHEPHHEHERZ
BEOBR RPN
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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2.4 Focus on Ecology and Pursue Sustainable
Development

The Group integrates the environmental protection idea
of harmonious symbiosis with nature into every stage of
production and management and strives to develop business
without burdening the ecological environment.

2.4.1 Wind Power Generation

The United Power Kangbao Zhongyi Phase | Wind
Farm is located in Zhongyi Township, Kangbao County,
Hebei Province, which is rich in wind resources. As of
31 December 2020, the power station has installed 23
units of 2,000 kW and one unit of 4,500 kW capacity
wind turbines, and a new 220 kV booster station has
been built, which has a main transformer capacity of 100
MVA. During the construction period of the project, the
company pays attention to the impact of various types
of emissions mentioned above on the local environment,
and also keeps a watchful eye on the impact of noise
and soil erosion on the ecological environment. The
company has taken effective preventive measures to
avoid and reduce these adverse effects. The company
has hired a professional third-party organization to
conduct detailed environmental impact assessments
for the project from the aspects of engineering analysis,
environmental impact analysis, environmental protection
measures, major pollutant generation and emissions,
etc.
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In addition to dust, wastewater discharge, and solid
waste discharge, the company has monitored the noise
impact and ecological maintenance or adopted relevant
management measures therefor:

In terms of noise, after attenuation of the noise
generated during the construction, the noise level of the
construction machinery outside the range of 20 meters
stays within the daytime noise limit specified in the
Environmental Noise Emission Standard for Construction
Site Boundary (GB12523- 2011), and that outside 90
meters within night noise limit. The silent environmental
protection target within 200 meters of the construction
site and the noise impact characteristics of the project
are both short-term and temporary, and the construction
noise will end as the construction activity ends. The
main noise source during the operation period of the
power station is the noise generated by the operation of
the booster station and the rotation of the wind turbines,
which can reach the Class 1 Standard requirements
of the “Environmental Noise Emission Standard for
Industrial Enterprises Boundary” (GB12348-2008) after
the effective control through the adoption of low-noise
equipment, having less impact on the surrounding
acoustic environment.

In terms of ecological maintenance, the impact of the
project construction period and operation period on
the ecological environment is mainly reflected in the
destruction of vegetation and soil erosion, and so on.
By rationally planning the construction site operations
and formulating post- construction ecological restoration
programs, the company can reduce its disturbance
to local vegetation, water, soil and birds, and has
limited impact on the natural ecology. At the same
time, the amount of pollutants generated during the
operation is small, and all pollutants can meet the
discharge standard after adopting corresponding
treatment measures. The project has achieved energy
conservation and consumption reduction, and reduced
the impact of pollutant emissions on the surrounding
environment.
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2.4.2 Mixed incineration of sludge

Sludge drying and mixed incineration is a sludge
treatment and disposal method in line with China’s
environmental protection policy and current situation,
and also the mainstream direction of sludge disposal in
the world. It has multiple meanings, such as resource
optimization, green environmental protection, investment
saving, energy consumption saving, and promotion of
power plant upgrading and transformation.

The Sludge Coupling Disposal Project of Longyuan
Qide (Changzhou) Eco-environmental Technology
Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of Longyuan Environmental,
was built in Changzhou Power Plant, with a designed
treatment capacity of 500 t/d. After being mixed with
raw coal, the dried sludge enters the coal grinding
system of the power plant to produce fuel before being
sent to the furnace for incineration; the exhausted
steam is condensed and collected and then sent to the
boiler furnace for combustion; the dried condensate
wastewater is treated by the wastewater treatment
system. After reaching the water quality standard of GBT
31962, it is sent to Changzhou Riverside Wastewater
Treatment Plant for disposal. In 2020, a total of 51
sludge disposal contracts were signed, and 14,051.7
tons of printing and dyeing sludge and 8,214.72 tons
of domestic sludge, totaling 22,266.42 tons, were
disposed.

The social and environmental benefits of the project
are remarkable. Relaying on the platform of large coal-
fired boiler with large heat load capacity and ultra-low
emission environmental protection, the project brings
its advantages into full play, achieving the harmless,
reduction and resource utilization of domestic sludge
and printing and dyeing sludge and laying a solid
foundation for the integration of coal-fired power station
into urban green development, and it is a sustainable
and replicable transformation path for thermal power
enterprises.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT
Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE - g RkERWRE (B)

2.4.2 5EBE

AREALBERTEKBERR
BERMBMATREEEE T
- RBERESRREENE
mam - REEREL  &E
RIR - BIKRE - BIHRERE -
REEBRARBUEZEER
% o

BRREANEBQFERBRE
(BN ERERBERIFHR DA
ERRBAREEE EREEM
BN - RETEERIEAS00
Wi/ K o 821k 18 K905 Je B R
RAENERER RFEREN
B ZRABERE 2R
2RI 2 18 325 N 88 1 8 B A
B S bR KIS BE KR IR
RHEEE - ZHGBT 31962
KEZER  RATIMNILES
KEIEMEITEE ° 20204F
7TH18 - ZIEBESA T LS
AIFBH AR - EAREE
BEER - 20206 B BT 555
REEARSD - Rt EEEH
235538 14,051.7M8 - £5ES5 R
8,214.72W8 - £522,266.42
Mg o

%A B BERENLEMEM
RIFWE - EARRERIE
RBRATEXN - BEBIRRF
M¥e - BEEY  BRYL
BT MEI TR EEFL -
MEAL - BRIEFA - BIRK
BUBARTREERIT TR
ERR  BABLEAFE -

AR S BRI KT o



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RIE - e lERRE(E)

3 PEOPLE-ORIENTED, COMMON GROWTH

3.1

Legitimate Employment and Welfare Protection
Overview

In accordance with the applicable laws and regulations and
its internal regulations, the Group has established nearly 30
clear and transparent human resource rules and regulations,
including the Interim Provisions on Labor Employment
Management, the Interim Measures Governing Total Salary,
the Interim Measures Governing the Remuneration of
Headquarters and the Measures Governing the Education and
Training of the Employees of the Headquarters.

In 2020, the Group had no violations in terms of employee
employment, remuneration, working hours, equal opportunities,
anti-discrimination and other benefits, etc.

Employment according to Law

In terms of employment, the Group insists on the principle
of employment according to law. In accordance with the
Labor Law of PRC, the Labor Contract Law of PRC and
other applicable laws and regulations, the Group has
strictly managed employment, and has established and
implemented such rules and regulations as the Measures
Governing Employment and Appointment (Tentative), etc., so
as to practically protect the legal rights and interests of the
employees.
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In 2020, the total workforce of the Group is 6,049, except for
one employee working in the Hong Kong office, the remaining
6,048 employees are all working in mainland China. The
details are as follow:

Number and proportion of employees by employment type
RERERIASNET AE KA

2,155
36%

2,285
38%

1,609
26%

B Worker Technical staff ['] Other employees
TA KiTAB HibAB

2020 ANEEE T A AE6,049A -
BRIUETHEFRAEEHAEN - H
#:6,048% B T B AFE - BB
ERIAT

Number and proportion of employees by gender
RURIEIDE T AR A

1,745
29%

4,304
71%

B Male employees
BMET

Female employees
ZHBET

Number and proportion of employees by age group
REERARIZI DA T AR L)

220

4%
962
16% 2,854

7% Employees aged 35 and below
BEMUTET

[7 Employees aged 36-45
36-45mE T

[ Employees aged 46-55
46-55m 8 T

2,013

33% [ Employees aged 56 and above
56m M EET

The total number of employees who resigned voluntarily in
2020 was 235, all of whom were mainland Chinese employees.
The total staff turnover rate was 3.9%'2. Among them, the
male employees account for 73%, female employees account
for 27%; employees aged 35 and below account for 61.7%,
employees aged 36-45 account for 27.7%, employees aged
46-55 account for 9.8%, and employees aged 55 and above
account for 0.8%. The staff turnover rate is within a reasonable
range.

12 Staff turnover rate = number of employees lost/(number
of employees at the beginning of the period + number of
employees increased in the current period) * 100%.
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In terms of avoiding child workers and forced workers, the
Group perfects staff employment system and eliminates
entirely illegal employment according to the applicable
national rules and regulations, for example, it checks
the identity information of staff according to the national
Regulations Forbidding the Use of Child Workers, effectively
avoiding child workers; the Employment Contract entered into
with staff sets forth “Fixed-time work system is implemented;
the average weekly working hours shall not be more than 40
and the daily working hours shall not be more than 8 hours”,
effectively protecting the legal rights and interests of the staff
and avoiding the phenomenon of forced work. At the same
time, the Group advocates equal employment policy and
provides equal employment opportunities and labor security
for employees of different nationalities, races, genders,
religious beliefs and cultural backgrounds.

In 2020, the Group had no major labor disputes caused by
illegal use of labor, nor cases of child labor or forced labor.

Remuneration Management

The Group has established and perfected the income
distribution management system orienting market value and
based on performance evaluation. In 2020, based on the
actual situation, the Group revised the Interim Measures for
the Management of Total Wages.

The remuneration management of the Group adheres to four
principles, namely:

° Highlight benefit orientation and encourage downsizing
for efficiency;

° Strictly control the per-capita wage increase;

° Strengthen the incentives for core employees and
frontline and allow reasonable income gap; and

° Strengthen the support to the pilot enterprises for
market- oriented reform.

Each subsidiary of the Group has established its own
management measures according to the above principles and
then formulated corresponding management measures for
each company and reported them to the Company for filing
according to the regulations and rules of the Company.
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3.2

Welfare System

The Group has established various systems in respect
of social insurance, housing fund, enterprise annuity and
supplementary medical insurance in strict accordance
with the applicable policies and regulations of the State
and local governments to ensure employees to be treated
equally in terms of endowment, medical treatment, and work-
related injury, unemployment and birth and other aspects in
accordance with the law. In 2020, the Group has not occurred
social security violations and defaults of payment.

In accordance with the “Provisions of the State Council
on Home Visit Subsidies”, the Group has pushed forward
the “Interim Measures of the Head Office Governing Staff
Attendance and Leave”, implemented a paid annual leave
system, appropriately solved the problem of visiting relatives
for those live far from their families, to legally protect
employees’ rights to take on leave.

Safety Production and Occupational Health

The Group always regards the safety protection and
occupational health of employees as the top priority, and
always strictly enforces the applicable laws and regulations,
such as the Work Safety Law of PRC and the Law of PRC on
the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases, etc.,
and continuously improves and perfects the work environment
management and occupational health and safety management
system. The Group adheres to the policy of “Safety First,
Prevention Foremost and Comprehensive Treatment” and
requires the subsidiaries to clearly define their safety and
occupational health management systems. All subsidiaries
have established their Safety Production Management
Committees and Occupational Disease Prevention Leading
Groups to supervise the implementation of systems and
measures for safety production and occupational disease
prevention.

Safety Production Protection

Safety production is the foundation for the healthy development
of a company. Strengthening enterprise safety production
management and establishing intrinsically safe production
can provide a safe, stable and orderly operation order and
environment for the enterprise, enhance employees’ sense of
security and belonging, and win good corporate reputation.
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In 2020, the Group conscientiously implemented the spirit of
the annual work conference of China Energy, deepened the
achievements of "Safety and Environmental Responsibility
Implementation Year" campaign, and launched the campaign
themed "Safety and Environmental Risk Management and
Control Year". The requirements and measures of "No.1
Document on Safety and Environmental Protection" and
"Ten Necessities and Two Strictness" were implemented
thoroughly; the campaign themed "Safety and Environmental
Risk Management and Control Year" and the "Three-year
Special Rectification on Work Safety" actions were promoted
comprehensively; through monthly inspection, seasonal
inspection, special inspection and other inspection activities,
a total of 1,951 problem rectification closed loops were
supervised one by one; In view of the wind power installation
rush, we focused on supervising the subordinate units to
correctly handle the relationship between progress and
safety, strengthen the review of large-cargo transport vehicles
and hoisting procedures, strictly implement daily, weekly
and monthly inspections of hoisting vehicles and operating
personnel, as well as side witness measures for high-risk
operations to ensure that the procedures were reasonable;
and, through the effective implementation of a series of control
measures, great efforts were devoted to addressing the blind
areas of safety management of various projects, and the
stable and orderly work safety situation was ensured.

In 2020, there was no work safety accident happened in the
Group.

Standardization construction: Based on the standard of
the Standardization Atlas for Thermal Power Engineering
Construction of China Energy, the Group has formulated
the Standardization Atlas for Housekeeping of Wind Power
Construction, which is divided into six parts: general layout,
facilities for work safety and housekeeping, individual safety
protection, signs and identifications, high-risk operations
and finished product protection. It is mainly implemented
by the wind power engineering construction projects and
construction contractors of the Group for HSE management, so
as to ensure that wind power projects achieve work safety and
housekeeping objectives with "standard facilities, standardized
behaviors, orderly construction and clean environment", and
ensure the realization of the HSE management objectives for
engineering construction.
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Quality improvement of employees: The Group focuses on
organizing all units to study the accident notifications and
expresses of China Energy and all kinds of related accident
notifications and reports. By learning lessons through accident
education, the security line awareness and risk safety
awareness of managers and operating personnel at all levels
of subsidiaries and subcontractors have been enhanced, and
the security line thinking of work safety has been strengthened.

Implementation of seasonal safety work: The flood season in
2020 started very early and lasted for a long time. Extreme
weather, such as heavy rainfall and continuous precipitation,
frequently occurred in some areas, and the flood control
was under great pressure. The Group worked out the 2020
summer peak-load work plan, and organized all units to carry
out a comprehensive safety inspection. Through inspection,
flood control materials were sorted out and supplemented,
construction sites, production plants and temporary facilities
were checked, and effective preventive measures were taken
for projects with flood, landslide, collapse and debris flow
threat. Special inspections were carried out on two dams of
Beijing Lucency Enviro-Tech Co., Ltd. to ensure the normal
operation of the dams, and measures of civil air defense,
physical defense and technical defense were implemented.

Development of emergency management work: The Group
deeply reflected on and learned the lessons of various kinds
of safety accidents, and gradually filled up the loopholes
in emergency management in practice. More than 3,000
emergency drills were conducted for front-line workers at
the operation site throughout the year, covering emergency
situations such as firefighting, first aid (cardiopulmonary
resuscitation, trauma dressing), escape from height, vehicle
traffic, lifting injuries, falling from height, and object strikes,
and timely evaluated the effect of emergency drills and put
forward improvement measures.
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Occupational Health Protection

Because welding smoke, carbon monoxide, ozone, hydrogen
sulfide, chlorine, methanol, manganese and their compounds,
noise, arc welding, etc. may cause pneumoconiosis,
manganese pneumoconiosis, pulmonary fibrosis, chronic
respiratory inflammation, chemical poisoning, tinnitus and
deafness, and other occupational diseases, the Group
attaches great importance to the management of occupational
disease hazards, adheres to the core value of “people-
oriented” scientific outlook on development, and effectively
creates a healthy and safe working environment for all
employees.

The Group has carried out a comprehensive occupational
disease investigation of its subsidiaries. After investigation,
a total of 5 subsidiaries under the Group have occupational
disease hazards, namely Longyuan Environmental, United
Power, Longyuan Technology, Guoneng I&C and Longyuan
Energy Conservation. They all belong to the enterprises with
general occupational disease hazards. The above companies
have 1,985 workers exposed to occupational disease hazards.
All health examinations for exposure to occupational diseases
were conducted in 2020, with a medical examination rate
of 100%. All the above companies have completed the
declaration and regular inspection of occupational disease
hazards, and both the declaration and inspection rates are
100%. There was no new occupational disease accident
of the Group in 2020. The Group urged all manufacturing
enterprises to conduct regular occupational hazard detection
for workplaces, and inform the occupational hazards and
detection results onsite. Labor protection articles such as
dust masks, earplugs and protective clothing provided for the
employees, and occupational health protection equipment and
facilities, such as central dust removal system, were installed,
which effectively reduced occupational hazards in the
working environment. Ensure physical examinations before,
during and after work for occupational diseases, and improve
Occupational Health Archives and Personal Occupational
Health Monitoring Archives.
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3.3

Outsourcing and Construction Safety Management

In 2020, the Group took the management of outsourcing
units as the top priority. According to the regulations set
forth by China Energy, the Group formulated the Special
Checklist for Ten Necessities and Two Strictness on the
Security Management of Outsourcing Units. The Checklist,
which has been issued to all units, contains 61 special check
outlines and schemes for ensuring the implementation of “Ten
Necessities” in daily routine work. A special inspection was
given on the implementation of “Ten Necessities” during the
supervision and inspection, so as to ensure consistent security
management. A three-month special supervision and check on
“Ten Necessities and Two Strictness” was also carried out for
all projects. Nine specialists of the Security Management Panel
were divided into 3 groups to give an thorough inspection
on 25 EPC sites and 4 production and operation units. They
totally found 1,312 points to be improved, which have been all
rectified and filed.

Training and Career Development Mechanism

The Group attaches great importance to the cultivation,
selection and development of talents, and concentrates all
kinds of dominant resources on high-potential and high-
performance employees.

Education and Training System

The Group earnestly implements the spirit of the Central
Enterprise Talent Work Conference of the SASAC. The core
development strategy of China Energy and its requirements on
the human resources system aim at cultivating and building a
team of highly qualified and specialized talents and building a
talent echelon with reasonable structure, so as to establish a
quality training system of source training, tracking training and
whole course training, and provide a strong talent guarantee
for enterprise healthy development.
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In 2020, the Group organized special training courses
on special salon activities, discipline inspection and
supervision, Party spirit education, financial management,
scientific and technological R&D, procurement, work safety,
quality management, etc., with 24,571 person-times trained
throughout the year:

° The Group conscientiously did a good job in the
education and training of Party members, strengthened
the education and training of Xi Jinping’s socialist
ideology with Chinese characteristics in the new era,
the Party’s principles, policies, situation and tasks,
professional knowledge, job skills, etc., guided Party
members to strengthen their ideals and beliefs, and
constantly improved their comprehensive quality and
ability to carry out their duties;

° The Group insisted on carrying out the “Rainbow” talent
plan, firmly grasped the four key links of talent selection
and retention, established the talent work system,
promoted the talent selection system, perfected the
talent application system, optimized the talent training
system, and implemented the talent incentive and
retention system;

° The Group steadily advanced the training of graduates.
In 2020, it received a total of 74 graduates, and
organized a one-week induction course for new
employees;

° The Group made great efforts to strengthen the building
of the “Innovate & Share” salon brand, gradually
improved the ranks of internal trainers at all levels of
the enterprises, and innovatively promoted the brand
building of the “Innovate & Share” salon brand; and

° The Group opened up and innovated the working
ideas of the training of grass-roots units, promoted the
construction of “Internal Trainer” brand steadily in the
form of pilot first, carried out various business training,
and improved the staff's business ability.
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For the next step, the Group will unswervingly serve the
Company’s development strategy, further consolidate
the enterprise’s talent development foundation, properly
implement plans and promote various pilot work; unswervingly
promote enterprise market-oriented reform, combine with
the central task of market-oriented reform, establish a
flexible and open talent development mechanism; continue
to unswervingly implement the “Rainbow” talent plan, firmly
grasp the four key links of talent selection, use, cultivation and
education, form a complete talent work system; unswervingly
improve the HR work mechanism, improve the level of HR, and
provide organizational guarantee for the implementation of the
“Rainbow” talent plan.

Selection and Promotion Mechanism

In order to meet the needs of human resources in the
development strategy of the Group and construct a talent
selection and promotion mechanism suitable for the
transformation and upgrading of the enterprise, the Group has
formulated relevant rules and regulations including the Career
Development Channel Management Measures, the Measures
Governing Officer Assessment, the Measures Governing
Professional Training and On-the-Job Placement Training, the
Guiding Opinions on Strengthening Cultivating, Using and
Stimulating Young Talents (Trial), etc.

For the promotion of management personnel, the Group
strengthens the competitive selection mechanism, makes full
use of the results of performance evaluation and democratic
evaluation and forms a talent selection mechanism allowing
the smooth circulation of talents. For the promotion of
technicians, the Group has established the full-caliber and full-
process career development route and promotion direction
considering both “Professional Technique and Professional
Skill”. It has established a promotion sequence at five levels
to unify the pays at each level. Moreover, on the basis of
the work characteristics of technical R&D talents, the Group
has developed corresponding promotion and evaluation
mechanisms to pave the way for the development of its
personnel, clarify their growth path, fully stimulate the working
enthusiasm of technical R&D talents, and comprehensively
broaden the range of career possibilities.

In 2020, the Group particularly supervises and urges the
subsidiaries to achieve full coverage of the assessment
system, increase the leverage effect of performance appraisal,
and link the assessment results with post promotion, excellent
staff selection, post adjustment, and career development
channel rating to promote fair and reasonable income and
make backbone employees better paid.
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3.4 Employee Care and Team Building

The Group always adheres to the people-oriented
management concept, eliminates the worries for the
employees and provides care for the employees in order to
promote the stable and healthy development of the enterprise.

The Group thoroughly implemented the Law of PRC on
the Protection of Rights and Interests of Women and the
Regulations on Labor Protection for Female Staff, actively
safeguarded women'’s rights and interests, revised collective
labor contracts to increase contents regarding the protection
of female staff’s rights and interests. In 2020, the Company
held a total of 3 online women’s special health knowledge
lectures with more than 1,000 participants, greatly inspiring
the spirit of the majority of female workers to make progress
and contribute to their work.

The trade union of the Group puts the interests of employees
in the first place and effectively implemented the “People-
benefit Project” to benefit the employees:

° It has extensively carried out poverty alleviation, serious
iliness relief, children education aid, etc. In 2020, the
Group issued a total of RMB376,000 funds to help 8
needy workers;

° The Group widely carried out “send warmth in winter,
send cool in summer” and other condolence activities
for the frontline workers. In 2020, the Group sent
condolences to 500 person-times, and sent the care
of the organization to the staff who were hospitalized,
holding weddings and funerals, in a timely manner;

° In addition, the Group implemented staff welfare and let
the staff share the development results of the enterprise.
The Group guarantees staff welfare according to laws
and applications, sends care to employees on traditional
festivals; and

° The Group organized special warm-hearted activities to
enhance workers’ sense of acquisition and happiness.
The Group built “Love Room for Mothers and Children”
to solve the actual difficulty of female workers; carried
out “Waste Classification”, “Green Run” and other
parent-child activities for workers to advocate the green
environmental protection idea.
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° Keep a foothold in the construction of "Eight
Associations", implement the concept of "enjoying sports,
working happily and living healthily", and continuously
improve the service quality of the associations. Carry out
daily activities such as badminton, swimming, yoga and
dancing to enrich the amateur cultural life of employees.

° Participate in the activities of calligraphy and painting,
photography exhibition and theme essay writing of
the Chemical Society of Power Industry and various
cultural and sports activities on the "theme of the 100th
anniversary of the founding of the CPC".

4 COMPLIANCE MANAGEMENT AND QUALITY
SERVICE

4.1

Fight Corruption and Promote Incorruptible
Employment according to Law

In 2020, the Group firmly built up the “Spirit of Contract”
and the concept of operation according to law, constantly
improved the clean governance and operation system with
scientific decision-making, perfect mechanism and strong
supervision, seriously carried out anti-corruption activities,
and formed a good atmosphere of honest practice. The Group
strictly complies with the laws and regulations on bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering. In 2020, there were no
violations having significant impact.

In order to regulate employees’ professional behavior and
prevent corruption, in 2020, the Group successively formulated
and issued six institutions, such as the Implementation
Measures for Applying Four Forms of Supervision on Discipline
Compliance and the Interim Measures for Strengthening Daily
Supervision, to further improve the institutional system and
promote the construction of the "Three Noes" mechanism.

The Discipline Inspection and Supervision Department of
the Group is responsible for letter (e-mail) reading, visiting
reception and telephone answering, and is responsible for the
recording, arrangement, registration, sorting and screening
of the materials. An incoming letter not within the acceptance
scope of the Discipline Inspection and Supervision
Department will be delivered to the relevant department for
handling after being registered. An incoming letter within
the acceptance scope of the Discipline Inspection and
Supervision Department, depending on the content and object
reflected therein, will be handled in the form of self-handling,
reporting, transferring, or preserving, etc. After the petition
letter is handled, if the letter has the name of the petitioner, the
handling result will be notified of the petitioner in the written or
oral form.
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At the same time, the Group organized a series of "Nine
incorruptibilities" education activities such as "understanding"
incorruptibility and "sending" incorruptibility through new
media, and the education rate of employees was 100%,
which continued to build a demonstration benchmark for
integrity education; cadres and employees were organized
successively to watch warning education films such as
National Supervision, Fatal Breach and Integrity Microfilm, and
urged the broad cadres and employees to take the cases as
a warning to know what they should be afraid of, what they
should not say, and what they should not do; the activities of
deepened incorrupt education into the front line and warning
education into key positions were carried out, and the cadres
and employees were presented with books such as Q&A on
the Integrity of State-owned Enterprise Personnel and Taking
Cases as a Mirror-Analysis of Typical Cases of Public Officials
Violating Discipline and Law, warning party members and
cadres to be vigilant, know the bottom line and know awe
from typical cases; in the elevator room and other places, the
animation short film Taking of Integrity by Citing Classics was
broadcast, which explains the allusions quoted in General
Secretary Xi Jinping’s series of important speeches in the
form of animation, and transmits the concept of honesty and
integrity with profound Chinese culture, which makes honesty
education more fresh, live and vivid.

In addition, the Group carried out 10 times of special
supervision, inspection and self-examination and correction
closely around COVID-19 pandemic prevention and control,
personnel selection and employment, poverty alleviation and
other areas, so as to deepen the rectification of both behaviors
and root causes and improve the efficiency of governance.
The requirements of "four-promotions and four necessities"
in personnel selection and employment were implemented
strictly, and cadres with defects were prevented from being
promoted, employed or praised.

In 2020, the Group had no corruption cases filed and
concluded against the Group and its employees.
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4.2

Take Responsibility for Product and Place Quality in
the First Place

The Group is well aware that providing quality products for
customers is the most basic responsibility, so it attaches great
importance to product quality. The Group fully guides the
implementation of quality management by means of overall
management and accountability at various levels according
to the “Guidance of the Central Committee of CPC on Quality
Improvement Action” and the “Opinions on the Implementation
of Quality Improvement Action by Central Enterprises” issued
by SASAC, the “Implementation Plan for Quality Improvement
Action” issued by China Energy and the “Measures for the
Quality Management of Guodian Technology & Environment
Group Corporation Limited”. In 2020, the quality level of
the Group was generally stable and good, and the quality
objectives had been successfully achieved:

o There were no major manufacturing, engineering,
operation and maintenance quality problems and major
equipment damage accidents;

° The pass rate of quality inspection met the requirements
of the Group, the construction installation quality met the
design requirements, and all product delivery quality
met the standards and achieved customer satisfaction;

° Strictly implemented the national quality standards and
quality technical requirements, carried out refined quality
control throughout the construction of the project, and all
project quality acceptances have reached the eligibility
criteria; and

° The main quality indicators have reached the advanced
level of similar projects and products. The acceptance
rate of energy-saving and environmental protection
projects was 100%, the acceptance rate of engineering
equipment installation was 100%, the qualification rate
of environmental protection products manufacturing
was 100%, the up-to-standard discharge rate of water
treatment was 100%, the wind turbine failure rate was
0.008 single-set times/day, and the one-time success
rate of whole-package start-ups was 100%.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT
Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*

4.2

ERETEERL

AEBRAAEFPIEHEEERER
%ZIKE’J,\E AftmEERERE

o HRIR (P H A R B B R A B R
E%%ﬂﬁiﬂﬁ’\ﬁ%g%ﬁ>ﬁﬁ%ﬁ
EEZ(ARPREERREERA
THNERER) - EXKEREREG
EHEH(ERRATHERTR) -
NEC(EERBIRRERKROERA
RIEEERIE)  BEERE /2R
BE ZHESHREEEETIE
2020 A EE B E R TIFHARE TR
M4 - e BIRTRRLT

o REABAHE IR EH

EEMBEMERREREZS
M o
s ELERBARTEIEHE

O BERKEEMERAE
 BERXNEENEE
WEBEFHE

\/
7N

\/
7N

7

i

+

s BRERERESRE - ME
ERMER  HIREERET
2RIEEMBACESES

e TIRERBIEDA &2
R
. IBERKEEIRFEAR

EmBTEKTE - figeIRRT
RRKAEEI00% @ TIREME
ZRBIKEREI00% * RIRE
mELUEA R E100% © KERIRE
EHERER100% @ EESIER A
0.008E A K/K + BERE—
RN EE100% ©



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
R g kERWRE(B)

4.3

The Group has established a full lifecycle quality management
system covering all aspects of design, production,
construction and operation and maintenance, continuously
promoted product structure optimization and upgrading,
ensured continuous improvement of product quality, further
enhanced the quality awareness of all employees, and
has always been taking quality assurance as the lifeline of
enterprise development.

Innovation, Efficiency, and Scientific Advancement

As the practitioner of green energy reform, the Group inherits
the gene of innovative culture, fully exerts the inherent power
of market-oriented scientific and technological innovation, and
has established a strong and powerful technology research
and development system with rational division of labor and
clear architecture.

Talent team: The Group faces the frontier of energy science
and technology, faces the market development demand, faces
the production management, aims at the international cutting-
edge technology, and focuses on cultivating a science and
technology talent team leading at home and abroad and with
rational structure.

Equal emphasis on production and research: The Group
cultivates technologies cultivation, equally emphasizes
production and research, adheres to the combination of
market orientation and its actual need and strives to cultivate
the core competitiveness in various business sectors.

Intellectual property: The Group pays attention to innovation
incentive and intellectual property protection, requires each
branch or subsidiary to formulate relevant intellectual property
management and protection measures and sign NDA with
technical personnel with intellectual property owned by the
enterprise, reward the technical personnel in respect of
intellectual property, thus not only protecting the technology,
but also arousing the enthusiasm of the staff in invention and
creation. During the reporting period, the Group has obtained
a total of 370 patents, including 42 national invention patents.
The Group has cumulatively obtained 2,234 patents in its
history, including 537 invention patents.

Achievement transformation: In the past three years, 75
items of new technologies industrialization realized operating
revenues of more than RMB10 billion, and scientific and
technological innovation has provided the source and motive
force for the sustainable development of the Group.
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In future, while maintaining its technical advantages in the
traditional business areas, the Group will actively develop
intelligent thermal power and intelligent wind power integrated
solutions, accelerate the application promotion of mature
technologies in overseas markets, explore the technical
application in coal mining, coal chemical industry, traffic and
transportation, nuclear power, PV power generation, fuel
gas power generation, urban heat supply, industrial boiler,
metallurgical environmental protection, etc., pay attention
to the technological development of shale gas, hydrogen
energy, energy storage, and distributed energy, strengthen
the synergy of internal innovative resources and carry out
application research and development in due time so as
to provide a new growth point for the development of the
Company.

5 SHARING DEVELOPMENT, CONTRIBUTING TO
THE SOCIETY

5.1

Supplier Cooperation and Management

The Group strictly implemented the relevant national laws
and regulations such as the Law of PRC on Bid Invitation
and Bidding and the relevant provisions of China Energy,
adhered to the four unifications (unified planning, unified
standard, unified process and unified platform) requirements
of China Energy on procurement, and actively implemented
the requirements of the procurement control system of China
Energy to ensure the smooth implementation of procurement.
In the procurement process, a professional agency company
was responsible for setting up the members of the bid
evaluation committee and evaluation team, and implementing
the relevant supervision regulations, confidentiality discipline
and withdrawal-application regulations of China Energy. The
procurement document template strictly complied with the Law
of PRC on Bid Invitation and Bidding and its Implementation
Regulations, and clearly specified the qualification conditions
of qualified suppliers in the procurement documents according
to the specific conditions of the subject matters (such as
quality, environment and occupational health certification,
and national mandatory requirements such as work safety
and 3C). In the future work, we will continue to strengthen the
management of supplier social responsibility, continuously
learn the advanced experience in the industry and promote
the quality improvement of equipment products. In 2020, a
total of 1,475 suppliers cooperated with the Group, all of which
were Chinese mainland enterprises.
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5.2

Establish Good Customer Relationship

The Group’s main customers are thermal power and wind
power generation units, and some coal and chemical
enterprises, as well as some local governments with municipal
water operation needs. The Group packs and marks products
strictly according to the applicable national standards; and
it strictly observes the Advertising Law of PRC in publicity in
order to ensure authentic contents and protect the legal rights
and interests of customers. If necessary, both parties shall
abide by the confidentiality provisions as stipulated in the
contract. In 2020, the Group conducted a survey of customer
satisfaction through a variety of ways, and the survey results
showed that the overall customer satisfaction was generally
high. The Group continue to implement the customer
satisfaction mechanism, facilitate customer feedback through
various channels and respond to the feedback in time.
The results show that the overall satisfaction evaluation of
customers is good. With the efforts of all the departments of
the Group, the normalized problem feedback and resolution
mechanism was also improved.

In 2020, the Group did not have any customer complaint
regarding serious problems in relation to the safety production.
The percentage of products or items sold or delivered that had
to be recalled for safety or health reasons was 0%.

Customer Satisfaction

The Group’s goal of customer satisfaction is to continuously
improve customer satisfaction to keep customer satisfaction
over 90%. At present, on one hand, the Group continues to
organize customer satisfaction surveys on a quarterly basis
through combined methods of third-party survey platforms,
WeChat, mail and letters; on the other hand, the Group carries
out the on- site project problem collection work frequently, and
follows up problem handling in time until they are solved to
achieve the whole life cycle marketing services. The problem
closed-loop rate of the year is 92%, which well improved the
customer experience and increased customer satisfaction. All
through the year, the Group received a total of 97 customer
letters of appreciation.

Customer Complaint Mechanism

The Group has established a two-level complaint mechanism
for the Head Office and subsidiaries. Customers can complain
via site feedback, or by mail, call, fax, etc., to the Head Office
or the in-charge departments of the subsidiaries. All kinds of
customer complaints are received and handled by special
personnel, and such special personnel are responsible for
closed-loop tracking.
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5.3

In 2020, the Group actively investigated customers 496 times,
collected 49 feedback from project owners via the work
mechanism of “two-level investigation and three-channel
feedback”, among which 45 were confirmed resolved within
the Reporting Period by the owners via telephone or interview.
The timeliness of user complaint handling and the satisfaction
of customers with the results of complaint handling during the
year continued to increase. The problem feedback and closed-
loop processing mechanism on a regular basis promoted the
continuous improvement of the performance, safety, quality
and service of the Group’s products, and played an important
role in enhancing the brand image.

Fulfilling Corporate Social Responsibility

The Group actively participated in the local government-
enterprise co-construction, science, education, health,
donation and other social public welfare activities and thus
promoted the social harmony of the region where it was
located.

The Group has established the “Green Ribbon” Youth
Volunteer Association, which has gradually established
three series of volunteer service brands, namely the “Energy
Knowledge into the Campus”, “Uniting Love Sowing Love”
and “The Ubiquitous Green Ribbon Super Hero”, revealing
the spirit of young and striving, as well as passing through the
positive energy of youth, and the good image of fulfilling social
responsibility of central enterprises of the Group.

In the past three years, the "Green Ribbon" Volunteer
Association has organized the campaign of Youth Lighting
up Micro Wish, and mobilized all employees of the Group
to donate goods and materials for primary and secondary
schools and nursing homes in Nierong County, Tibet and
Chifeng City, Inner Mongolia, with a total amount over
RMB450,000.

In future, the “Green Ribbon” Volunteer Association will always
incorporate the Youth Poverty Alleviation and Assistance
Action into the four-dimensional work pattern of “Consolidating
Youth, Serving the Overall Situation, Serving as the Bridge,
and Strictly Managing the Group”, and continue to spread the
excellent Chinese traditional culture including the concepts of
unity, harmony, relief from distress, etc., constantly hold the
“Youth Lightening Small Wishes” activity, “One-to-One” student
aid, caring empty nesters, constructing love book houses,
“Learning from Lei Feng” youth activity and other activities.
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APPENDIX-INDEX TO CONTENTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) OF HKEX

Pfi £

BERXHHRE - 8 LER(ESG)NB RS

Environmental, Social and Governance Report Guide
(RE - HERERBMEESD

Report content

BEAR

Subject Area A. Environmental
FEHRA RR
Aspect A1: Emissions

BmEAT1 : HHY

A1 General Disclosure 2.3

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

—RRIFE

BHERIMOAERBHR - MKREIHOTET AERBEZEEVNES

S
(@ BX: &
(b) EFEBITARERTENEMERNROIEER o

Al The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 222
PERU ISR S AR A BE IR -
2.3.3

Al.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect greenhouse gas emissions in 2.2.1
total (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

HE @ E) RpREEREREAYNE (CAMEETE) &k (@A) % E (1
LAGESBN - BIEFRMTE) ©

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, 2.3.1
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
FELEEREEDEE CAEE) R(ER)BE(ABESEM - 818

L] A
EXDBATR) ©

Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where 2.3.2
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
FrESEZSEEYAS CAEGTE) R(ER) BE(ABESEM - 818

RiE B -

A1.5 Describe the emission targets set and the steps taken to achieve them. 2.3.3
FEILPTAT SZEVFERR B AR N R E 2155 L B IR P EREREY 22 8% -
211

Reduce Pollution Emissions
Implement Scientific
Management

PRAK SRR TRI R E 12

Water Resource Management
KREIREIE

Exhaust Gas Management
FEREE

Energy Management

BEREE

Hazardous Waste Management

BERENER

Non-hazardous Waste
Management
mEFEEYER

Exhaust Gas Management

FERERE

Segment of Environmental
Protection and Energy
Conservation Solutions

IRIREENEERR T R &
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report Guide

Report content

(RE - HERERMERED BEAR
A1.6 Describe the methods used to treat hazardous and non-hazardous 2.3.1 Hazardous Waste Management
waste and describe the waste reduction targets set and the steps BEEEYER

taken to achieve them.
HilRIE B EREZEEYM L - MRS AR RS B R R AZERE
L B fZEETEREN Y 2P o

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
[BHEA2 : EREM

A2

A2.1

A2.2

A2.3

A2.4

A2.5

General Disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and
other raw materials.

—RRIFE

BRERER(BIELR - KREAMRMED BBER -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas
or oil) in total (kwh in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

RENESMERER SHEERWE - Kb BFEE UTETRER
SAE)REEMNAGESEN - FERXBAHE)

Total water consumption and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
BIKENEE (AGES SN - BERBTE)

Describe the energy efficiency targets set and the steps taken to
achieve them.

faadl FrRT 2V BEIRE A Aes B AR K A B Lk B AR FTERERH) 22 B

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose water efficiency initiatives and result achieved.
HSREGE AR _E A B ERE - AR RS ST 8 R ATERR -

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if
applicable, with reference to per unit produced.
ER MR EREM NS AN E) M (ER) S EBLES -

2.3.2 Non-hazardous Waste
Management
BEEZYER
2.1.1 Segment of Environmental
Protection and Energy
Conservation Solutions
IRIREETREADR T R D H

2.2 Reduce Resource Consumption
Adhere to the Concept of
Resource Saving
BB RBREEITEAIER

2.2.1 Energy Management

BEIRE IR

222 Water Resource Management
KREIRE IR

2.2 Reduce Resource Consumption

Adhere to the Concept of
Resource Saving
BB RBEREEITEANER
222 Water Resource Management
KREIRE IR
2.2.3 Use of Packaging Materials

BEDER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report Guide

Report content

(RE - HERERMERED BEAR

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

[BHAS : BIERRXAER

A3 General Disclosure 2 Practicing the Concept of Green
Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the environment Development

and natural resources.

— AR ER BITHREERER
BIREITABIRBERARNERENEATZEHNBUR °

A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment 2 Practicing the Concept of Green

and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.
M EBEBEHRERARAARERNEAZERERKNEEFBTENTT
& o

Subject Area B. Social
TEHEBAME

Employment and Labor Practices
EBREREIESR

Aspect B1: Employment

[EmEB1

B1

B1.2

CERE

General Disclosure 3.1

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

— AR EE

BRH R ERE  BEREN  TIERE - BRE - TE#E 2ot R

IR DA Ko ELAh 15588 K AR A Y
(a) BX: &k
(b) BFHETAGEARZENHBERIROINES -

Total work force by gender, employment type (e.g. full-time or part- 3.1
time), age group and geographical region.

AR ERBL (N2 REGRE) - Tl RitEE D rES B -

Employee turnover attrition rate by gender, age group and geographical 3.1
region.

RIER - FicBRI MRS DMEBRAKLLE -

Development
BITHREERES

Legitimate Employment and
Welfare Protection

HOERIR R AR FIRE

Legitimate Employment and
Welfare Protection

BOEENR R ABRREE

Legitimate Employment and
Welfare Protection

HOE RN N AR FRIE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report Guide

Report content

(RE - HERERMERED BEAR

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

[BEB2: #REZE

B2 General Disclosure 3.2 Safety production and

B2.1

B2.2

B2.3

Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

—MARE
BRREZE2TIERERRER B EBEEEER -
(@ BX: &

(b) EFEBITARBERZENEMERNROIEER o

Number and rate of job-related deaths in the previous three years
(including the reporting year).

BE=F(BDREERFE)EFFATTRNHABKLLE -

Number of job lost due to job-related injury.

ETEERTIER -

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how
they are implemented and monitored.
PR B R R 2 2480 - AR IT REE R -

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[ETEBS :

B3

B3.1

B3.2

R RIE

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and
skills for discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

—RRIFE

BRARITE BT TIERE M MB LB MBUER - B RS -

Percentage of the trained employees by gender and type (such as
senior management, medium management).
RUFIREERNERERE  FEEREISNXIIEERL

The average hours of employees trained by gender and employee
category.
BRI REESERES - FREE TN TR -

3.2

3.2

3.2

3.3

3.3

3.3

occupational health

REREERBEER

Safety production and
occupational health

LR ENBERR

Safety production and
occupational health
TEREERBERE

Safety production and
occupational health

LR ENBERR

Employee Training and Career
Development Mechanism
B B R B R

Employee Training and Career
Development Mechanism
B B BB R

Employee Training and Career
Development Mechanism
B | R B R

2020 ANNUAL REPORT
Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*



APPENDIX-INDEX TO CONTENTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND

GOVERNANCE (ESG) OF HKEX (CONTINUED)

Pt &%

BERHNRE - 8 KEA(ESG)AR RS (&)

Environmental, Social and Governance Report Guide

Report content

(RE - HERERMERED BEAR
Aspect B4: Labor Standards
[ETEB4 : % TR
B4 General Disclosure 3.1 Legitimate Employment and
Information on: Welfare Protection
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labor.
— AR ER FORRIE RABFIRE
BRI IEE TeaR S5 TH
(@) BXE: &k
(b) EFHEEITABERZENEMERNROIEER o
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child 3.1 Legitimate Employment and
and forced labor. Welfare Protection
HR BB AR AR R E T RIEHI%T - FORRIE RABFIRE
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. 3.1 Legitimate Employment and

IR R BERERER G RIS LR 2257

Operating Practices

EEEM

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EmEBS5 : HtrEEEE

B5

B5.1

B5.2

General Disclosure 51

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply
chain.

— AR R

EIRHESREIRE Rt G ERBUE ©

Number of suppliers by geographical region. 51
i RE|I DV HEREE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of 5.1
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.

AR AEEENES - MERTEREMNEEREE - ARERH
BHIBMITREER G E

Welfare Protection

ORI R AR FIRE

Supplier Cooperation and
Management

HERAIFRER

Supplier Cooperation and
Management
HEEaEREIR

Supplier Cooperation and
Management

HEmAIFRERE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report Guide

Report content

(RE - HERERMERED BREAE
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[BEB6 : EmEE
B6 General Disclosure 4.2 Take responsibility for product
Information on: and place quality in the first
(a) the policies; and place
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a ERETEEA%
significant impact on the issuer 5.2 Establish Good Customer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labeling and privacy matters Relationship
relating to products and services provided and methods of redress. BEREREFEE
— AR ER
BHFREERTRENERERZS - B  BERMESEARMSKRS
EH
(@ BX: &
(b) EFEBEITARBERZENHEMERNAROIEER o
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for 5.2 Establish Good Customer
safety and health reasons. Relationship
EERDEXEMERTRAL L BEFREAMARKNB DL BRERIEFEF
B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how 5.2 Establish Good Customer
they are dealt with. Relationship
BRI E mn RSV IRER 8 B A R 0% - BERIFEZFPRIFR
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual 4.3 Innovation, efficiency, and
property rights. scientific advancement
it B4 R ARFE AR E A AR ED - BIFTIR AR 2 AP
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and product recall 4.2 Take responsibility for product
procedures. and place quality in the first
place
il S A iR AR N EE mm AR Fr - EmETEEAL
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they 4.3 Not involved

are implemented and monitored.

OB B E B RHMRE R RFLBOR - U RBRRITRESTX »

FHR
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Report content

(RE - HERERMERED BEAR
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BEB7 : RES
B7 General Disclosure 41 Fight Corruption and Promote
Information on: Incorruptible Employment
(a) the policies; and according to Law
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
— AR ER BOEKIFRRNE S
BRI - B1R - BEEROERER ¢
(@) BXE: &k
(b) EFHEEITABERZENEMERNROIEER o
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought 4.1 Fight Corruption and Promote
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and Incorruptible Employment
the outcomes of the cases. according to Law
RERAANEZTASHESREWEEANE 5 ARGREA KA BRI BRI E
MR o
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, 4.1 Fight Corruption and Promote
how they are implemented and monitored. Incorruptible Employment
according to Law
P S b MR BET - ARARRRIT RER A BRI FOBWEE
Community
#HE
Aspect B8: Community Investment
[EEBS : HEBRE
B8 General Disclosure 5.3 Fulfilling Corporate Social
Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the Responsibility
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities
take into consideration the communities’ interests.
— AR EE BIThELgEE
BNt R2ERBEREEMEHRFENRRAXE EHEE BLRT
EHIER
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental issues, labor 5.3 Fulfilling Corporate Social
needs, health, culture, sports). Responsibility
HIEREEMWHE  REFEE  SIFK @F - b 8BE) - BITEELERE
B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. 5.3 Fulfilling Corporate Social

EFIREMPAER WS EXEHE) -

Responsibility
BIThELgEE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

RV GIIE

e

Ernst & Young RRE RIS
22/F, CITIC Tower E ISR B
§j( 1 Tim Mei Avenue sk E221E

Central, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of Guodian Technology & Environment Group
Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Guodian
Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 187 to 353, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Loss allowance for trade receivables and contract assets

At 31 December 2020, the Group's trade  Our audit procedures to assess the loss allowance for

receivables and contract assets totalled
RMB12,448 million after deduction of an
allowance for expected credit losses of
RMB1.933 million.

Management estimates the loss allowance at
an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit
loss for trade receivables and contract assets
that do not contain a significant financing
component with assessments of expected
credit losses and estimated loss rates based
on the ageing of balances for groupings of
various customer segments with similar loss
patterns, repayment histories of individual
debtors, existing customer-specific and market
conditions and forward-looking information.
For the trade receivables and contract assets
that contain a significant financing component,
management estimates the loss allowance using
the general approach with different stages by
assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. Such
assessment involves a significant degree of
judgement.

trade receivables and contract assets included the
following:

obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design, implementation and operation of
key internal controls over the credit control, the
receivables collection process and the process of
making loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets;

obtaining an understanding on the key data and
assumptions of the expected credit loss model
adopted by management, including the historical
default data, ageing of debtor balances, credit
terms, recent settlement patterns and forecast of
future economic conditions;

assessing management’s estimates on loss
allowance by examining the information used
by management, including testing the accuracy
of the historical default data and evaluating
whether the historical loss rates are appropriately
adjusted based on current economic conditions
and forward-looking information, considering the
future economic conditions, such as checking
the subsequent settlements and obtaining the
signed detailed settlement arrangement with the
customers;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B A RS (58)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Loss allowance for trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

We identified the loss allowance for trade receivables
and contract assets as a key audit matter because of
the inherent uncertainty in assessing whether trade
receivables and contract assets will be recovered
in full and because the assessment of expected
credit losses requires the exercise of significant
management judgement.

The accounting policy, significant accounting
judgements and estimates and disclosures about
the amount of loss allowance and the balances of
trade receivables and contract assets are included
in notes 2(p), 4(b), 23, 25 and 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT

assessing the ageing report by comparing a
sample of individual items with the relevant
underlying documentation;

assessing the assumptions and estimates
made by management for the assessment
of loss allowances for trade receivables
and contract assets by performing a
retrospective review of the historical
accuracy of these assumptions and
estimates, including historical default data
and estimated loss rates;

checking, on a sample basis, cash receipts
from debtors to bank-in slips and billings
to customers subsequent to the year end
relating to the balances of trade receivables
and contract assets at 31 December 2020;
and

assessing the disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements in relation
to the loss allowances for trade receivables
and contract assets with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.
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FARESSEGE
L HE
BUEH RS FAERERR W)

AR ERETRAREENS
BREFABRESSE 2h
RERER - SREBENT LR
WEAEEATREEY  ARHRE
RRANEARREEEFLE
KA

RUEH KA FAERESRR
FEEBEHRE - &stHEA
fEat REBERA G RR M
2(p) * 4(0) ~ 23~ 255226 «

ESRNARA

BRULEERRRANA
BERER  FRYIE
RARBERERS

BRURNESRRAREE
MERBRENRRA MG
(BEELENZERENE
KE)ME LRI TN
W& - NFHEEEERA
MBRRMEREARE :

DA S E 8120206 12
RA3IBERESNREREE
WEHER  RANEESR
BTHREETRSE R

FEERRENLAERY
FEERRTRERAE:
BRIRANE BRI
TEERE -




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BB AN RS ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Assessing potential impairment of certain property, plant and equijpment and intangible assets

At 31 December 2020, the Group’s property,

Our audit procedures to assess potential impairment of

plant and equipment (“PPE") and intangible ~ PPE and intangible assets held by certain subsidiaries
assets were RMB4,632 million and RMB824  of the Group included the following:

million, respectively. Certain subsidiaries of
the Group were loss-making or suspended
production due to various market and economic
factors, which included severe market
competition, increases in cost of raw materials,
delays in operations influenced by government
policies and decreases in the market demand.

Management considered the above events
and circumstances indicated that PPE and
intangible assets associated with these
subsidiaries might be impaired and performed
impairment assessments of these assets, or
the cash-generating units (“CGUS”) to which
these assets were allocated, to determine
their recoverable amounts. The recoverable
amounts are the higher of the fair value less
costs of disposal of these assets or CGUs and
their value in use. The impairment assessment
involved a significant degree of management
judgement, particularly in relation to the key
assumptions adopted, including revenue growth
rates, gross profit margins, long-term growth
rates, inflation rates, the discount rate applied in
the discounted cash flow forecast, and the key
assumptions adopted in the fair value less costs
of disposal model, including the remaining
useful economic lives of the relevant assets and
the comparable transactions.

assessing the Group's impairment assessment
model, which included assessing the impairment
indicators identified by management, the
identification of CGUs and the allocation of assets
to those CGUs and evaluating the methodology
adopted by management in the preparation
of impairment assessments with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

comparing the data in the discounted cash flow
forecasts used for the impairment assessments
with the relevant data of the Group's financial
budget which was approved by the management;

assessing the reliability of management's cash
flow forecasting process by comparing the
previous year's forecasts with the current year's
results, discussing significant variances with
management and considering the effect of such
variances on the current year's forecasts;

comparing the key assumptions adopted by
management in the discounted cash flow
forecasts with externally available information in
relation to key inputs, which included revenue
growth rates, gross profit margins, long-term
growth rates and inflation rates; assessing the
key assumptions adopted in the calculation of the
fair value less costs of disposal of related assets,
including the remaining economic useful lives
by assessing whether the key assumptions were
within the range adopted by other companies
in the same industry, performing recalculations
by using market and other external available
information derived from similar industries;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B A RS (58)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Assessing potential impairment of certain property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

(continued)

We identified assessing potential impairment
of PPE and intangible assets held by certain
subsidiaries of the Group as a key audit matter
because the impairment assessments include
a number of assumptions and estimates which
require the exercise of significant management
judgement and they were inherently uncertain.
The accounting policy, significant accounting
judgements and estimates and disclosures
about the amount of provision and the balances
of PPE and intangible assets are included in
notes 2(m), 4(a), 15 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT

comparing the discount rates applied in the
discounted cash flow forecasts with those of the
comparable companies in the same industry;

involving our internal valuation specialists to assist
us in evaluating the methodology and the discount
rates used in the calculation of the recoverable
amounts;

discussing with management on the key
assumptions to which the outcome of the
impairment assessment was most sensitive,
including those relating to forecast revenue
and forecast profit margins, and reviewing the
sensitivity analysis; and

assessing the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the impairment
assessment with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards.

Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B A RS (58)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B A RS (58)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Bennett S.H. Wai.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
26 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AfrRmR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Amounts expressed in Renminbi (“RMB”) unless otherwise stated)
BE2020F12A31HIEFERIESHHRA - UARETIR)

2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
bzt AR¥TFT AR TFr

Revenue N 6 15,624,478 11,691,038
Cost of sales SHER AR (12,669,611) (9,102,840)
Gross profit EF 2,954,867 2,588,198
Other revenue E g A 7 315,344 323,064
Other income E Uz 8 22,652 155,915
Other expenses HAth & 8 (111,342) =
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHFAXZ (1,094,852) (1,184,562)
Administrative expenses IR (1,380,365) (1,485,061)
Profit from operations KEFH 706,304 397,554
Finance costs BTG R AN 9 (573,700) (592,937)
Share of profits less losses of associates — FE{GHE & N &R E 12 72,331 45,868
Profit/(loss) before taxation BATFIE, (&E8) 10 204,935 (149,515)
Income tax Frig#i 11 (249,368) (297,537)
Loss for the year KEEE (44,433) (447 052)
Attributable to: BER

— Equity shareholders of the Company — AN AR 14 57,123 (289,688)

— Non-controlling interests — IR e (101,556) (157,364)
Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) BREARBERA(HE)

per share (expressed in RMB cent) (UA BRI T) 14 0.94 (4.78)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COI\/IPREHENSIVE INCOME
B M E At AR S WS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
HZE2020F12A31HIEFEFRIERBHRA - UARETITR)

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT AERRTFT

Loss for the year REFE (44,433) (447,052)

Other comprehensive income for the year A FEHMARE WS

ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or TeEL B ABRHNIER

loss:
— Equity investments at fair value through — AR BEFEBEEB T ARLBE
other comprehensive income Gl RIERE
(“FVOCI"):
— changes in fair value —RREEE 1,000,747 372,785
— income tax effect —FEBEE (249,468) (85,705)
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently ~ HE#&EES B ABZMIER ¢
to profit or loss:
- Exchange differences on translation of — B A RAFE (B RINE
financial statements of operations B SRR EAEMIE R Z5E
outside the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") (1,269) 377

Other comprehensive income for the year, ZHEHMGEWE @ HEFE

net of tax 750,010 287,457
Total comprehensive income for the year KEHFEWHBE 705,577 (159,595)
Attributable to: BER

Equity shareholders of the Company N BRERAR R 807,133 (2,231)

Non-controlling interests FEPERR i R (101,556) (157,364)
Total comprehensive income for the year KEHFEWNFBE 705,577 (159,595)

2020 ANNUAL REPORT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR AR

As at 31 December 2020 (Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

1K2020F 12 A31H (BRIESEHE - LUARESTR)

2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
Jiotz3 ARETFT ARETFT
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment M - HE REE 15 4,631,720 4,586,390
Investment properties RE Y 16 209,501 218,205
Intangible assets mPEE 18 824,062 864,193
Goodwill 5l 19 57,591 57,591
Interests in associates HEE R AIWIRE 21 484,699 444,539
Other equity investments EMERRE 22 2,227,673 1,229,800
Restricted deposits R 173k 28 11,812 14,578
Other non-current assets HEMIEmE&EE 23 4,094,876 3,828,725
Deferred tax assets EERIHE E 34(a) 691,521 686,097
Total non-current assets IRBEEHTE 13,233,455 11,930,118
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 24 4,908,220 4,147,852
Contract assets AREE 25 1,979,535 2,284,957
Trade and bills receivables FEUER R & R 26 8,676,786 9,809,267
Deposits, prepayments and other e BIREREM 27
receivables e IR 2,221,853 1,617,680
Tax recoverable AU Bl FIE 71,128 220,952
Restricted deposits PR HI7F R 28 408,556 615,564
Cash at bank and in hand RITERLEFRS 29 5,283,197 4,186,922
Total current assets REEEATE 23,549,275 22,883,194
Current liabilities REEE
Borrowings B 30(b) 7,400,446 6,318,173
Trade and bills payables JETERI R R IR 31 10,715,283 9,941,038
Other payables and accruals Efh e I8 32 1,333,670 1,469,945
Contract liabilities cREE 33 2,596,279 2,174,643
Income tax payable FERT PSR 44,726 52,636
Provision for warranty BReEE 35 381,661 320,736
Total current liabilities FEEEREE 22,472,065 20,277,171
Net current assets REBEETE 1,077,210 2,606,023
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERABAEE 14,310,665 14,536,141
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

BHFF IR R (B)

As at 31 December 2020 (Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
2020512 A31 B (RIESEFHA - UARKETITR)

2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
BraE AR¥FT ARMTFT

Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Borrowings &3 30(a) 4,435,119 5,401,057
Deferred income EEW e 36 298,177 293,602
Deferred tax liabilities BIETIEAE 34(a) 501,984 215,742
Lease liabilities HESE 17 70,846 98,003
Provision for warranty BIRGEAE 35 184,726 271,863
Other non-current liabilities EMIEREEE 37 675,675 694,156
Total non-current liabilities E1 3k RNk 6,166,527 6,974,423
NET ASSETS EEFH 8,144,138 7,561,718

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRFHE
Share capital &N 38(c) 6,063,770 6,063,770
Reserves it (486,320) (1,297,656)

Total equity attributable to equity FERANTEERR

shareholders of the Company HRER4aEE 5,577,450 4,766,114
Non-controlling interests IEIEARAE 2 20(iii) 2,566,688 2,795,604
TOTAL EQUITY R 8,144,138 7,561,718

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 March ~ ZE @ 7202143 A 26 A it/ MR T3 -
2021.

CHEN Donggqing [R& &
Executive Director 17 TEF

TANG Chaoxiong E# 1
Executive Director #i77& %
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
I RESSEE R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2020F12A31BIEFEFRIESHHBA - UARKESIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

BERLAERRR
Fair value Non-
Share Capital PRC statutory Exchange reserve (non-  Accumulated controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve recycling) losses Sub-total interests  Total equity
MBERE
& EARE  EEELE EifE  (FEMA) ZithR Mt FERER REEE

RMB'000  RMBYU00  RMB'O00  RMBYU00  RMBO00  RMBYU00  RMBO00  RMBU00  RMB'000
ARBTL  AREFT  ARETT  AREFR  ARETT  ARETTZ  ARETT  ARETT  AREFR
Note 38(c) ~ Note 38(d)fi)  Note 38(d)i) Note 38(d)iii)  Note 36(a)iv)
His8e)  HE3s)) KR8  HEss)in A6

Balance at 31 December 2019 2019E12A31A %
and 1 January 2020 202051 A1R &% 6,063,770 1,053,550 129,332 2,498 254,148 (2,737,184) 4,766,114 2,795,604 7,561,718

Changes in equity for 005RELT

2020:

Loss for the year rEEE - - - - - 57,123 57,123 (101,556)  (44,433)
Other comprehensive i ade

income - - - (1,269) 751,279 - 750,010 - 750,010

Total comprehensive GENGER
income - - - (269 T2 57123 807123 (10185%6) 705577

Capital injection fromnon- ~ JFERIRRITE

controlling interest - - - - - - - 17,500 17,500
Dividends paid by NG EE G 2k

subsidiaries to non- BESHRE

controlling equity owners - - - - - - - (113,546)  (113,546)
Acquisition of a non- W ARN D HiRiE

controlling interest in a V)

subsiciary (') - a0 - - - S a3 (1314 @)
Transfer of fair value reserve BB RENA A (BEH 2

upon the disposal of BEZEHALMEA

equity movement of MR REN AL

FvoCl BEGHE - - - - (2,874) 2,874 - - -

Balance at 31 December 2020512831848
2020 6,063,770 1,057,753 129,332 1,229 1,002,553  (2,677,187) 5577450 2,566,688 8,144,138

Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited (the  * BERMERREEROERA ﬂ((zkﬂ:ﬂ)ﬂit

“Company”) and Beijing Huadian Tiande Assets Operation Co., Ltd. REBREAEKEBRAR(EERE)D S
(“Huadian Tiande”) held 90% and 10% equity interests of China Energy HABEGEEEBMEMERA TQO%*MO%E’J
I&C Interconnection Technology Co., Ltd. respectively. On 10 January H%E ° 2020F 1A 108 ' REBEREEEG T
2020, pursuant to the equity transfer agreement, the Company acquired ﬁL‘A/\E“%W 111,294 Tt 2E T R 1= U 5 B
10% equity interest of China Energy I&C Interconnection Technology TEHERMARRAA10%E - WER
Co., Ltd. from Huadian Tiande at a consideration of RMB27,111,294. The 2020¢4ﬂ 21HEK + B EIEEB KA
acquisition was completed on 21 April 2020, upon which, China Energy RARKARRRARINZEFAR

|&C Interconnection Technology Co., Ltd. became a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

ABHERBBE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
BHZE2020F12 A1 B IEFE(BRIESBHRA - UAREBIIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

FEALAERRR
Fair value
Share Capital  PRC statutory Exchange  reserve (non-  Accumulated Non-controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve recycling) losses Sub-total interests Total equity
RABERE
e BXGRE  PEEELE EiGE  (TERA) £S5 gt FnRiER BREE
RMBO0O AMB 00 RMB 00O AMBO0O AMB 00O RMBO0O AMBO00 RMB 00O RMBO0O
ANREFT  AREFT  ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Note 38(c) ~ Note 38(a)i)  Note 38(a)fi) ~ Note 38a)fii) ~ Note 38(d)iv)
Hisge) W))W HEEssa)i)  HESs) )
Balance at 31 December 2018 2018%12B31A R
and 1 January 2019 195151848 6063770 1,063,550 129,33 2121 (3293)  (2446357) 4769484 2973688 7,743,172
Changes inequity for2019: ~ 2019FE&HEE):
Loss for the year KEEE = = = S = (289,688) (289,688) (157,364) (447,052)
Other comprenensive income - SR AN = = = 377 287,080 = 287,457 = 287 457
Total comprehensive income A WHEE 5 5 = 377 287,080 (289,688) (2.231) (157,364) (159,595)
Capital injection from non- FERRETE
controlling interest - - - - - - - 11,495 11,495
Disposal of subsidiries BEWBAR = 5 = 5 = = 5 (1,983) (1,983)
Dividends paid by subsiclariesto B AAFEIER
non-controlling equity owners SO
ke 5 S = 5 = E 5 (27,661) (27,661)
Acquisition of anon-controlling ~~ WEEFAFIRI D&
interest in a subsidiary Tt = = = - - - - (2571) (2571)
Lossondisposalof anequity R E A BB
investment at FVOCI EREEGA
Atz a st
REREREL 5 5 = 5 = (1,139) (1,139) . (1,139)
Balance at 31 December 2019 2019512/331H
b3 6,063,770 1,003,550 129,332 2,498 254,148 (2,737,184) 4,766,114 2,795,604 7,561,718
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
aefRERER
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2020F12A31BIEFEFRIESHHBA - UARKESIR)

2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
et ARETFT ARETFT
Cash flows from operating activities REKLEHNRESR
Profit/(loss) before taxation TATFIE, (&58) 204,935 (149,515)
Adjustments for: FER
Depreciation e 10 413,176 430,151
Amortisation By 10 79,153 82,964
Net losses/(gains) on disposals of HEWE - BB &R
property, plant and equipment and mIPEEWR T
intangible assets 8 7,300 (147,112)
(Reversal of impairment loss)/ (82[]),FHREYERK -
impairment loss on trade and other E A fERIE 2
receivables and contract assets EREBERESE 10 (124,466) 28,366
Impairment loss on property, plant and ME - BE - REREREE
equipment and intangible assets BEEE 10 56,046 21,314
Impairment loss of other non-current HibIEmehEEmEER
assets 10 - 4473
Write-down of inventories FEMR 24 1,813 53
Finance costs B RSAR AR 9 573,700 592,937
Interest income FBUA 7 (97,509) (114,287)
Government grants TS B (31,454) (20,110)
Dividend income from equity securities JEETERFEFNRBMA 7 (40,699) (20,393)
Net gain on disposal of a subsidiary BEENBARFRE 8 (989) =
Share of profits less losses of associates  FE{HE: & A &l FERE &2 (72,331) (45,868)
Changes in working capital: HEETHEML
Increase in inventories FEILM (762,181) (1,130,498)
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets ARBERR D, (8N 308,390 (779,508)
Decrease in trade and bills receivables FEUR BR 3K B IR ERL 1,313,920 2,760,583
(Increase)/decrease in deposits, & - FBRREME A ERE
prepayments and other receivables (g0, SR (657,693) 26,627
Increase in other non-current assets HAbIEmENEERIE (301,243) (392,661)
Increase in trade and bills payables FERBR R E RIS AN 775,746 741,652
Decrease in other payables H A FRIER R (148,930) (1,511,559)
Increase in contract liabilities ARAERNIEM 421,636 1,508,655
Decrease in provision for warranty BEREERNRLD (26,212) (74,741)
Cash generated from operations KERELENERES 1,892,108 1,811,523
Income tax paid EATFSH (76,104) (136,940)
Net cash generated from operating RETHELENERS
activities 1,816,004 1,674,583
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
EHRERER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
HZE2020F12A31HIEFEFRIERBHRA - UARETITR)

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE TR ARETFT

Cash flows from investing activities RETHEENRESR

Payments for purchase of property, plant — £EE¥IZ -« BB M&RE - BN
and equipment, lease prepayments and HHERREREES D

intangible assets (493,522) (415,282)
Proceeds of disposal of an associate HEBE QAR ZRESFEE 50,000 —
Payments for advances to related parties 44 BB 5 B #4350 (15,000) (464)
Payments for advances to third parties RE=TTHRR (6,154) (34,959)
Proceeds from repayment of advances by S =H1EE#K

third parties 82,017 78,421
Increase in deposits with banks RITIF I AN (1,110,000) (2,648,500)
Withdrawal of deposits with banks RITIE A HRER 1,241,500 1,607,000
Purchase of a shareholding in an associate & Z B A 518D (7,800) -
Purchase of short-term investments BEEHRE (165,000) (55,000)
Proceeds from short-term investment RHARE 2 W El 170,000 =
Government grants received W I B9 BT 8 B 34,089 15,154
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant HEWE - HE K& M EE

and equipment and intangible assets EFTB A 727 395,896
Dividends received B U B 96,625 88,743
Interest received B UF & 12,280 1,854
Proceeds from disposal of equity BEERTAUAAREEFEAE

investments designated at FVOCI FE AHMERE W aIARE

®E 2,874 261
Net cash used in investing activities RETHFEANEES (107,364) (966,876)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
aHRERERE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2020F12A31BIEFEFRIESHHBA - UARKESIR)

2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB 000
Htat ARETFT ARBFr
Cash flows from financing activities RETHELENRSR
Proceeds from borrowings BATSRIE 29(c) 8,905,360 10,961,980
Proceeds from issuance of corporate B RRESFERRE TEME
bonds KIE 29(c) - 900,000
Proceeds from issuance of private BITIABEEBHETAMS
placement notes KIE 29(c) - 1,000,000
Capital injection from a non-controlling R ERFTE AR EE
equity owner - 11,495
Decrease in restricted deposits 2 PR 17 Sk AR A 675,908 865,517
Increase in restricted deposits R HI T SR EYE AN (466,134) (1,214,817)
Repayment of borrowings BEER 29(c) (8,793,711) (11,435,766)
Repayment of private placement notes EBELALEEHRETA 29(c) - (1,400,000)
Dividends paid by subsidiaries to non- MR ElmSEE R ST & X
controlling equity owners AR B (132,905) (27,384)
Payments for acquisition of a non- SRR TR B IR AR i A
controlling interest in a subsidiary (27,111) (2,571)
Interest paid BRFLE 29(c) (575,123) (636,018)
Principal portion of lease payments TREERSED 29(c) (64,279) (22,930)
Net cash used in financing activities REETHFERANEES (477,995) (1,000,494)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRBSSEYHFEM
cash equivalents (R 88 1,230,645 (292,787)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January M1 A1ENBEERBEBLEEY 3,145,422 3,436,459
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ~ #MEE RE{L 2 (2,870) 1,750
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 M12A3TENRERELEEY
December 4,373,197 3,145,422
2020 F #&
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI ot

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(B4 BUFERRSM -
1.

TREMASARET

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ORGANISATION

Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited
(the “Company”) was established on 6 April 2001 in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) as a state-owned enterprise with
limited liability. The Company was converted to a joint stock
company with limited liability in the PRC on 16 May 2011. On 30
December 2011, the Company’s H shares were listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). At the
extraordinary general meeting held on 23 December 2019, the
Company considered and adopted the proposal of the change
of its name into CHN Energy Technology & Environment Group
Corporation Limited, which is currently in the process of industrial
and commercial change registration. The registered office address
of the Company is Suite 1101, 11/F, Building 1 Yard 16, W.4th Ring
Middle Road Haidian District, Beijing, PRC.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company’s
subsidiaries are involved in the following principal activities:

° environmental protection
° energy conservation solutions
° wind power products and services

° all others, including wind and solar power generation and sale
of other electric power control system related products

The directors consider that the ultimate holding company and parent
of the Company is China Energy Investment Corporation Limited
(“China Energy”), a company registered in the PRC and controlled
by State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”),
which include all applicable International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and interpretations issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange. Significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group are disclosed below.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B H5 R et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(CONTINUED)

(@)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

(BB RIERRSD -
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FTEETBEREE)
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(b)
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AR B EELEEREG P REIRE
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SERFEEERHEHRRERQR
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SENEERREERR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B F5 R My et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(B4 BUFERRSM -

TREMASARET

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

Basis of Consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the equity shareholders of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described above.
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained earnings, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except for
equity investments (Note 22) and bills receivable (Note 26)
which are stated at their fair values.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in RMB, rounded to
the nearest thousand, which is the functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries established in the PRC ("PRC
Subsidiaries”) carrying on the principal activities of the Group.
The functional currencies of the Company’s subsidiaries
in Hong Kong and United States are the Hong Kong dollar
("HKD”) and the United States dollar (“USD”) respectively.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B H5 R et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(CONTINUED)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. An
investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences
until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances,
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. For each business combination, the Group

can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling interests
and other contractual obligations towards these holders are
presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated statement
of financial position depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B F5 R My et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(B4 BUFERRSM -

TREMASARET

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (Note 2(n)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (Note
2(m)), unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or the
Company and other parties contractually agree to share
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of
the arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale). Adjustments
are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policy that
may exist. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s
share of the acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s
identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment (if any).
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition
change in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and
any impairment loss relating to the investment (Note 2(m)).
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and
any impairment losses for the year are recognised in profit or
loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-
tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated other comprehensive income.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B H5 R et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(CONTINUED)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced
to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the Group’s
long-term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as
part of the Group’s investments in associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a joint venture,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at
the date when significant influence or joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset (Note 2(n)).

In the Company'’s statement of financial position, investments
in associates and joint ventures are stated at cost less
impairment losses (Note 2(m)), unless classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B F5 R My et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(B4 BUFERRSM -

TREMASARET

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

®

(C)

Business combination under common control

Business combinations arising from transfer of interests in
entities that are under the control of the shareholder who
controls the Group are accounted for as if the acquisition had
occurred at the beginning of the years or, if later, at the date
that common control was established. The assets and liabilities
acquired are recognised at the carrying amounts recognised
previously in the Company’s controlling shareholder’s
consolidated financial statements.

Upon transfer of interest in an entity to another entity that are
under the control of the shareholder who controls the Group,
any difference between the Group’s interest in the carrying
value of the assets and liabilities and the cost of transfer of
interest in the entity is recognised directly in equity.

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

(iy  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is, after
reassessment, recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to
each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating
units, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment (Note 2(m)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B H5 R et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(CONTINUED)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (included the right-of-use assets
which were presented under property, plant and equipment),
other than construction in process, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (Note 2(m)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which they are
located and borrowing costs (Note 2(aa)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives and residual rates as follows:

— Buildings 10-45years 0%
— Structures 20-55years 0%
— General equipment 5-20 years 0% — 5%
— Special power equipment 8 — 35 years 0% — 3%
— Technology and environmental

protection equipment 5-15years 3% — 5%
— Other industrial equipment 5-35years 0% — 5%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B F5 R My et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(B4 BUFERRSM -

TREMASARET

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

U]

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The Group adjusted the expected useful life and the expected
residual value rate of property, plant and equipment from 1
January 2020 (Note 15).

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

For the accounting policy of the right-of-use assets, see Note
2(k)(1).

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction and installation, which are
stated at cost less any impairment losses, and are not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and/or buildings
(including the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset
which would otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. Investment properties are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (Note 2(m)).
The depreciation policy is the same as that of property, plant
and equipment (Note 2(h)). Rental income from investment
properties is accounted for as described in Note 2(y).

If a property occupied by the Group as property, plant and
equipment becomes an investment property, the Group
accounts for such property in accordance with the policy
stated under “Property, plant and equipment” for owned
property up to the date of change in use. The deemed cost of
a property for subsequent accounting is its carrying amount at
the date of change in use.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B H5 R et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(CONTINUED)

1)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

The Group recognises an intangible asset arising from a
service concession arrangement when it has a right to charge
for usage of the concession infrastructure. An intangible asset
received as consideration for providing construction services
in a service concession arrangement are measured at fair
value upon initial recognition by reference to the fair value
of the services provided. Subsequent to initial recognition
the intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (Note 2(m)). If the Group
is paid for the construction services partly by an intangible
asset and partly by a financial asset, then each component of
the consideration is accounted for separately and is initially
recognised at fair value of the consideration.

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure on
development activities is capitalised if, only if, the Group can
demonstrate all of the following: (i) the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for
use or sale;(ii)its intention to complete the intangible asset
and use or sell it; (iii)its ability to use or sell the intangible
asset; (iv) how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits. Among other things, the entity can
demonstrate the existence of a market for the output of the
intangible asset or the intangible asset itself or, if it is to be
used internally, the usefulness of the intangible asset; (v) the
availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the intangible
asset; and (vi) its ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its development.

The expenditure capitalised includes the costs of materials,
direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of overheads and
borrowing costs, where applicable (Note 2(aa)). Capitalised
development costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (Note 2(m)). Other
development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B F5 R My et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(B4 BUFERRSM -

TREMASARET

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

1)

(k)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (Note
2(m)). Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and
brands is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets
estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets with
finite useful lives are amortised from the date they are available
for use and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

— Concession assets 20 - 34 years
— Technical know-how 5-10years
— Capitalised development costs 5-10 years
— Software and others 3-10years

The estimated useful life of a concession asset in a service
concession arrangement is the period from when the Group is
able to charge for the use of the infrastructure to the end of the
concession period.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B H5 R B et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
(RAFRIFEERIN - REELRARET)

FEETERGE

(CONTINUED)

(k) Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(1

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the
commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for
any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-
of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received. Unless the Group
is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased
asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease
term as follows :

Leasehold land 9 - 50 years
Buildings and structures 2 -6 years
Motor vehicles 2 -3 years
Other equipment 2 -4 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group
by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated
using the estimated useful life of the asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B F5 R My et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(B4 BUFERRSM -

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

TREMASARET

(CONTINUED)

(k)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

2

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain
to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties
for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The
variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change
in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

The Group’s lease liabilities are included in lease
liabilities and other payables and accruals (current
portion).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
B TS R P 5 (48 )
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BRI - SBELBARKT)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TE&HBEGH)
(CONTINUED)

(k) Leases (Continued) (k) HEGE

Group as a lessee (Continued)
(8) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of buildings and
structures, motor vehicles and other equipment (that
is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets to leases
of office equipment and laptop computers that are
considered to be of low value (i.e. below RMB30,000).

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of its
leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included
in revenue and other revenue in the statement of profit or
loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over
the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent
rents are recognised as revenue and other revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee
are accounted for as finance leases. At the commencement
date, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the lease payments and related payments (including
the initial direct costs), and presented as a receivable at an
amount equal to the net investment in the lease.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
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TREMASARET

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

U]

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its bills receivable (Note 26) and equity
investments (Note 22) at fair value at the end of the current
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3- based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B H5 R et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(CONTINUED)

U]

(m)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

° property, plant and equipment;
° investment properties

° right-of-use assets (included under property, plant and
equipment)

o intangible assets;
o goodwill; and

° investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.

o Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e.
a cash-generating unit).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

BTSRRI (48 )
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFRIERIN - REBEMASARETT)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
o Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

o Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

(n) Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through

other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B H5 R et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(CONTINUED)

(n)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance
with the policies set out in Note 2(y).

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective of
both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling, such
as bills receivable, which was held to collect the contractual
amount upon the maturity or discounted to banks or endorsed
to suppliers before maturity. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B F5 R My et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(B4 BUFERRSM -

TREMASARET

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

For debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in profit or loss
and computed in the same manner as for financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes
are recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon
derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised in
other comprehensive income is recycled to profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The
classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B H5 R et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(CONTINUED)

(n)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments) (Continued)

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other revenue in
profit or loss when the right of payment has been established,
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably, except when the Group benefits
from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the
financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in
other comprehensive income. Equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income are not
subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as
other revenue in profit or loss when the right of payment has
been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B F5 R My et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(B4 BUFERRSM -

TREMASARET

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(o)

(P

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest
rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT
Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*

2.

FEFTBERE)
(0) KIRRLMEE

P

EREEE  WEA - BoEME
Ex—AREEREEN D)
ETIER TRBEK LR BN AR
SEAGIMIBHRKMER) -

s WREEWBRRATREMENE
Bk

s AEFECREERUEEWREZ
MENERN - IRB(EF IR
BEAERE =T 28N
WEHREREM T EEKRT
REE : M(a)AEECEE
BEMBASORR KD R
(o) NERE YW EE R A IRE
ENBRE SRR REHR 8
EEREENZHE -

IAKECEENEERBRSRE
MREFRERT L8 F 28 - ARG
ERREEEMAENRRKEHRK
RERE - MY BERNRBEEN
BABARBEEER - TAEBREE
EIE IR - RIARBEBRSES R
MRERRAMEENEE - £ZBER
T AKEFEREBEAE - EEE
BERERABRRRRASECRE
BAMEEENEEE -

MERTAEE2ECEREEZR
B DREERAREEEASKER
KEREENESABEZEMENR
BEE -

ERMEERE

REBRERHWIFRAAEEFT AR
HEOMBEEHTARBREERKNE
# - BHEEBRRTIDERREBES N
HIH & ISR 8 BAE BB HYER
WABRERE < FHNEEMET -
WIAREBRF AT EUERLIR - FRH
REnERREHEMFERNRE
MEHAKA DIEFTEEMERRTT
Ei



2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B H5 R et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(CONTINUED)

(9]

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next
12-month (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

For the financial instruments including deposits and other
receivables, bills receivable, trade receivables and contract
assets that contain a significant financing component, they are
subject to impairment under the general approach and they
are classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs.

Stage 1- Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

(BRI - SBELBARKT)

FESTBERE

(p)

T EEERE
—RT %

TEREEBA D MBS EITHER °
%QMﬁﬁwtﬁﬁ@%ﬁMME%
EBmE - &&RK120E A NAT 4L
;Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁf%%ﬁﬂl
REHEEBRFIREREERX
B o mamw%maaﬁggmm
EEREBME @ TwmIFEEELD
ﬁmm%Tﬂﬁiﬁmmﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ
Kt BAREB(FENRNBESREER
BXK) o

AEBNEREBHFEHEEHMIEN
EERBRET 8 VAR EE
N e FEHEITRATAR - AEBERR
SRR SR T ARA 2 EHRKE
VB ERARSH T AT EZELHR
REITHER  TEERSRENLBAS
A DA EENEE R AL E
2 (B BAERATIEMEE) -

HReEske REMERER  BEER
B RERIEAREEENRAS
EARMERDHERIA < 917K
TEEITRE - R TR ERAD
R AFEEHERRX -

—MEER— E ?ﬂﬁ“ﬁEwMX Zf‘?

%%uﬁ*ﬁmﬂﬁﬁ
HEEBLREEITED
SRTA

F_RE— BYRERAKEER
% (B B E L INME S 3R1E
BERENEREERE
BREBEHEAEENFE
HRNEHEER.XERE
u+imiﬁﬁml/§<

FE=RER—- RREAHAREERE
(X ERBE KRB EE
RE) B AR SRR A5 LAAE
ERFEPANRMEE
BRXeRFIENSHE
B

2020 £ 3R
HEEMRBEREERGERDA

217



218

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
SEGEELER

(%)

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
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SHEEMNAARET)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

P

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
POCI assets

Purchased or originated credit impaired (POCI) assets are
financial assets that are credit impaired on initial recognition.
POCI assets are recorded at fair value at original recognition
and interest income is subsequently recognised based on a
credit-adjusted effective interest rate (EIR). The ECL allowance
is only recognised or released to the extent that there is a
subsequent change in the expected credit losses.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date with that assessed
at the date of initial recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event occurs when (i) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in
full, without recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (ii) the financial asset is 90 to 365
days past due depending on the segment that it is related
to. The Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest on their
contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if
available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet
its obligation to the Group.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B H5 R et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(CONTINUED)

P

(@

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is performed
on either an individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is recognised
as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach,
the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, other payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and other payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include borrowings, lease
liabilities, trade and bills payable, and financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
SEGEELER

(%)

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(B4 BUFERRSM -

SHEEMNAARET)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(@

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in profit
or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is
recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance
of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i)
the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the policy as
set out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B H5 R et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(CONTINUED)

(@

(s)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories and other contract costs
(i)  Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the
ordinary course of business, in the process of production
for such sale or in the form of materials or supplies to be
consumed in the production process or in the rendering
of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B F5 R My et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(B4 BUFERRSM -

TREMASARET

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s)

®

Inventories and other contract costs (Continued)

@)

(i)

Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.

Other contract costs

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Impairment losses are recognised to the extent that the
carrying amount of the contract cost asset exceeds the
net of (i) the remaining amount of consideration that the
Group expects to receive in exchange for the goods or
services to which the asset relates, less (ii) any costs
that relate directly to providing those goods or services
that have not yet been recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is charged
to profit or loss when the revenue to which the asset
relates is recognised. The accounting policy for revenue
recognition is set out in Note 2(y).

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue (Note 2(y)) before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in the contract.
Contract assets are assessed for expected credit losses (ECL)
in accordance with the policy set out in Note 2(p) and are
reclassified to receivables when the right to the consideration
has become unconditional.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B H5 R et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(CONTINUED)

®

(w)

(v)

Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued)

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays non-
refundable consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue (Note 2(y)). A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
non-refundable consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing component,
the contract balance includes interest accrued under the
effective interest method (Note 2(y)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and
cash equivalents are not restricted as to use.

Employee benefits

(i)  Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit
plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into
a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for
the statutory defined contribution pension plans are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss when they are
due.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B F5 R My et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(B4 BUFERRSM -

TREMASARET

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(w)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a tax
loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B H5 R et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(CONTINUED)

(w)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries and associates to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
BTSRRI (48 )

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
TREML/ARKETT

(B4 BUFERRSM -

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(w)

Income tax (Continued)

in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities which with the significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
expected to be settled or recovered in each future
period, intend to realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.

(x) Provisions and contingent liabilities

)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B H5 R et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(CONTINUED)

()

(v)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)
(ii)  Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Group has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from the contract.
Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the
present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the net cost of continuing
with the contract.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it
is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group with a significant financial benefit for more
than one year, revenue recognised under the contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction
price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
SEGEELER

(%)

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BRHFRIFERAIN - &

BABARETT)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(y) Revenue recognition (Continued)

)

(i)

Sale of industrial products

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products. If the products
are a partial fulfilment of a contract covering other goods
and/or services, then the amount of revenue recognised
is an appropriate proportion of the total transaction price
under the contract, allocated between all the goods
and services promised under the contract on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis.

Construction contracts

A contract with a customer is classified by the Group
as a construction contract when the contract relates to
work on an asset under the control of the customer and
therefore the Group’s construction activities create or
enhance an asset under the customer’s control.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
reasonably measured, revenue from the contract is
recognised progressively over time using the cost-to-
cost method, i.e. based on the proportion of the actual
costs incurred relative to the estimated total costs.

The likelihood of the Group earning contractual bonuses
for early completion or suffering contractual penalties
for late completion is taken into account in making these
estimates, such that revenue is only recognised to the
extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal
in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur.

When the outcome of the contract cannot be reasonably
measured, revenue is recognised only to the extent
of contract costs incurred that are expected to be
recovered.

If at any time the costs to complete the contract are
estimated to exceed the remaining amount of the
consideration under the contract, then a provision is
recognised in accordance with the policy set out in Note

2(x)(ii).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B H5 R et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(CONTINUED)

(y) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Service concession revenue

Revenue related to construction services under a service
concession arrangement is recognised based on the
stage of completion of the work performed consistent
with the Group’s accounting policy on recognising
revenue on construction contracts (Note 2(y)(ii)).
Operation or service revenue is recognised in the period
in which the services are provided by the Group. Interest
income on financial assets is recognised in accordance
with policy for interest income below. When the Group
provides more than one service in a service concession
arrangement, the consideration received is allocated
by reference to the relative stand-alone selling prices of
the services delivered when the amounts are separately
identifiable.

Rendering of service

Revenue from the provision of service, such as operation
and maintenance service is recognised over the
scheduled period on a straight-line basis because the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from
the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in which they
are earned.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B F5 R My et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(B4 BUFERRSM -

TREMASARET

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v)

@

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Other revenue

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under the effective
interest method using the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.
For financial assets measured at amortised cost or FVOCI
(recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest
rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is
applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net
of loss allowance) of the asset (Note 2(p)).

For POCI financial assets, interest income is recognised by
calculating the credit-adjusted EIR and applying that rate to
the amortised cost of the financial assets.

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholders’ right to receive payment is established.
Dividend income from listed investments is recognised when
the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

Government grants are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised
as income in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are initially
recognised as deferred income and are subsequently
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the asset.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B H5 R et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(CONTINUED)

()

(aa)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial
position items are translated into RMB at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. Statement
of profit or loss and statement of cash flows items are
translated into RMB at the average foreign exchange rates for
the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss
on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

I mRME (E)
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
(BRERIFERAN - eREMLRARKIT)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(CONTINUED)

(ab) Related parties

(1) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(a)

(b)

(c)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group.

(2) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(a)

232 2020 ANNUAL REPORT

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (1).

A person identified in (1)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
I mARMTE(E)

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(RAFRIFEERIN - REELRARET)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TE&HBE(GE)
(CONTINUED)

(ab) Related parties (Continued) (ab) EBEET (1E)

(2)  (Continued)
(h)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it

is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those

(h) ZEBXEFABEEOL
AREAT - MALES
REEFATIREBNRE
5 A B IR -

E{ERS R T MR EK B 235

family members who may be expected to influence, or TEHZETHEBIRSF -
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the A EFEZREARTER
entity. ZHRE -

(ac) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
B SRR MY e (4R

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(B4 BUFERRSM -

TREMASARET

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(ad) Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations

)

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified
as held for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying
amount will be recovered through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and the asset (or
disposal group) is available for sale in its present
condition. A disposal group is a group of assets to be
disposed of together as a group in a single transaction,
and liabilities directly associated with those assets that
will be transferred in the transaction. When the Group
is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control of a
subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary
are classified as held for sale when the above criteria
for classification as held for sale are met, regardless of
whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in
the subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale,
the measurement of the non-current assets (and all
individual assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is
brought up-to-date in accordance with the accounting
policies before the classification. Then, on initial
classification as held for sale and until disposal, the
noncurrent assets (except for certain assets as explained
below), or disposal groups, are recognised at the lower
of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
The principal exceptions to this measurement policy
so far as the financial statements of the Group are
concerned are deferred tax assets and financial assets
(other than investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures). These assets, even if held for sale, would
continue to be measured in accordance with the policies
set out elsewhere in Note 2. Impairment losses on
initial classification as held for sale, and on subsequent
remeasurement while held for sale, are recognised in
profit or loss. As long as a non-current asset is classified
as held for sale, or is included in a disposal group that
is classified as held for sale, the non-current asset is not
depreciated or amortised.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B H5 R et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHBIEBRSN - SEBAAARET)
FESTBERE)

(CONTINUED)

(ad) Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations (Continued)

(i)

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can
be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale ((i) above), if earlier. It also
occurs if the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a
single amount is presented on the face of the statement
of profit or loss, which comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on
the disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s)
constituting the discontinued operation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
B SRR MY e (4R

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

FREFRIGERASN - BN AARKET)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES:BEGE
(CONTINUED)
2.1 Issued but not yet effective international financial 21 EEMAERERERNERG KRS

reporting standards R

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these

financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS
3

Amendments to IFRS
9, IAS 39, IFRS 7,
IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS
10 and IAS 28

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS
17
Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1
and IFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS
16

Amendments to IAS
37

Annual Improvements
to IFRSs 2018-2020

2020 ANNUAL REPORT
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Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 27

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Insurance Contracts?®
Insurance Contracts?®

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current®

Disclosure of Accounting Policies®

Definition of Accounting Estimates®

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract?

Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9,
lllustrative Examples accompanying
IFRS 16, and IAS 412
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B H5 R et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(CONTINUED)

2.1

Issued but not yet effective international financial
reporting standards (Continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

) Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to
the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in March 2018
without significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to IFRS 3 an exception to its recognition
principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework
to determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The
exception specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities
that would be within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 if they
were incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying IFRS 3 should refer to IAS 37
or IFRIC 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets
do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1
January 2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively to
business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or
after the date of first application, the Group will not be affected
by these amendments on the date of transition.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B F5 R My et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(B4 BUFERRSM -

TREMASARET

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1

Issued but not yet effective international financial
reporting standards (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16
address issues not dealt with in the previous amendments
which affect financial reporting when an existing interest
rate benchmark is replaced with an alternative risk-free
rate (“RFR”). The Phase 2 amendments provide a practical
expedient to allow the effective interest rate to be updated
without adjusting the carrying amount when accounting for
changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows of financial assets and liabilities, if the change is a
direct consequence of the interest rate benchmark reform
and the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows
is economically equivalent to the previous basis immediately
preceding the change. In addition, the amendments permit
changes required by the interest rate benchmark reform to
be made to hedge designations and hedge documentation
without the hedging relationship being discontinued. Any gains
or losses that could arise on transition are dealt with through
the normal requirements of IFRS 9 to measure and recognise
hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments also provide a
temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately
identifiable requirement when an RFR is designated as a risk
component. The relief allows an entity, upon designation of the
hedge, to assume that the separately identifiable requirement
is met, provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk
component to become separately identifiable within the
next 24 months. Furthermore, the amendments require an
entity to disclose additional information to enable users of
financial statements to understand the effect of interest rate
benchmark reform on an entity’s financial instruments and
risk management strategy. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 and
shall be applied retrospectively, but entities are not required
to restate the comparative information. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings denominated in RMB based on various Interbank
Offered Rates or the Loan Prime Rate published by the
People's Bank of China (“PBOC”) as at 31 December 2020.
If the interest rates of these borrowings are replaced by
RFRs in a future period, the Group will apply this practical
expedient upon the modification of these borrowings when
the “economically equivalent” criterion is met and expects that
no significant modification gain or loss will arise as a result of
applying the amendments to these changes.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT
Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*

2.

FTEETBER(E)
21 CEMEMREROEBRTERE

2RI ()

YRR R EERNF - HERg
FTHERISE395 - BBRII SR 2AIE
75% - BIRR B T i LE RIS 457 AN B R
B ISR BB 165 BT R T
LARTRUERT R R RREIRE + a4 [
BERANERBRFERFRIRERE
FRELERSTENBRE - B2k
BEEREHT —EEANGE - B
EEERTEREENEBENERR
SREBEROEE - JUETHEE
IRESENBER TENERFE - A
REZET R REENENEELE
RYBARRERENHEREMRE
4R - R R B AT Y 8 BT L ([ 48
BELEE]D - I ZIBERRFTH
S AN B SR R TE IR R
BWITEN - MAGHELIREER - B
JEEAR A AL E A M AIB R BB
B EF RS SRS SR B SEOSRM IE B Bl R
B LSS R P EIE - 218
FERME T ERE IS RASARIERFR
WEEBRBRAERTIHSHERLT
1 EE WA F BB m R T RHEBI RS
B BhERERK4ABARNEGRE
78 HIRFRIE R AKX 5 AT 4 BB @ 5
AIZ A R A EEIETEHERBR
TREME T JEBHRNNERK « 1t
Gh o R EB R EREEREEME
B AEB SRR REEHN T R
FIREEREHFENSHTANR
BEERBEAFE - ZFBF] 52021
F1A1BRZEABHFEEHME
o WRERPER  RERESEM
LLEIE R -

REBUAREF MK L BIRTT
BEFE2020F 12 A31HZERTT
FZEFEFNEMFPEARET(HE
ARBITHDRAEZERERREBE
£Ef) o INREEBRAFIERERKR—
ERERFBAWMRFRAE - EmERE L
LESER - AEEGIEEELER
HEITIS RS IR AR BRR 5 2 - W TE AP
TEEAKAZBEBI MEENERXR
FIFSHRIEK -



2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B H5 R et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(CONTINUED)

2.1

Issued but not yet effective international financial
reporting standards (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full
recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets
that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date
of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed by the
IASB in December 2015 and a new mandatory effective date
will be determined after the completion of a broader review
of accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to IAS 1 clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments specify
that if an entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject
to the entity complying with specified conditions, the entity
has a right to defer settlement of the liability at the end of the
reporting period if it complies with those conditions at that
date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered a settlement of a liability. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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(B4 BUFERRSM -

TREMASARET

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

21

Issued but not yet effective international financial
reporting standards (Continued)

In February 2021 the IASB amended IAS 1 to require an
entity to disclose its material accounting policy information
rather than its significant accounting policies. To help entities
to apply the amendments to IAS 1, the IASB also amended
IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements to
illustrate how an entity can judge whether accounting policy
information is material to its financial statements. The IASB
added guidance and examples to IFRS Practice Statement
2 to help an entity apply the four-step materiality process
to accounting policy information. An entity shall apply the
amendments to IAS 1 for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023. Earlier application is permitted.
If an entity applies those amendments for an earlier period,
it shall disclose that fact. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

In February 2021, the IASB issued Definition of Accounting
Estimates, which amended |IAS 8. The amendments
introduced the definition of accounting estimates in paragraph
5 and included other amendments to IAS 8 to help entities
distinguish changes in accounting estimates from changes in
accounting policies. An entity shall apply these amendments
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023. Earlier application is permitted. An entity shall apply the
amendments to changes in accounting estimates and changes
in accounting policies that occur on or after the beginning
of the first annual reporting period in which it applies the
amendments. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B H5 R et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(CONTINUED)

2.1

Issued but not yet effective international financial
reporting standards (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling any
such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively
only to items of property, plant and equipment made available
for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period
presented in the financial statements in which the entity first
applies the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37, the
cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate
directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract
include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an
allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well
as contract management and supervision costs). General
and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract
and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to
the counterparty under the contract. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an entity has
not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendments shall be recognised as
an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial
application without restating the comparative information. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.
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(B4 BUFERRSM -

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Issued but not yet effective international financial
reporting standards (Continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lIllustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the Group
are as follows:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of
a new or modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original financial liability.
These fees include only those paid or received between
the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or
received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial
liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which
the entity first applies the amendment. The amendment
is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

IFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments
from the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in
Illustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16. This
removes potential confusion regarding the treatment of
lease incentives when applying IFRS 16.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B H5 R et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 3.
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the following revised IFRSs for the first time for
the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to IFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
IAS 39 and IFRS 7

Amendment to IFRS 16~ COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
(early adopted)

Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of Material
and IAS 8

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 and the revised IFRSs are described
below:

(a) Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
“Conceptual Framework”) sets out a comprehensive set of
concepts for financial reporting and standard setting, and
provides guidance for preparers of financial statements in
developing consistent accounting policies and assistance
to all parties to understand and interpret the standards.
The Conceptual Framework includes new chapters on
measurement and reporting financial performance, new
guidance on the derecognition of assets and liabilities, and
updated definitions and recognition criteria for assets and
liabilities. It also clarifies the roles of stewardship, prudence
and measurement uncertainty in financial reporting. The
Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of
the concepts contained therein override the concepts or
requirements in any standard. The Conceptual Framework did
not have any significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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(B4 BUFERRSM -

TREMASARET

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance
on the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that
for an integrated set of activities and assets to be considered
a business, it must include, at a minimum, an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute
to the ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to create
outputs. The amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of acquiring the business
and continuing to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on
whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes
together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.
The amendments have also narrowed the definition of
outputs to focus on goods or services provided to customers,
investment income or other income from ordinary activities.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to assess
whether an acquired process is substantive and introduce
an optional fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. The Group has applied the amendments
prospectively to transactions or other events that occurred on
or after 1 January 2020. The amendments did not have any
significant impact on the financial position and performance of
the Group.

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 address
issues affecting financial reporting in the period before the
replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark with an
alternative RFR. The amendments provide temporary reliefs
which enable hedge accounting to continue during the
period of uncertainty before introduction of the alternative
RFR. In addition, the amendments require companies to
provide additional information to investors about their hedging
relationships which are directly affected by these uncertainties.
The amendments did not have any significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group as the Group
does not have any interest rate hedging relationships.
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3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 3.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B H5 R B et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(d)

Amendment to IFRS 16 provides a practical expedient for
lessees to elect not to apply lease modification accounting
for rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic. The practical expedient applies only to
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
pandemic and only if (i) the change in lease payments results
in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change; (ii) any reduction in
lease payments affects only payments originally due on or
before 30 June 2021; and (iii) there is no substantive change
to other terms and conditions of the lease. The amendment
is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June
2020 with earlier application permitted and shall be applied
retrospectively.

The amendment did not have any significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material
if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis
of those financial statements. The amendments clarify
that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information, or both. The amendments did not have any
significant impact on the financial position and performance of
the Group.
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4,

SHEM/ARKETT)
ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

The Group’s financial condition and results of operations are
sensitive to accounting methods, assumptions and estimates that
underlie the preparation of these financial statements. The Group
bases the assumptions and estimates on historical experience
and on various other assumptions that the Group believes to be
reasonable and which form the basis for making judgements about
matters that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from those estimates as facts, circumstances and
conditions change.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and
other uncertainties affecting the application of those polices and
the sensitivity of reported results to changes in conditions and
assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing these
financial statements. The principal accounting policies are set forth
in Note 2. The Group believes that the following critical accounting
policies involve the most significant judgements and estimates used
in the preparation of these financial statements.

(a) Impairment losses for non-current assets

In considering the impairment losses that may be required for
certain of the Group’s assets which include property, plant
and equipment (including right-of-use assets), investment
properties, intangible assets, investments in associates and
goodwill, the recoverable amount of the asset needs to be
determined. The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair
value less costs to sell and the value in use. It is difficult to
precisely estimate the selling price because quoted market
prices for these assets may not be readily available. In
determining the value in use, expected cash flows generated
by the asset are discounted to their present value, which
requires significant judgement particularly in relation to the
key assumptions adopted, including revenue growth rates,
gross profit margins, long-term growth rates, inflation rates, the
discount rate applied in the discounted cash flow forecast and
the remaining useful economic lives of the relevant assets. The
information about the impairment losses for non-current assets
of the Group is disclosed in Note 15, Note 16, Note 18, Note
19 and Note 21 to the financial statements.
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4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES 4.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B H5 R et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Impairment losses on receivables and contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade receivables, contract assets and other receivables.
The provision rates are based on the ageing of balances for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geography, customer type).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is
a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables, contract assets
and other receivables is disclosed in Note 23, Note 25, Note
26 and Note 27 to the financial statements, respectively.

Construction contracts

As explained in accounting policies set out in Note 2(y)(ii),
revenue and profit recognition on an uncompleted project is
dependent on estimating the total outcome of the construction
contract, as well as the work done to date. Based on the
Group’s recent experience and the nature of the construction
activity undertaken by the Group, the Group makes estimates
of the point at which it considers the work is sufficiently
advanced such that the costs to complete and revenue can be
reliably estimated. As a result, until this point is reached, the
contract assets as disclosed in Note 25 will not include profit
which the Group may eventually realise from the work done
to date. In addition, actual outcomes in terms of total cost or
revenue may be higher or lower than estimated at the end of
the reporting period, which would affect the revenue and profit
recognised in future years as an adjustment to the amounts
recorded to date.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B F5 R My et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(B4 BUFERRSM -

TREMASARET

4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Provision for warranty

The Group will rectify product defects of wind turbines, steam
turbines and distributed control system products arising within
one to five years of the date of sale. Besides, the Group also
provides for warranty of construction services for general
repairs or defects occurring during the warranty period.
The Group estimates warranty costs based on the Group’s
historical cost data, industry data and an assessment of the
Group’s competitors’ accrual. The warranty obligation of the
Group will be affected not only by the product failure rates,
but also by costs incurred to repair or replace failed products.
If the actual product failure rates and cost of replacement or
repairs of failed products differ from the estimates, the Group
will need to prospectively revise the provision for warranty
costs which would affect profit or loss in future years.

Provisions for these assurance-type warranties granted by
the Group are recognised based on sales volume and past
experience of the level of repairs, discounted to their present
values as appropriate. The information about provision for
warranty of the Group is disclosed in Note 35 to the financial
statements.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets in respect of unused tax losses and tax
credit carried forward and deductible temporary differences
are recognised and measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. In determining the carrying amounts of
deferred tax assets, expected taxable profits are estimated.
The estimation involves a number of assumptions relating
to the operating environment of the Group and requires a
significant level of judgement exercised by the directors. Any
change in such assumptions and judgement would affect the
carrying amounts of deferred tax assets to be recognised and
therefore, the net profit in future years. The information about
deferred tax assets of the Group is disclosed in Note 34 to the
financial statements.
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4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES 4.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B H5 R et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(CONTINUED)

®

(C)

(h)

Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments have been valued based
on a market-based valuation technique as detailed in Note
40 to the financial statements. The valuation requires the
Group to determine the comparable public companies
(peers) and select the price multiple. In addition, the Group
makes estimates about the discount for illiquidity and size
differences. The Group classifies the fair value of these
investments as Level 3. The fair value of the unlisted equity
investments at 31 December 2020 was RMB257,429,000
(2019: RMB347,062,000).

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment and investment properties are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assets, after taking into account the estimated
residual value. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of
the assets regularly. The useful lives are based on the Group’s
historical experience with similar assets and take into account
anticipated technological changes. The depreciation expense
for future periods is adjusted if there are significant changes
from previous estimates.

Income tax

The Group files income taxes with numerous tax authorities.
Judgement is required in determining the provision for taxation
as there are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determinations are uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. For preferential tax treatments
available for approved High and New Technology Enterprises,
in determining the applicable tax rates for calculations of
current income tax and deferred income tax, after passing
the substantive approvals, the Group uses the expected
tax rates that will probably be approved by tax authorities
according to the tax rules and regulations enacted at the end
of the reporting period. Where the final tax outcomes of these
matters are different from the amounts originally recorded,
the differences may impact on the current income tax and
deferred income tax provisions in the periods in which the final
tax outcomes became available.
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FRAFRIFERIN - SBREMSARKEITT)

4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

U]

1)

(k)

Contingent liabilities

Management judgement is required in the area of contingent
liabilities particularly in assessing the outcome of possible
obligations arising from the transactions as detailed in Note
42. Management reassesses the likelihood of the outcome of
these possible obligations at the end of the reporting period.
Where a change in the probability that an outflow of economic
resources will be required to settle the obligation, a provision
will be recognised in the period in which such determination is
made.

Write-down of inventories

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of inventories at
the end of the reporting period to determine whether the
inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value in accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note
2(s). Management estimates the net realisable value based on
all available information, including the current market price of
the finished goods and raw materials, and historical costs. Any
change in the assumptions would increase or decrease the
amount of the inventory write-down or the related reversals of
write-down and affect the Group’s profit. The information about
the write-down of inventories of the Group is disclosed in Note
24 to the financial statements.

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the
accounting policy for research and development costs in Note
2(j) to the financial statements. Determining the amounts to
be capitalised requires management to make assumptions
regarding the expected future cash generation of the assets,
discount rates to be applied and the expected period of
benefits. At 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of
capitalised development costs was RMB235,340,000 (2019:
RMB247,326,000).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B H5 R B et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a)

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by subsidiaries, which
are organised by business lines (products and services).
In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following four reportable segments.

o Environmental protection segment: this segment
provides environmental protection products and
services which mainly consist of sulphur oxide control
technologies, nitrogen oxide control technologies,
rental of desulphurisation and denitrification facilities,
ash removal with filter bags, water treatment related
technologies and products.

o Energy conservation solutions segment: this segment
provides energy saving products and services which
mainly consist of plasma ignition and micro-oil ignition
equipment and gas turbine improvement services and
construction of energy-efficient power plants.

° Wind power products and services segment: this
segment produces and sells wind turbine and its
components, and provides related system solutions and
services to wind power operators.

o The Group combined other business activities that
are not reportable in “All others”. Revenue included in
this category is mainly from the wind and solar power
generation and the sale of other electric power control
system related products.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
SEGEELER
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(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(B4 BUFERRSM -

SHEEMNAARET)

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(a) Segment reporting (Continued)

)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s most senior executive management monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all assets with the exception
of interests in associates, other equity investments, tax
recoverable, deferred tax assets and other corporate
assets. Segment liabilities include all liabilities with the
exception of income tax payable, deferred tax liabilities
and other corporate liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by
those segments and the expenses incurred by those
segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
the gross profit. In addition to receiving segment
information concerning the gross profit, management
is also provided with segment information concerning
depreciation and amortisation, interest income, finance
costs, impairment of assets, inventory write-down and
additions to segment non-current assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B H5 R B et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(CONTINUED)

@)

(BRFFRIERRSN - BB ARETT)

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. K& EEGE

(a) Segment reporting (Continued) (a) PHHEE
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) (i) ZBEE ZBEREEGE
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments RHEAEEGSRITHRER
as provided to the Group’s most senior executive ABREETERS BRI
management for the purposes of resource allocation £2020F F12019F12A31H Ik
and assessment of segment performance for the years FEMDEBEEEL TR
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 is set out below: RASEE R 2R EHE L0
T
2020
Energy Wind power
Environmental ~ conservation products All
protection solutions  and services others Total
BR  HEBARR EEERRER RS @t
RMB 000 RIMB 000 RIMB000 RIMB 000 RIMB 000
ARETR AREFR AREFT ANRETT ABETT
Disaggregated by timing of revenue ~ REARRBLAE
recognition 396,538 199,211 5,632,321 469,139 6,697,209
Point in time EERERR
QOver time E-BRERR 4,383,341 4,366,662 157,226 20,040 8,927,269
Revenue from external customers ~ SMIZFIRA 4,779,879 4,565,873 5,789,547 489,179 15,624,478
Inter-segment revenue DERERA 283,147 179,645 1,443,564 2741 1,933,827
Reportable segment revenue 2RI PRA 5,063,026 4,745,518 7,233,111 516,650 17,558,305
Reportable segment profit TERAPRBER
(gross profit) 1,252,430 322,483 1,180,338 209,302 2,964,553
2020 F 3R
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
BTSRRI (48 )

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BRERIFERIN - REBLBARKEIT)

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. &K&53EEGE

(CONTINUED)
(a) Segment reporting (Continued) (a) PHHEE
(i)  Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) (i) PEBEiE BEREEGE
2020
Energy Wind power
Environmental ~ conservation products All
protection solutions  and services others Total
BR  HEEBARE BEERREE gt #it
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000
ARETT ARETFT AREFI AREFR AREFR
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 234,889 19,034 147,148 91,258 492,329
Impairment of property, plant and 0% BRRXERE
equipment 56,046 - - - 56,046
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) ~ AREAER(EHE/ (ER)
of contract assets - 856 (3,824) - (2,968)
Inventory write-down FEME 1,209 514 - - 1,813
Reversal of impairment of trade and bills EWEESREEREER
receivables (77,584) (6,679) (2,672) (94,505) (181,440)

Impairment/(reversal of impairment) ~ EttERGEREHE/
of deposits, prepayments and other (&)

receivables 49,986 (9) 9,965 - 59,942
Interest income WA 41,813 30,565 23,144 611 96,133
Finance costs (other than intereston ~ BIEAUAR

lease liabilities) (BHEEEETS) 56,071 4,720 162,018 3,393 226,202
Reportable segment assets TERANEE 12,101,574 4,617,258 13,301,110 2,805,264 32,825,206

Additions to reportable segmentnon-  ERFET2HHBIER

current assets during the year* 181,613 17,017 451,509 47,669 697,808
Reportable segment liabilities 2RI A% 7,825,755 2,777,367 11,835,268 645,110 23,083,500
& The amount consists of additions to property, plant * IhEREREYE  BERRBREFLEE

and equipment and intangible assets. #IIE AN o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
IR (&)
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BRHFRIFERASN - RRBEMAARKET)
5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED) 5. RESWBEEE
(@) Segment reporting (Continued) (a) 7 EPEE(F
(i)  Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) () #Eb¥E BERKER)
2019

Energy  Wind power
Envionmental ~ conservation  products and

protection solutions services All others Total
RR BRBARE BEEmRESR FrEEM it

RUBORO  AMBOOD  AMBOW  AWBUOD  AMBOXO
ARRTE  ARETE  ARETT ARETL ARETR

Disaggregated by timing of revenue recognition ~ RUABREEAE

Pointin time EERRSER 301,831 214,36 4722493 452,369 5,711,049
Over fime E-BEERR 4,183,940 1678482 100,209 17,358 5,979,989
Revenue from external customers SPEFRA 4505771 1,892,838 4,822,702 469,727 11691038
Inter-segment revenue GElON 36,323 144,869 80,497 72,376 334,065
Reportable segment revenue A2HRIPUA 4,542,004 2,037,707 4,903,199 542103 12,025,103
Reportable segment profit (gross profit) 2R PAEER) 962,005 289,825 1153433 147,033 2552,29
Depreciation and amortisation MEREH 291,652 17504 133,416 70543 513115
Impairment of property, plant and equipment % BERRERE 21248 - - 66 21,314
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of contract assets ~ AFEE &R/ (ER) 1511 (50) 8420 = 9,881
Inventory write-down FERR - - - 53 53
(Reversal of impairment)impairment of trade and other MG 5T R 246 B UEUE R (7425) (6,784) 12,271 20423 18,485
receivables [E(EBm) /4R
Impalrment of other non-current assets AtFERBAERE 4473 = = = 4473
Interest income FEMA 43,570 52,445 16,500 559 113,074
Finance costs(other than interest on lease liabilties) B A (R R EHS) 84,616 6925 163,668 4,453 259,662
Reportable segment assets AERANEE 12,232,405 3731758 13126819 252128 31,615,110
Additions to reportable segment non-currentassets  EAFEAZHATIRY 325,365 25,789 176,040 56,261 583,455
during the year* BE
Reportable segment liabilities IZEANEE 7,964,451 2186049 11,362,183 498025 22,010,708
* The amount consists of additions to property, plant * S EBRIEMERE &R
and equipment and intangible assets. R B ERIE N
2020 F 3R
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

B F5 R My et (48

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

BRAFRIFERRIN - SBEBEMRARET)

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(CONTINUED)

(a) Segment reporting (Continued)

REDEEE @

(@) 7 EBIEE @)

(i)  Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, (i) TE2HFZEKA - FE - BE
profit or loss, assets and liabilities FIE ERFE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB000
ARETFT AR¥TFT
Revenue WA
Reportable segment revenue A] 2D PUA 17,558,305 12,025,103
Elimination of inter-segment revenue HE A (1,933,827) (334,065)
Consolidated revenue A A 15,624,478 11,691,038
Profit FI
Reportable segment profit A2 EBFE 2,964,553 2,552,296
Elimination of inter-segment (profit)/loss %3 &8 A1, B8 1K 8 (9,686) 35,902
Reportable segment profit derived from  BUf5 B £ BN A] 2375 3P
the Group’s external customers FE 2,954,867 2,588,198
Other revenue EmA 315,344 323,064
Other income HE iz 22,652 155,915
Other expenses Hh %A (111,342) =
Selling and distribution expenses HE R R (1,094,852) (1,184,562)
Administrative expenses TR (1,380,365) (1,485,061)
Finance costs IR IDWN (573,700) (592,937)
Share of profits less losses of associates &1 A &) F B 6 & 18 72,331 45,868
Consolidated profit/(loss) before taxation &% B1HE, (E518) 204,935 (149,515)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

(CONTINUED)

(a) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)

(i)

B 5 ER R M

(%)

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues,

W
fo= ==+

(@)

(B RIRERRSD -

i) :\ELB 1I=l s (llﬁ)

7 EB IR ()

SRENAARET)

(i) FEZHDERA - FE - BE

profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) FIE ERy5HE0 (48)
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥FT ARMTFT
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets Ao IAEE 32,825,206 31,615,110
Inter-segment elimination D EPEER (556,425) (365,217)
32,268,781 31,249,893
Interests in associates HEENEIRE 484,699 444,539
Other equity investments Hit